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VISION

MISSION

VALUES

Armscor’s vision is to be a truly South African 
organisation that is valued locally and globally 
as a centre of technical excellence for defence 
acquisition and support services.

Armscor’s mission is to meet the acquisition, maintenance 
and disposal needs of the South African Department of 
Defence and other clients in terms of defence material, 
related products and services. Armscor maintains strategic 
capabilities and technologies and promotes the local 
defence-related industry.

Armscor believes that its values constitute the build-
ing blocks of the manner in which it conducts its 
business. We believe in the highest standards and 
are committed to equal opportunities, transparency 
and accountability.
We pledge commitment to the following values: 
•• Leading by example
•• Results driven
•• Customer focus
•• Care and respect for others
•• Excellence
•• Teamwork and integrity.
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Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

 Received a clean audit with no 
qualification from the Auditor-General

 Achieved a level 3 BBBEE rating up from 
last year’s level 7

 Armscor Dockyard was certified an 
accredited ISO 9001 organisation

 The Group has shown a surplus of  
R84,6 million compared to R70,2 million 
for the previous financial year

 Armscor actively supports corporate 
social investment that assists in 
improving results in mathematics and 
physical science. This initiative realised 
an average improvement of 51% for 
both mathematics and physical science. 

HIGHLIGHTS

01
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CORPORATE PROfiLE 01
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Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Limited 

(Armscor) continued its existence in terms of the Armaments 

Corporation of South Africa, Limited Act (Act 51 of 2003), as 

amended (Armscor Act). It is a state-owned company (SOC) 

as contemplated in the Companies Act, 2008. Furthermore, 

it is listed as a schedule 2 Public Entity in terms of the Public 

Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), as amended 

(PFMA). It is further regulated by the Regulations issued in 

terms of the PFMA.

The Minister of Defence and Military Veterans is the executive 

authority. 

CORPORATE PROfiLE

ARMSCOR’S REPORTiNG STRUCTURE TO THE MiNiSTRY Of 
 DEfENCE AND MiLiTARY VETERANS

ARMSCOR’S REPORTING 
STRUCTURE TO THE 

MINISTRY OF  
DEFENCE AND MILITARY 

VETERANS

Minister of Defence and 
Military Veterans

Chairman of ARMSCOR

ARMSCOR  
Board of Directors
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OBJECTiVES 

The objectives of the Corporation are to meet: 

a. the defence matériel requirements of the Department 

of Defence effectively, efficiently and economically; 

and 

b. the defence technology, research, development, 

analysis, test and evaluation requirements of the 

Department  of Defence effectively, efficiently and 

economically. 

The Corporation must adhere to accepted corporate 

governance principles, best business practices and 

generally accepted accounting practices within a framework 

of established norms and standards that reflect fairness, 

equity, transparency, economy, efficiency, accountability 

and lawfulness.

fUNCTiONS Of THE CORPORATiON 

(1) The Act provides that the Corporation must: 

a. acquire such defence matériel on behalf of the 
Department of Defence as the Department 
may require; 

b. manage such technology projects as may be 
required by the Department of Defence; 

c. establish and maintain a programme 
management systems in support of the 
acquisition and technology projects 
contemplated in paragraphs (a) and (b);

d. provide for a quality assurance capability in 
support of –

(i) the acquisition and technology 
processes contemplated in paragraphs 
(a) and (b) and 

(ii) any other service contemplated in this 
section required by the Department of 

Defence; 

(e) maintain a system for tender and contract 
management in respect of defence matériel 
and, if required in a service level agreement 
or if requested in writing by the Secretary 
for Defence, the procurement of commercial 
matériel; 

(f ) dispose of defence matériel in consultation 
with the entity who originally manufactured 
the matériel; 

(g) maintain a compliance administration system 
for the Department of Defence as required 
by applicable international law, the National 
Convention Arms Control Act, 2002 (Act No. 
41 of 2002), and the Non-Proliferation of 
Weapons of Mass Destruction Act, 1993 (Act 
No. 87 of 1993); 

(h) support and maintain such strategic and 
essential defence industrial capabilities, 
resources and technologies as may be 
identified by the Department of Defence; 

(i) provide defence operational research; 

(j) maintain a defence industrial participation 
programme management system; 

(k) provide marketing support to defence-related 
industries in respect of defence matériel, in 
consultation with the Department of Defence 
and the defence-related industries in question; 

(l) manage facilities identified as strategic by 
the Department of Defence in a service level 
agreement; and 

(m) maintain special capabilities and facilities 
which are regarded by the Corporation not 
to be commercially viable, but which may be 

required by the Department of Defence for 
security or strategic reasons. 
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iNTERNAL AUDiT

Internal Audit as a critical pillar of governance has introduced 
the combined assurance model to coordinate the assurance 
efforts to ensure adequate coverage of key strategic risks 
facing the organisation.

The objective of the internal auditing function is to provide 

independent, objective assurance and consulting services 

designed to add value and improve the organisation’s 

operations. It helps the organisation accomplish its 

objectives by introducing a systematic, disciplined 

approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control and governance processes. In this 

regard, Internal Audit reports directly to the Audit and Risk 

Committee of the Board of Directors.

THE BOARD

The management and control of Armscor resides with the 

Board of Directors, led by a non-executive chairman and 

his deputy. To discharge its responsibilities effectively and 

maintain accountability, the Board established a number of 

committees: 

 • Audit and Risk Committee

 • Acquisition Committee

 • Finance, Business Development and Investment 

Committee

 • Human Resources, Social and Ethics Committee 

 • Research and Development Committee

 • Marketing and Industry Support Committee

The Directors’ report will elaborate on the functions of each 

of these committees. 

(2)  (a)   The Corporation may, with the approval of the  
 Minister 

(i) exploit such commercial opportunities as may 
arise out of the Corporation’s duty to acquire 
defence matériel or to manage technology 
projects; 

(ii) procure commercial matériel on behalf of any 
organ of state; and at the request of the organ 
of state in question;

(iii) and subject to the National Conventional 
Arms Control Act, 2002 (Act No. 41 of 2002), 
the Regulation of Foreign Military Assistance 
Act, 1998 (Act No.15 of 1998), and the Non-
Proliferation of Weapons of Mass Destruction 
Act, 1993 (Act No. 87 of 1993), perform any 
function which the Corporation may perform 
for or on behalf of the Department of Defence 
in terms of this Act for or on behalf of any 
sovereign State.

     (b) The Minister may impose such conditions in respect 
of the performance of a function as may be necessary 
in the national interest. 

GOVERNANCE 

Armscor adheres to the principles of good corporate 

governance enshrined in the PMFA (Act No. 1 of 1999) as 

amended. The observance of these principles ensures that 

Armscor maintains the integrity of its operations, thus 

gaining credibility from and the confidence of its important 

stakeholders. 

Good corporate governance and stakeholder confidence are 

fundamental elements in determining healthy a relationship 

with stakeholders. 
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THE BOARD Of DiRECTORS

nOn-ExEcuTIvE DIREcTOR AnD cHAIRMAn OF THE AcQuISITIOn cOMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD - Dr Ralph Radebe Mgijima

Dr Ralph Radebe Mgijima is Director and Chairman of the Acquisition Committee of the Armscor 
Board. He was appointed to this position on 1 May 2011. A medical doctor by profession, Dr Mgijima 
has extensive experience in the medical fraternity, having obtained his MBChB degree and a number of 
other qualifications, including a Diploma in Tropical Medicine, Diploma in Health Services Management 
(unaccredited), Senior Public Service Management Studies and a Cambridge International Leadership 
Programme.

Dr Mgijima held various professional and leadership roles within the medical and public spheres, having 
also chaired South Africa’s Public Service Commission. He has held many fiduciary positions in South 
Africa and abroad. He is currently working as a business consultant. He also serves as the deputy chairman 
of the National Health Laboratory Services (NHLS) and is a board member for the City of Johannesburg 
(PAC).

Other nominations include serving in the SANDF Service Commission.

DEPuTY cHAIRPERSOn OF THE ARMScOR BOARD - Ms Refiloe Mokoena
Ms Refiloe Mokoena was the Deputy Chairperson of the Armscor Board until recently. She was 
appointed to the Armscor Board on 1 May 2008 and reappointed to the portfolio on 1 May 2011.

Ms Mokoena holds a B Juris and an LLB degree and is currently employed as Executive Corporate 
Compliance for TELKOM.

She is an experienced attorney with a strong background in commercial law and practice. She held 
various board positions within the gambling, security regulation, broadcasting, rental housing and 
valuation environments.

Ms Mokoena also serves on the Board of Bathopele Mining Investment (Pty) Ltd.

Ms Mokoena was relieved of her duties as deputy chairperson of the Armscor Board  
on 8 August 2013.

cHAIRPERSOn OF THE ARMScOR BOARD - Lt Gen (Ret) Maomela Moreti Motau

Lt Gen (Ret) Maomela Moreti Motau was appointed Chairman of the Armscor Board on 1 May 2011. 
He brought with him a wealth of intelligence and experience, having obtained the following academic 
qualifications:

 • Master of Business Administration

 • Post-Graduate Diploma in Management Studies

 • Post-Graduate Certificate in Management Studies

 • Bachelor of Law (LLB)

 • Executive Course in Defence Management

 • Diploma in Technical Education (Business Studies)

 • Joint Staff Course (Strategic Management Programme)

 • Senior Command Staff Course

 • Operational Intelligence and Advance Defence Intelligence Courses

 
Lt Gen Motau has vast experience in consulting; he has experience in non-statutory forces and was 
instrumental in the negotiations towards democratic rule in South Africa.

General Motau was previously the Chief of Military Intelligence and a special advisor to the Minister of 
Defence and Military Veterans. He is currently working as a business consultant.

Lt Gen Motau was relieved of his duties as chairperson of the Armscor Board on 8 August 2013.
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nOn-ExEcuTIvE DIREcTOR AnD cHAIRMAn OF THE HuMAn RESOuRcES AnD 
ETHIcS cOMMITTEE OF THE BOARD - Mr Sifiso Aubrey Msibi

Mr Sifiso Aubrey Msibi is Director and Chairman of the Human Resources and Ethics Committee 
of the Armscor Board. He was appointed to the Armscor Board on 1 May 2008 as chairman of the 
Human Resources Committee.

He was reappointed to this portfolio on 1 May 2011. He is a BSc Chemical Engineering graduate and 
holds a in Management Development Programme qualification.

Mr Msibi has extensive experience in engineering, management and leadership, obtained through 
his 25-year working career at a number of leading South African companies.

His sits in various boards, including Food Corp Holdings Limited and BMW Auto Bavaria.

nOn-ExEcuTIvE DIREcTOR AnD cHAIRPERSOn OF THE MARKETInG AnD 
InDuSTRY SuPPORT cOMMITTEE OF THE BOARD - Adv. veruschka September

Adv. Veruschka September was appointed to the Armscor Board on 1 May 2008 and reappointed in 
May 2011 as Director and Chairperson of the Marketing and Industry Support Committee.

Adv. September holds an LLB degree and various certificates, including Advanced Public 
Administrative Law, Labour Law and Commercial Law Practice. Her areas of expertise include the 
commercial, sporting and labour law environments.

She is currently practising as an advocate at the Johannesburg Society of Advocates. She also serves 
on the board of Pareto Consulting. 

She resigned in April 2012.

nOn-ExEcuTIvE DIREcTOR AnD cHAIRMAn OF THE AuDIT AnD RISK 
cOMMITTEE OF THE BOARD - Mr Elias Likobo Borole

Mr Elias Likobo Borole is Director and Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee. He was 
appointed to this portfolio on 1 May 2008 and reappointed on 1 May 2011.

Mr Borole has served as a member of the executive management and board of directors of various 
companies for a period of 16 years, and has also served on finance, audit and facilities committees.

He is currently a director of BDM Group (Pty) Ltd, and is a licensed international financial analyst. He 
holds the following qualifications:

 • Master of Business Administration

 • Management Advanced Programme

 • Higher Certificate in Accounting
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nOn-ExEcuTIvE DIREcTOR AnD cHAIRMAn OF THE FInAncE, BuSInESS 
DEvELOPMEnT AnD InvESTMEnT cOMMITTEE OF THE BOARD- Dr John Leonard Job
Dr John Leonard Job was appointed to the Armscor Board on 1 May 2011 and is Chairman of the 
Finance, Business Development and Investment Committee.

He holds a PhD with Honours and a BSc (Hons). He attended an International Programme for Senior 
Executives as well as a Seminar for Senior Executives.

Dr Job is a widely experienced executive and director in industry, particularly the chemical and forest 
products industries, both in South Africa and internationally.

He also is knowledgeable about military matters, having served for many years in various capacities 
in the South African Defence family. His current position is director of companies and he serves on a 
number of boards, including Group 5 Ltd, Job Family Holdings (Pty) Ltd and also the Reserve Force 
Council.

nOn-ExEcuTIvE DIREcTOR AnD cHAIRPERSOn OF THE MARKETInG AnD 
InDuSTRY SuPPORT cOMMITTEE OF THE BOARD - Dr Pumza Patricia Dyantyi

Dr Pumza Patricia Dyantyi was appointed to the Armscor Board on 1 May 2011. Dr Dyantyi was the 
mayor of Mbhashe Local Municipality and has held various professional medical positions, both 
the public and the private sector. She is currently practising as a medical practitioner and holds the 
following academic qualifications:

 • Master in Business Administration

 • Diploma in Management Studies

 • Degree in Medicine

 • Diploma in Midwifery

 • Diploma in General Nursing

She serves on the following Boards: Mida Private School, Ntinga Development Agency, Government 
Employees Medical Scheme (GEMS), Nelson Mandela Museum.

nOn-ExEcuTIvE DIREcTOR AnD cHAIRPERSOn OF THE RESEARcH AnD 
DEvELOPMEnT cOMMITTEE OF THE ARMScOR BOARD- Mr Leku Winston 
Mosiako

Mr Leku Winston Mosiako was appointed to the Armscor Board on 1 May 2008 and reappointed in  
May 2011 as Director and Chairperson of the Research and Development Committee. 

He is an entrepreneur with a strong background in information technology. He has earned various 
accolades within the information and technology environment and has held various positions at 
IBM.

Mr Mosiako holds a Business Diploma and a Management Development Certificate.

He serves on the following boards:

 • Lechabile Investment Holdings

 • Knowledge Dimension
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cOMPAnY SEcRETARY - Adv. nB Senne
Advocate Boitshoko Senne was appointed as Armscor’s Company Secretary on 1 May 2011. 

Advocate Senne’s academic qualifications include the following:

 • B. Juris 

 • LLB

 • Bar Examination (Society of Advocates)

ExEcuTIvE BOARD MEMBER AnD cHIEF FInAncIAL OFFIcER –  
Mr JG Grobler 

Mr Gerhard Grobler was appointed to his current position on 11 September 2008. Mr Grobler’s 
academic qualifications include the following: 

 • CA (SA)

 • MBL 

 • M.Com (Tax)

His appointment is linked to his position as Chief Financial Officer.

ExEcuTIvE BOARD MEMBER AnD AcTInG cHIEF ExEcuTIvE OFFIcER - 
Mr JS Mkwanazi 
Mr Sipho Mkwanazi was appointed as Acting Chief Executive Officer in November 2009. 

He possesses the following academic qualifications:

 • BSc

 • MBL

 • Total Quality Management (TQM) Programme

 • MSc (with specialisation in Project Management) 

His appointment is linked to his position as Acting Chief Executive Officer.



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 2013 13

Chief Executive Officer

chief Audit Executive

General Manager

Acquisition

General Manager

Quality

General Manager

Human 
Resources

Chief  
Information 

Officer

General Manager

Research and 
Development

General Manager

Corporate 
Compliance

General Manager

Marketing 
and Business 
Development

General Manager

Dockyard

General Manager

Corporate Finance  
and CFO

Senior Manager

Strategy and 
Planning

ExECUTiVE MANAGEMENT

ExECUTiVE MANAGEMENT – CHiEf ExECUTiVE OffiCER 

The main function of the chief executive officer is the overall management of the organisation. In undertaking these 

responsibilities, the CEO is supported by an executive management structure, referred to as the Management Board. All 

departments are represented at this level. 

MANAGEMENT BOARD STRUCTURE
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AcTInG cHIEF ExEcuTIvE OFFIcER - Mr JS Mkwanazi 

Mr Mkwanazi was appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer in November 2009. Before his 
appointment to this position, he was General Manager: Quality and Information Technology from  
1 January 2006 and thereafter General Manager: Acquisition.

He possesses the following academic qualifications:

 • BSc

 • MBL

 • Total Quality Management (TQM) Programme

 • MSc (with specialisation in Project Management) 

AcTInG GEnERAL MAnAGER: AcQuISITIOn - Mr D Griesel

Mr Griesel was appointed as Acting General Manager: Acquisition in November 2009. His academic 
qualifications include the following: 

 • BSc. Eng (Electronic)

 • B Eng (Hons) (Electronic)

 • Pr. Eng

 • AEP (Unisa)

GEnERAL MAnAGER: cORPORATE FInAncE – Mr J G Grobler 

Mr Grobler was appointed to his current position on 1 August 2008. His academic qualifications 
include the following: 

 • CA (SA)

 • MBL 

 • M.Com (Tax)

GEnERAL MAnAGER: DOcKYARD - Mr T T Goduka 

Mr Goduka was appointed on 1 April 2003. His academic qualifications include the following: 

 • B Eng (Hons) (Mechanical)

 • Post-Graduate Diploma in Business Management

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd
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GEnERAL MAnAGER: RESEARcH AnD DEvELOPMEnT - Mr LR Mathieson 

Mr Mathieson was appointed as Genereal Manager: Research and Development on 1 February 
2013. His academic qualifications include the following: 

 • BSc Eng (Electronics)

 • MBL 

He resigned as General Manager: Research and Development in July 2013.

GEnERAL MAnAGER: cORPORATE cOMPLIAncE – Adv. cvv Ramphele 

Advocate Ramphele was appointed to this position in March 2013.

Her academic qualifications include the following:   

 • B.Juris

 • LLB

 • Bar Examination (Society of Advocates)

AcTInG GEnERAL MAnAGER: ARMScOR DEFEncE InSTITuTES (ADI) -  
Mr K Hanafey 

Mr Hanafey was appointed on 1 July 1986. He was appointed as Acting General Manager: Armscor 
Defence Institutes in April 2009 until February 2013. 

His academic qualifications include the following:   

 • B Eng (Mechanical)

 • Pr. Eng

GEnERAL MAnAGER: LOGISTIcS AnD MATÉRIEL SuPPORT – Ms nRM Borotho 

Ms Borotho was appointed on 1 September 2004. Her academic qualifications include the 
following: 

 • BCom

 • Management Development Programme 

She resigned in September 2012.
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GEnERAL MAnAGER: HuMAn RESOuRcES - Mr SP Mbada 

Mr Mbada was appointed on 1 September 2009. 

His academic qualifications include the following:

 • B Juris

 • BA (Hons)

 • MAP

 • LLB

GEnERAL MAnAGER: MARKETInG AnD BuSInESS DEvELOPMEnT - Ms JL Mzili 

Ms Mzili was appointed to this position in March 2013. Her academic qualifications include the 
following:

 • Master in Business Administration

 • BCom (Hons) in Business Management

 • BCom

 • Certificate in Strategic Management

 • Certificate in Financial Performance Measurement and Control

AcTInG GEnERAL MAnAGER: QuALITY - Ms RH Ramgolam  

Ms Ramgolam was appointed as Acting General Manager: Quality and Information Technology on  
27 May 2011. 

Her academic qualifications include the following: 

 • BSC Chemical Engineering

 • MSc in Management (Defence Acquisition) 

 • MSc in Software Engineering

 • Executive National Security Programme (ENSP 20/09)

cHIEF InFORMATIOn OFFIcER - Mr L Keyise  

Mr Keyise was appointed as Chief Information Officer in February 2013.  His  academic 
qualifications include the following: 

 • Master in Computer Science

 • BSc (Hons) Computer Science

 • EDP
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ACQUiSiTiON

One of the core functions of Armscor is to acquire defence 

matériel, primarily for the South African National Defence 

Force (SANDF), but also for other government departments 

and services, with permission from the Minister of Defence 

and Military Veterans. 

The acquisition role of Armscor entails all the actions that 

need to be taken to satisfy the need for matériel, facilities or 

services intended for use in support of client requirements. 

This includes long-term operational research, requirements 

analysis, establishment and the management of technology 

development, design and development of products and 

product systems, the industrialisation and manufacturing 

of mature products and product systems that fully meet 

the stated user requirements, as well as the acquisition of 

system support for the user systems during the operational 

lifetime of the systems and the eventual disposal of obsolete 

or redundant matériel. 

During the acquisition of systems that have a foreign 

component above the prescribed threshold, Armscor also 

manages the Defence Industrial Participation activities that 

result from the obligations of the foreign suppliers.

ARMSCOR DEfENCE iNSTiTUTES  
(PTY) LTD 

Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Limited (ADI) is a wholly 

owned subsidiary of Armscor and is mandated to maintain 

strategic facilities and essential defence capabilities and 

technologies as identified by the Department of Defence. 

These strategic facilities are structured into two groups, 

namely the Defence Science and Technology Institutes, 

which house the research and development facilities, and 

the Test and Evaluation Centres, which are responsible 

for rendering comprehensive testing and evaluation 

services in the military and in some instances in the civilian 

environments.

NAVAL DOCKYARD 

Armscor manages and operates the Naval Dockyard as 

the SA Navy’s (SAN) third-line maintenance and refitting 

authority. The Dockyard focuses on maintaining the required 

capabilities to support the nation’s submarines, ships and 

shore-based support facilities.

It executes activities such as planned preventative 

maintenance, corrective maintenance, reconstruction and 

repairs, as well as upgrades to and modernisation of the  

SAN’s vessels (ships and submarines). The Dockyard remains 

focused and committed to its role of maintaining the SAN’s 

vessels economically, efficiently and cost-effectively.

SUPPORT fUNCTiONS 

 • Human Resources 

The Human Resources Department provides 

leadership in the implementation and administration 

of sound human resources policies, procedures 

and programmes that support Armscor’s statutory 

mandate. 

 • Defence Industry Support and Logistics Support 

Armscor is responsible for providing an integrated 

defence industry support function, which entails 

facilitation of the participation of the South African 

Defence Industry (SADI) at international defence 

exhibitions and the management of requests for 

the utilisation of SANDF equipment, personnel and 

facilities for marketing SADI products and services/

capabilities. 

 • Quality 

The Quality Department provides quality services 

to Armscor and other clients. Functions that used to  

reside in this department were diverse, as they 

included quality management, information 

technology, arms control, security, broad-
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based black economic empowerment (BBBEE) 

and safety, health and environment (SHE). 

The department was re-structured from  

1 February 2013 to separate the information 

technology function, which now reports to the newly 

appointed Chief Information Officer (CIO). Also, the 

arms control and BBBEE functions were moved to the 

newly formed Corporate Compliance Department.

 • Information Technology 

The Information Technology (IT) department 

provides information technology services to Armscor. 

In addition, the department is responsible for the 

maintenance of the infrastructure and for operational 

procurement activities required by the organisation.

 • Corporate Finance

The core function of the Corporate Finance 

department is to provide strategic and day-to-day 

financial services in support of the execution of the 

mandate and to meet external and internal financial 

reporting requirements. 

 • Corporate Compliance

The Armscor compliance function is aimed at 

discharging the Corporation’s responsibility to comply 

with applicable statutory, regulatory and policy 

requirements. This is done through incorporating 

compliance principles in all existing processes 

throughout the Corporation and monitoring and 

reporting on the compliance risk. The Compliance 

Department includes in particular Legal Services, BEE 

Facilitation Services, Security Services, Arms Control 

Compliance and the Procurement Secretariat. 
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iNTRODUCTiON

In our Annual Report for the previous reporting period, 

we made observations about the erosion of Armscor’s 

institutional capacity to meet its legislated mandate as set 

out in the Armscor Act. We reported that we had embarked 

on a strategic course to break away from this untenable 

situation. We further reported that we had restructured the 

way the Board functions, we had created new committees 

and had begun to challenge the way things were being 

done regarding Departmental Industrial Participation (DIP), 

transformation, foreign ownership of SA defence companies, 

reluctance to implement employment equity and broad 

based black economic empowerment (BBBEE).

During the period under review, we took stock of the 

defence environment generally and in particular studied 

how comparable countries have approached the issues 

that occupy our agenda, such as India, Malaysia, Indonesia 

and Brazil, and have observed how they improved their 

defence manufacturing capabilities over time, as well as 

the important role that dual-use technologies played in 

their competitiveness.  We have also taken stock of the 

influence of governments in the setting up and running 

of multinationals involved in the defence sector and how 

this could influence our ability to maintain strategic and 

sovereign capabilities necessary for the defence of the 

Republic. We have further considered our role as an arms 

acquisition entity and technology advisor to our client, 

the Department of Defence, and the role that South Africa 

plays in multilateral groupings such as the SADC, AU, BRICS 

and IBSA. All these are factors which, considered within the 

context of our national consciousness, led us to the crafting 

and implementation of our strategy, about which we now 

report.

DEPARTMENTAL iNDUSTRiAL 
PARTiCiPATiON

In the previous financial year, we reported that a virtual DIP 

market had developed as a result of the offset obligations 

that foreign companies attract in South Africa. During the 

period under review, we took a policy decision that as a DIP 

obligation is part of the supply contract, non-compliance 

with the DIP obligation goes to the heart of the contract 

itself. This means that if the DIP contract is not adhered 

to satisfactorily, the supply contract is put at risk. This is 

CHAiRMAN’S REPORT
LT GEn (RET) MAOMELA MORETI MOTAu
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because we see the DIP benefits as having financial value 

that accrues to the taxpayer and must therefore be managed 

with the same amount of prudence as State funds. In order 

to manage the DIP properly, we no longer allow the creation 

and maintenance of the so-called DIP market or DIP bank. 

Furthermore, DIP must be aimed at the area of expertise 

of the DIP obligator. This means that DIP obligators cannot 

choose where they wish to discharge their DIP obligation,  as 

this may be of no real benefit to the South African defence 

industry and its required capabilities. We have also taken a 

policy decision to the effect that ownership of intellectual 

property (IP) that had been acquired  using funds arising 

from DIP credits should be verified and accounted for, that 

clear requirements must be put to DIP beneficiaries on 

how the DIP benefits could  be used for the benefit of the 

country, that only South African companies may benefit 

from the discharge of DIP obligations, and that the BBBEE 

status of DIP beneficiaries should be verified and must 

conform to South African law. Once again, we do this fully 

cognisant of the fact that DIP has monetary value in the 

hands of the beneficiary.  Its effects must therefore be felt 

within the South African defence environment generally 

and must benefit the public. We are pleased to report that as 

a result of these policy interventions, MBDA has undertaken 

to provide Denel with a test bench for missile technology. 

This is a real benefit to the Republic in that we will be in a 

position to cut out all the logistical, financial, compliance 

and administrative costs of having our missiles serviced 

elsewhere. We will be providing more such examples of our 

interventions in the next reporting period.

iNTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

In the previous financial year, we reported that Armscor was 

reliant mainly on a transfer payment for funding and did not 

actively exploit other sources of revenue, such as royalties 

for IP. 

We have taken policy measures to deal with this by ensuring 

that all IP is audited and recorded in an IP register and that 

whenever we are requested to allow the use of defence IP, 

such IP must be valued and royalties must be paid for its 

use. Consequently, we were able to ensure that when Denel 

entered into a transaction with the United Arab Emirates 

Tawazun seeking to use IP developed by RSA State funds, 

this resulted in financial value accruing to the Republic in 

the form of royalties and other benefits. We will continue 

on this path not only because we are enjoined by law to do 

so, but also because it is the right thing to do. Our national 

consciousness would not allow otherwise.

fOREiGN MAJORiTY OwNERSHiP 
iN SOUTH AfRiCAN DEfENCE 
COMPANiES

In the previous financial year, we expressed our concerns 

about the ownership of South African companies, by foreign 

companies as we thought that this had a potentially negative 

impact on our ability to obtain defence supplies and 

maintain technology to meet the requirements of the armed 

forces. In addition, we identified South African companies 

which provide strategic technologies to the country, but 

are at risk of closing down owing to unfavourable economic 

conditions. We have begun providing them with support 

through the provision of orders.

fiNANCiNG THE CORPORATiON

In the previous financial year, we reported the need to apply 

a service charge for the services we render to our clients, 

as per section 5 (2) (g) of the Armscor Act. During the year 

under review, this matter received high-level attention 

between Armscor and all its clients. 

iNDUSTRY SUPPORT

During the year under review, we hosted the Africa 

Aerospace and Defence (AAD) 2012. For the first time the 

event was broadcast on AM Live, SABC 2.  In her opening 

address the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans stated 

that “the AAD has now established itself as a landmark event 
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contracting method used was one where a main contractor/

system integrator would be appointed. This meant that 

the main contractor would choose who to involve as sub-

contractors in the delivery process, determine whether such 

sub-contractors complied with BBBEE/employment equity 

or any other South African requirements, where and how to 

source sub-components of the system and where to spend 

the bulk of the funds made available to it in terms of the 

contract. 

This approach is mechanistic in nature, has the capacity 

to stifle development and maintenance of South African 

capabilities and may make the country unduly reliant on 

external service providers. We do not think such a posture 

aligns with government’s local job creation, industrialisation 

and manufacturing requirements.

Other issues that came under close scrutiny in respect of 

acquisitions during the year under review were handling 

fees payable by us for services and products, the making of 

advance payments to suppliers, pricing, supplier capability 

and suppliers working at risk. Through our acquisition 

decisions, we have sought to ensure that all monies 

payable in the acquisition process are managed effectively, 

economically and efficiently, as we are required to do by law.

EMPLOYMENT EQUiTY AND 
BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMiC 
EMPOwERMENT 

During the previous reporting period, we mentioned that 

we were concerned about the lack of transformation of the 

defence industry. We noted the need to act against those 

who stall or frustrate government initiatives to create a more 

inclusive economy and the propagation of technological 

knowledge and production capacity among the people of 

South Africa. During the year under review, we have taken a 

policy decision that ensures that all economic empowerment 

laws are complied with. 

in the calendar of both the Department of Defence and the 

Defence Industry as a whole”. 

We are pleased to report that the exhibition also grew 

exponentially compared to the previous one: the number 

of exhibitors grew from 256 to 347, national pavilions grew 

from 7 to 15, and the number of trade visitors grew from 

18  737 to 25  573, while the number of visiting countries 

grew from 59 to 101. 

Even against this backdrop of apparent success, we have 

taken a serious look at the proper organisation of this 

exhibition. We are satisfied that there is room to take it to 

the next level. As part of lessons learned we are considering 

the best way of hosting the 2014 exhibition and we are 

engaging all our stakeholders in a constructive conversation 

in this regard. 

We will further improve the exhibition in future by 

showcasing our small, micro and medium enterprises 

(SMMEs) in order to expand the participation of all South 

Africans in the show and in the defence industry generally. It 

is also our intention to grow the exhibition to attract African 

countries to join Namibia, which was an exhibitor at the 

2012 exhibition.

We have taken other initiatives in fulfilment of our legislated 

mandate to provide support to the South African Defence 

Industry. In this regard, we have begun an audit of all South 

African companies and their subsuppliers with a view to 

determining their contribution to the value chain that 

supports our armed forces. We intend to identify all those 

companies that are critical in this regard and to find ways 

of ensuring that they remain able to provide much needed 

services to our armed forces.

CONTRACTiNG METHODS

As stated above, one of our biggest concerns as a board is 

the exclusion of SMME’s and South African companies in 

the acquisition of main combat systems. In the past, the 
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to appreciating the shareholder’s perspective in the proper 

running of Armscor and will continue to be available to the 

Minister on any matter in which she may require Armscor to 

provide input.

PORTfOLiO COMMiTTEE ON 
DEfENCE/DEfENCE REViEw 
COMMiTTEE

The Portfolio Committee on Defence has remained a trusted 

overseer of our work. During the year under review, we were 

delighted by the opportunity to host an oversight visit by 

members of the Committee. We hope to have many more 

such visits, which enable the Committee to see the strategic 

importance of our work. We also met the Defence Review 

Committee and made inputs into their work as an interested 

stakeholder.

CONCLUSiON

Finally, I as chairman should thank all those who have 

contributed to the attainment of our goals for the year. These 

include the Board itself, management, staff, our clients and 

suppliers. We look forward to another year of good work. 

On BEHALF OF:

LT GEn (RET) M MOTAu

cHAIRMAn

THE BOARD

During its second year in office, the Board has remained 

steadfast in its commitment to Armscor and the latter’s role 

in the development and growth of South Africa’s economy. 

The Board is aware of the requirements of the National 

Development Plan (NDP), which states that:

 • South African needs to grow an inclusive economy, 

building capabilities and enhancing the capacity of 

the State;

 • the economy is unsustainably resource intensive; 

therefore, critical capabilities are needed to transform 

the economy and society;

 • science and technology must continue to 

revolutionise the way goods and services are 

produced and traded;

 • South Africa needs to use its knowledge and 

innovative products to compete and further needs 

to sharpen its innovative edge and continue 

contributing to global scientific and technological 

advancement; and

 • we must facilitate cooperation between public 

science and technology institutions in the private 

sector.

The Board believes that the implementation of the Armscor 

strategy as explained above is fully aligned with the 

requirements of the NDP. The Board will keep engaging with 

all the stakeholders in this regard, understanding that it is 

only through collective effort that we can all achieve more.

THE SHAREHOLDER

The Board is grateful to the shareholder, ably represented 

by Minister Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula, for providing much 

needed support, understanding, leadership and guidance 

through some of the more taxing periods we experienced 

during the year under review. The Board remains committed 
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iNTRODUCTiON 

As I look at the developments since the last reporting period, 

I am pleased to report on what Armscor has achieved, and 

am more optimistic about Armscor’s outlook for an equally 

promising future. 

As a world-class acquisition agency of the Department 

of Defence, and in line with the Armscor Act, Armscor 

has successfully fulfilled its mandate, which includes the 

acquisition and maintenance of defence matériel, research 

and evaluation, as well as acquiring goods and services 

required by other government departments as approved 

by the Minister of Defence. Armscor has consistently carried 

out its activities in an efficient and cost-effective manner. 

Customer satisfaction is the hallmark by which Armscor 

measures its performance and holds itself, as do its clients, 

to the highest standards of quality. These values have 

ensured that Armscor earns the trust of its clients along the 

way. It is important for the Corporation to brand and deliver 

a service that is commensurate with its vision of being a 

premier defence acquisition agency of choice, based on its 

experience, commitment to quality and integrity. 

Armscor continued to implement and communicate its 

strategy. With clearer strategic vision as encapsulated in 

the strategy, Armscor has established a foundation from 

which the Corporation can accomplish even greater things. 

The strategy has reinforced Armscor’s mandate and has 

brought about greater efficiency in the manner in which the 

Corporation operates. 

The new organisational structure and strategic 

implementation plan are aligned with the repositioning 

strategy. The structure was aimed at promoting the 

effectiveness and efficiency of the organisation. All the 

vacancies which existed at executive management level 

were filled. 

Enhancing Armscor’s capabilities is an important thrust 

to ensure that the organisation stays relevant and is 

able to meet the client’s requirements even better. To 

improve effectiveness and efficiencies, the information 

communication technology (ICT) strategy was approved 

and will be implemented in the new financial year. 

fOREwORD

BY THE ACTiNG CHiEf ExECUTiVE OffiCER
MR JS MKWAnAZI
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PERfORMANCE REViEw - 
HiGHLiGHTS AND CHALLENGES 

Armscor performed satisfactorily in the 2012/13 financial 

year. I am delighted to share some of the developments that 

took place and the achievements that were registered in the 

year under review.

In the main, Armscor achieved most of the corporate goals, 

while those not achieved were achieved later than planned. 

In some instances the goals had to be reviewed. 

During the period under review Armscor made significant 

progress in terms of its BBBEE status. Armscor is proud to 

report an achievement of Level 3 BBBEE status compared to 

Level 7 for the previous financial year. A great achievement, 

indeed! This rating recognises Armscor’s efforts in strongly 

changing the Corporation to not only comply with legislative 

requirements, but also bring about substantial and visible 

transformation to an organisation that was perceived as non-

progressive and non-reformist. This achievement establishes 

a solid base and poses a challenge to the organisation to 

ensure that it makes a concerted effort to maintain this level. 

(I) CORPORATE GOALS ACHIEVEMENT

Contracts placed under the Capital Defence Matériel 

Acquisition category were all achieved. All contractual 

payments made exceeded the planned targets. Contracts 

placed under the Special Defence Packages (SDP) met 

the targets and all contract payments made exceeded the 

targets set. 

Under Operational Funding, which relates to maintenance 

and support, the target relating to orders was not met. 

However, the contract payments exceeded targets. 

Most of the projects under the SDPs are in the maintenance 

phase. Other capital projects are mainly in the development 

phase, and a few in the manufacturing phase. The major 

spending has been is in the development phase. 

Landwards still remains a focus, despite insufficient funding. 

The focus for the SANDF is to equip the Army, hence the 

increase in landwards programmes. 

(II) FINANCE 

Because of the restructuring of the organisation, Armscor 

has undertaken a valuation of its land and buildings, which 

then resulted in an improvement of R1 083,7 million. 

The net financial result from operations of the Group shows 

a surplus of R84,6 million, compared to R70,2 million for the 

previous financial year, which was influenced by various 

factors as reflected in the financial report. 

(III) ACQUISITION  

During the past financial year Armscor has spent  

R5,9 billion on acquisition programmes for the Department 

of Defence (DOD). Armscor, together with the DOD, 

undertook a review of the acquisition process with the aim 

of identifying measures to improve the year-end spending 

and to reduce the roll-over. A number of improvement 

initiatives have been identified and Armscor will implement 

those initiatives that fall within its domain.

(IV) ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES 

Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Limited (ADI) is a wholly 

owned subsidiary of Armscor. ADI undertakes research and 

development and also maintains strategic facilities.

Research and development were hallmarks of success 

during the year under review, to ensure that Armscor 

remains relevant and is at the cutting edge of technology. 

The performance report of ADI processes will allude 

to all of the research-related programmes undertaken.  

Owing to efficient business processes, ADI has realised an 

improvement in income and cost recovery. 

A sales increase of 2,6% was achieved for ADI as a result of 

growth in the international market.
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Ninety scientists and engineers have been selected to be 

successors to key positions identified in accordance with the 

corporate succession plan. 

Armscor also managed to achieve a staff turnover of 

2% compared to 2,37% for the previous financial year in 

technical positions, excluding retirements. 

(VII) COMPLIANCE 

Over and above the compliance matters that were 

mentioned earlier in my report, once again Armscor has 

lived up to its values and has subscribed to principles of 

good governance. The Auditor-General has scrutinised our 

work and in the past 12 years we have obtained a clean audit 

with no qualification, another commendable achievement 

on which Armscor prides itself.

(VIII) CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT 

In the South African context, corporate social investment 

has a pivotal role to play in bringing about meaningful 

transformation to the benefit of all. The social needs 

facing our country are substantial and it is a moral duty 

for organisations such as Armscor to make a difference by 

supporting projects that benefit historically disadvantaged 

sectors of our society. 

With corporate social investment becoming ever more 

strategically focused, it makes sense for Armscor to align 

its corporate social investment spending with its core 

objectives and imperatives. 

Armscor actively supports corporate social investment 

initiatives that encourage education in mathematics, science 

and technology. 

Armscor also supports employee programmes, which 

involve community volunteer work, and encourage all 

employees to experience the personal rewards of giving 

their time and talents. 

Furthermore, in fulfilling the defence technology 

development, research, test and evaluation requirements of 

the DOD, ADI exceeded its targeted 90% objective by 5,5%. 

(V) DOCkYARD 

The Dockyard has reasonably met its obligation of providing 

a maintenance and repair service to the South African Navy, 

despite the challenges of insufficient funding. Vessel repair 

and maintenance were concluded within the mutually 

agreed scope of work.

The Dockyard achieved an ISO9001:2008 certification.

While additional funding of R30,6 million was injected 

into the Dockyard, the challenge emanating from 

insufficient capability and infrastructure renewal persists. 

A modernisation study is being undertaken to improve the 

efficiencies of the Dockyard.

(VI) HUMAN RESOURCES 

Human capital plays a pivotal role in Armscor’s achievement 

of its organisational goals and remains the most valuable 

asset for Armscor. Transformation continues to be a key 

focus for the Corporation, in particular improving gender 

equality. 

Armscor is proud to report that there has been a significant 

improvement in gender appointments, especially technical 

appointments. Two female executive appointments were 

made. 

Skills development is key for the Corporation, owing 

to the nature of its business. In this regard, additional 

interventions have been implemented to ensure that 

Armscor retains critical skills. During the year, 24 additional 

black professionally qualified and experienced specialists 

and middle managers were appointed. 
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To all other stakeholders I wish to express appreciation for 

their support and assistance in the past year in helping 

Armscor to render an excellent service to all its clients.

Thank you 

MR JS MKWAnAZI 

AcTInG cHIEF ExEcuTIvE OFFIcER 

 ACKNOwLEDGEMENTS 

On behalf of the Management Board, I extend our gratitude 

to our shareholder, the Minister of Defence and Military 

Veterans, Ms Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula, and the Deputy 

Minister, Mr Thabang Makwetla, for their support and 

guidance to Armscor. Our gratitude goes to the officials of 

the DOD for their support to Armscor during the reporting 

period. We assure them of our support and commitment. 

A special word of appreciation to the Parliamentary 

Portfolio Committee on Defence and Military Veterans. The 

Committee’s guidance and oversight role is appreciated. 

My heartfelt thanks to the Armscor Board of Directors 

for its leadership, counsel and judicious support. The 

professionalism in discharging their responsibilities and 

the sacrifice they made in making themselves available 

to attend to organisational matters during the year under 

review are much appreciated. 

I thank and congratulate the Management Board for the 

splendid contribution to the success of the organisation, and 

on the ethos that is evident at all levels of the Corporation’s 

business operations and the progress made during the year 

under review. 

Thank you to Armscor employees, who dedicated their 

work to excellence. All of this could not have been achieved 

without your hard work. I therefore encourage all of us to 

set high goals for ourselves and to experience the joy of 

innovation and a sense of growth through change. 
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1. ACQUiSiTiON

One of the core functions of Armscor is to acquire defence 

matériel and related services, primarily for the South 

African National Defence Force (SANDF), but also for other 

government departments and services, with permission 

from the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans.

The acquisition role of Armscor entails all the actions that 

need to be taken to satisfy the client’s need for matériel, 

facilities or services. This includes operational research, 

requirements analysis, technology development, design 

and development of products, as well as the industrialisation 

and manufacturing of products that fully meet the stated 

user requirements. After equipment has been taken into 

operational use by the SANDF, Armscor is furthermore 

responsible to contract industry for the maintenance of the 

equipment.

Approximately 50% of the total business of the Acquisition 

Department entails projects or programmes aimed at the 

development of complex systems that meet the stated 

user’s requirements of the SANDF. During the execution of 

these projects a formal and robust risk-reduction process 

is followed, which eventually leads to the contracting of 

suitable suppliers to develop and manufacture the products 

or product systems. The acquisition process concludes 

with the delivery of mature, fully qualified and supportable 

products or products systems to the SANDF. 

Subsequent to taking into service by the SANDF of a number 

of new products systems, both from the Strategic Defence 

Packages (SDP) and other acquisition programmes, the 

maintenance and support portfolio being handled by 

Armscor has been growing steadily over the past number 

of years. The growth in support-related work, combined 

with a decline in project-related activities because of the 

SDP programmes coming to an end, has resulted in the 

Acquisition Department having to review the manpower 

allocation to the various activities in its portfolio.

1.1 STATUS OF ACQUISITION 
OBjECTIVES

To enhance its skills base, Armscor has embarked on a 

process of accelerated training of technical acquisition 

personnel. A number of technical personnel were enrolled 

in focused contact courses on systems engineering and 

project management. In addition, a number of in-house 

computer-based training courses and modules have been 

developed that are focused specifically on the competencies 

required by personnel in the various sub-disciplines within 

the acquisition environment.

Various bouquets of training modules have also been 

developed to assist with the fast-tracking of new entrants 

into the acquisition environment. These bouquets of 

training modules form part of the development contracts 

of new programme managers and administrative personnel, 

and provide an essential introduction to the specific unique 

military environment and culture. The training modules 

also serve to provide new acquisition personnel with an 

introduction to the complex acquisition and contracting 

processes.

During the review period, the acquisition function fully met 

its objective to become totally self-sufficient with respect 

to systems and logistics engineering support. Over the past 

three years a number of technical personnel have been 

trained specifically in the fields of systems and logistics 

engineering under the mentorship of experienced senior 

personnel. All systems engineering support to acquisition 

programmes is now being provided by resources from 

within the department, and excellent results have been 

achieved to date. 

REViEw Of OPERATiONS
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1.2 ACQUISITION FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE

An important objective of the acquisition function remains 

the achievement of planned commitment and expenditure 

of DOD funds. Achievement of all planned cash flow within 

any particular financial year depends on many factors, such 

as the timeous receipt of requirements from the DOD, the 

efficiency of internal Armscor processes to place contracts 

for the identified requirements, and the ability and capacity 

of industry to deliver contracted outputs on time.

At the end of the 2012/13 financial year, Armscor paid 63% of 

the revised baseline (i.e. total funds available for contracting), 

compared to 72% in the previous financial year; 89% of the 

revised baseline was contracted at the end of the financial 

year, as opposed to 94% at the end of the preceding financial 

year. This decline in contracting and actual spending can 

be attributed mainly to late receipt of requirements from 

the DOD, delays in the Armscor tendering and contracting 

process, and the inability of industry to deliver contracted 

systems within the financial year. 

During the review period, Armscor, together with the DOD, 

undertook a review of the acquisition process with the aim 

of identifying measures to improve the year-end spending 

and to reduce the roll-over. A number of improvement 

initiatives have been identified, and Armscor will implement 

those initiatives that fall within its domain. 

In the same period, the acquisition function managed 

to achieve and exceed its target of 90% year-end 

spending against the planned spending for the year by a  

significant margin. 

Strict baseline management and more formalised 

requirements reviews on all acquisition projects are yielding 

very positive results. This initiative, which forms part of 

the drive to re-emphasise technical assurance as part of 

the acquisition function, is producing benefits in terms of 

exposing project risks and integration issues and has led 

to the introduction of several measures to strengthen the 

capability of integrated project teams on ground level.

In the year under review, the acquisition documentation 

structure, comprising the Acquisition Policy and all 

subservient practices and procedures was reviewed. The 

new and improved documentation structure has moved 

away from unique practices and procedures for project 

and business management, and standardised industry 

practices have been adopted and tailored to the Armscor 

environment. This approach leads to a more integrated 

understanding of the execution of work between role players. 

It also minimises duplication and improves utilisation of 

standardised training programmes. The updated Acquisition 

Policy has been completed, and all practices and procedures 

will be completed before the end of the first half of the new 

financial year.

A comprehensive industry survey was conducted to 

determine the viability and sustainability of strategic 

capabilities in the local defence industry. The results will 

be finalised so as to allow Armscor to be in a position to 

make informed decisions on the extent of work required 

to maintain the identified strategic capabilities within the 

industry. 
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The graph below reflects the year-end spending planned versus spending achieved in the three main categories, namely 

capital acquisition, operating procurement and the SDP programmes.

Capital
Acquisition

Special
Defence

Acquisition

Operating
Funds

Total

Planned Cashflow 1 521.07 665.35 3 868.68 6 055.10

Actual Cashflow 1 498.43 617.80 3 753.21 5 869.44
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Cash Flow Achieved for 2012/13 year-end spending

1.3 ACQUISITION HIGHLIGHTS

1.3.1 MARiTiME SYSTEMS

1.3.1.1  Class 209 Mod 1400 Submarines

Following the delivery and commissioning of three 

submarines, the project emphasis shifted towards the 

implementation of a number of engineering changes in 

order to meet operational, safety and support related 

requirements, which had been omitted from the original 

contract owing to budget restrictions at the time. The 

fulfilment of these engineering changes has, at this stage, 

virtually been completed, with the notable exceptions listed 

below.

•• A submarine escape training facility located in the 

Simon’s Town Naval Base. The construction of this 

facility is under the management of the Department 

of Public Works (DPW) and is financed by the project. 

DPW has resolved to complete the facility before the 

project termination date of September 2013.

•• A speed log calibration facility to be utilised on board 

the submarines. This facility has been completed 

and is awaiting the availability of a submarine so as 

to carry out the final on-board qualification during 

a sea trial. This event is scheduled to take place in  

April 2013.

1.3.2 AiRBORNE SYSTEMS

1.3.2.1 Light Utility Helicopters
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The Light Utility Helicopter Project entails the acquisition 

of 30 Agusta A109 light utility helicopters from Agusta 

Westland in Italy. All 30 helicopters ordered have been 

delivered and updated to the latest production standard.

A cabin-mounted gun, improvements to the communication 

system and cabin rails and tie-downs were implemented 

during the financial year.

1.3.2.2 Advanced Light Fighter Aircraft

This programme entails the acquisition of 26 SAAB JAS 39 

Gripen advanced light fighter aircraft from BAE Systems/

SAAB consortium. The assembly of the aircraft will take place 

at Linkoping, Sweden.

All nine dual seat aircraft and the seventeen single-seat 

aircraft have been delivered to the South African Air Force. 

The integration of the A-Darter Missile and Reconnaissance 

Pod onto the South African Gripen aircraft was completed 

and it was delivered in November 2012.  

1.3.2.3 Lead-in Fighter Trainer Aircraft

This programme provides for the acquisition of 24 Hawk 120 

lead-in fighter trainer (LIFT) aircraft from BAE Systems in the 

UK. The LIFT aircraft are primarily used as lead-in trainers 

during the progression of pilots from their initial flying 

training on Pilatus Astra trainers to the Gripen Advanced 

Light Fighter Aircraft

The operational flight trainer has been upgraded to the 

Operational Capability four (final) baseline and is now at the 

same standard as the fleet. The Hawk fleet exceeded 10 000 

flying hours in October 2012.
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After some delays in the development phase of the project, 

the development of the avionics upgrade of the Oryx 

helicopter was completed at the end of the review period. 

The Military Airworthiness Board issued an interim Type 

Certificate for the upgraded helicopter, and the embodiment 

of the modifications on the first four helicopters is 

progressing well.

1.3.2.6  New Generation Short Range Air-to-

Air Missile

This project entails the development of the A-Darter short-

range air-to-air missile system, co-funded by the Brazilian Air 

Force (FAB).

The project has experienced acute pressure on both 

schedule and cost to completion of the development of the 

missile. A delay of approximately 18 months in the planned 

project schedule was experienced. The delay was a result of 

technical problems encountered during the second round 

of guided firing tests, which were subsequently found 

to emanate from limitations in the seeker section of the 

missile. A high-level technical review by senior Armscor 

personnel was undertaken to determine the maturity of the 

missile development, the extent of the technical problems, 

the identification of possible technical risk areas and the 

proposed methods and solutions to overcome any identified 

problems. 

During the reporting period, a series of successful seeker-in-

pod flight tests was conducted, which indicated that the 

seeker head, which had always been the greatest risk area, 

had now reached an acceptable level of maturity. 

1.3.2.4 Rooivalk Combat Support 

Helicopters

The entire fleet of Rooivalk helicopters was upgraded to the 

Mk1 baseline during the review period, and were delivered 

to 16 Squadron. This completes the development of the 

Rooivalk helicopter, and the fleet is now ready for operational 

deployment.

A depot level support capability was established to provide 

for all required maintenance and support of the aircraft. 

1.3.2.5 Oryx Medium Transport Helicopter: 

Communications and Navigation 

System Upgrade
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1.3.3 LANDwARD SYSTEMS

1.3.3.1 Ground-based Air Defence System 

for the SA Army

After four years’ delay during the initial development phase, 

owing to unforeseen technical challenges, the local warning 

segment of the new ground based air defence system 

(GBADS) has been successfully completed and has entered 

the operational test and qualification and commissioning 

phase at the Air Defence Formation of the South African 

Army. Armscor is supporting the commissioning phase by 

providing interim support to the system until it has been 

fully commissioned and handed over for operational service. 

The system has been successfully deployed during force 

preparation exercises by the South African Army.

Phase two of the GBADS programme, which entails 

the upgrading of the fire-control system of the 35 mm  

anti-aircraft guns, has commenced. 

1.3.3.2  New Generation Infantry Combat 

Vehicle

This project provides for a complete New Generation Infantry 

Combat Vehicle Products System (NGICV-PS) to replace the 

Ratel infantry combat vehicle that has been in service since 

1976.  The project essentially comprises five combat variants, 

including their logistic support and ammunition. The vehicle 

platforms are designed and developed in Finland, while 

turrets weapon systems are developed locally by Denel Land 

Systems (DLS) as the prime contractor.

Although the project has been delayed by approximately  

18 months owing to technical delays, technical risks have 

been mitigated and negotiations on a further production 

phase could commence. 

The locally developed 30 mm Camgun is undergoing 

final environmental test and evaluation before the 

commencement of integrated turret tests. The development 

of the 30 mm ammunition by Denel (PMP) was completed 

successfully.

The advanced development model (ADM) turret of the 

mortar variant was completed in December 2012, and 

testing of this turret was still ongoing at the end of the 

review period. 

Manufacturing of the ADM turret of the missile variant 

was completed in January 2013, and testing commenced 

in February 2013. Development of an insensitive  
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munition-compliant missile will be further explored during 

the next two years.

1.3.4 COMMON wEAPON SYSTEMS

1.3.4.1  New Generation Tactical 

Communication System

This project addresses the acquisition of a complete 

new generation tactical communication system for the 

SANDF. This system will make provision for all tactical 

communication requirements for all arms of service and will 

ensure interoperability between all users.  

The communication system encompasses state of the 

art transmission and information security techniques, 

while incorporating semi real-time data link performance 

characteristics as well as digital voice communication. 

Development of the various elements of this system is 

progressing well, and this will result in the first tactical 

communications system in the world that will entail a family 

of products that will provide complete interoperability 

between all elements of the battlefield (air force, army, navy, 

etc.) without making use of gateways or protocol converters.

Development and industrialisation of the four major 

subsystems, high frequency (HF) radio system, the Very/

Ultra High Frequency (V/UHF) radio system, intra-platform 

communication system (IPCS) and the short-range 

communication system (SRCS), have progressed to the 

extent that all the product baselines will be completed in 

the 2013/14 financial year. Initial production of the man-

portable transceivers is being planned for the second half of 

the 2013/14 financial year.

1.3.4.2 New Generation Static and Mobile 

Communication System

The aim of this project is the upgrading, expansion and 

augmentation of the static and mobile segment of the 

Defence Communication Network (DCN) in support of the 

Department of Defence Enterprise Information Systems 

(DEIS).

The present static and mobile communication networks 

and systems being used in the DOD have been in service for 

more than 25 years. Some of these systems are no longer 

sustainable and the present network cannot accommodate 

the required data transfer requirements of future 

applications.
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The purpose of the project is to create one network for 

the entire DOD. The challenge will be to introduce new 

generation network (NGN) technology in a new integrated 

system, while the integrity of the current systems is 

maintained and integrated with other initiatives in the DOD.

The project has concluded the concept phase (project 

study) with the approval of the project study report, and has 

successfully established the functional baseline. The system 

and partial acquisition studies have been contracted and 

are progressing well. The system study for development of 

the subsystems will establish allocated baselines for the new 

generation network management, the mobile (deployable) 

and the gateway sub-systems during 2014. The acquisition 

study will establish a product baseline for the static part of 

the DCN during the second half of 2014. The initial roll-out 

of the NGN in the static environment of the DCN is planned 

for early in 2015.

1.3.5 UNiVERSiTY GRANTS 
PROGRAMME

This activity entails the tertiary institute scientific research 

component of the defence technology programme. It is a 

core part of the technology development process where 

new knowledge is generated. Research is directed towards 

solving complex problems faced by the SANDF. The 

programme is undertaken by postgraduate students and 

study leaders located at various South African universities. 

1.3.6  RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
PROGRAMMES

The strategic intent for technology programmes in various 

areas is to develop and maintain capabilities in the RSA, 

which would support the new and changing demands of the 

SANDF. These programmes are conducted in South African 

defence industries and institutes, at defence evaluation 

research institutes (DERI), and at tertiary education institutes 

(universities).

1.3.6.1 Aerospace Technology

Guided Weapons Technology: The technology 

development objective for this area is to develop an all-

weather air defence missile (AWADM) demonstrator to 

expand and prove the technology capabilities in areas 

such as radar seekers, missile navigation systems, fusing, 

warheads, and flight control and propulsion systems, 

integrated through a sound system engineering process. 

The first guided test firing of the AWADM demonstrator is 

planned for 2016.

Airborne Electronic Warfare Technology: The technology 

development objectives for this area are to expand and 

prove the technology capabilities of aircraft self-protection 

(high energy lasers and radio frequency missile approach 

warning), as well as airborne intelligence gathering and 

jamming systems. 

Aeronautic Defence and Evaluation Research Institute 

(ADERI): The strategic intent for this area is to maintain 

niche aeronautic technology capabilities at the ADERI in 

order to assist the DOD in all aspects of decision-making 

with respect to acquisition, operations and maintenance of 

SANDF equipment. The technology development targets for 

this area are to prove and expand the technology capabilities 

in the areas of airborne weapons integration, aerodynamic 

characterisation through wind tunnel modelling and 

numerical analysis methods, modelling and simulation of 

aerial weapon systems in the operational theatre, aircraft 

propulsion, structures and maintenance, and electronic 

flight control systems. 

1.3.6.2 Maritime Technology

The maritime DERI provides the SAN with scientific and 

engineering support services. The Institute for Maritime 

Technology (IMT), as the custodian of the maritime DERI, is 

mandated to develop and maintain a sustainable capability 

for the provision of techno-military expertise to support 

naval decision-making and naval professional competency 
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in specific key naval expertise domains.  The aim is to provide 

the decision-makers, both at the tactical and the operational 

levels, with knowledge and insight on which to base their 

decisions in the following areas: 

Underwater Sensors and Signatures: The capability of the 

underwater sensors and signatures domain is focused on 

detection and characterisation of signals in the underwater 

environment, and includes science and practical applications 

in all five underwater signal fields, namely underwater 

acoustics (and sonar), magnetism, seismic effects, pressure 

signals, and underwater electric fields. The aim is to develop 

the expertise, tools and facilities to support the SAN’s 

present and future requirements in underwater sensors and 

signatures. 

Naval Systems Subsurface: The naval systems subsurface 

domain focuses on the application of technology for optimal 

use in submarine warfare and underwater naval systems. 

The primary research areas are submarine capability 

enhancement and underwater maritime awareness, which 

includes the use of underwater vehicles. The technology 

development should be planned to have the capability to 

assist the SAN in its aim to maintain the core submarine 

conventional capability while focusing on constabulary 

missions. 

Naval Systems Above Water: The surface warfare domain 

focuses on that technological insight that will allow the 

SAN  to be in a position to exploit the systematic potential 

of its surface warfare systems fully. In addition, recognition 

is given to the multi-dimensional complexity of maritime 

warfare, where surface assets may face threats from below 

water, from the surface and from the air. 

1.3.6.3 Support Technology

The Support Operations Technology Programme establishes 

technologies in the following DERIs:

 • The Biological and Chemical Defence (BCD) DERI 

was specifically established in Protechnik provides 

the RSA with a scientific support service in this field.  

This service is considered to be of national strategic 

importance and is mandated to develop and maintain 

a sustainable capability for the provision of techno-

military expertise to support BCD decision-making 

and BCD professional competency. 

 • The Ergonomics DERI, established in Ergotech, is 

a leading ergonomics consultancy, providing a 

comprehensive service in ergonomics, occupational 

health and safety, both locally and internationally.   

This DERI has been approved by the Department of 

Labour as an inspection authority in occupational 

hygiene.

 1.3.6.4 Landwards Technology

The Landwards Technology Portfolio Programme has the 

intention of providing the SANDF with a ready technology 

base in order to provide scientific and engineering advice 

and technological solutions in the firepower, mobility and 

protection domains.

Firepower: The technology development is aimed at 

providing science and engineering knowledge to improve 

weapon systems with respect to internal, intermediate, 

external and terminal ballistics, fusing, modelling and 

simulation. 

Protection and Mobility: The technology development is 

aimed at providing science and engineering knowledge to 

improve the tactical mobility and protection (survival) of 

combat vehicles and personnel. Specific areas of investment 

are passive, reactive and active protection systems and 

electric drive technology.

Land Science Enablers: The technology development 

is aimed at providing scientific and engineering advice 

to the land forces of the SANDF, with particular regard to 

mobility, blast protection, specialised soldier requirements/
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applications, battlefield clearance (UXO/IED disposal), mine 

detection and camouflage.

1.3.6.5 Special Operations Technology

The Special Operations Technology Portfolio Programme 

is focused on providing the SANDF, in particular the 

special operations community, with a ready technology 

base in order to provide scientific and engineering advice 

and technological solutions in the domains of firepower, 

manoeuvre, protection, command and control, intelligence 

and sustainment. 

1.3.6.6 Defence Test and Evaluation 

Facilities

Defence research cannot be meaningfully conducted 

without a competent test and evaluation capability. Test 

ranges and laboratories exist for supporting research into 

weapon systems (ground, air and maritime), protection 

systems, military vehicle systems, electronic systems and 

sensors (electronic warfare, radar, communication, etc.). 

During the reporting period, the maintenance of the 

required test ranges was supported with the objective of 

maintaining the critical test capabilities established there. 

1.3.6.7 Electronics technology

The Electronics Technology Portfolio Programme has the 

intention of providing the SANDF with a ready technology 

base in order to provide scientific and engineering advice 

and technological solutions in the radar, electronic warfare, 

radio frequency (RF), communications, information warfare 

and optronics domains.

Radar: The technology development programme includes 

research into improved target detection, tracking and 

classification, and is aimed primarily at furthering pulse 

Doppler radar technology. 

Electronic Warfare (EW) RF: The technology development 

programme includes the management of large amounts of 

diverse EW data, the choice of appropriate countermeasures 

associated with each sensor and/or platform, to detect or 

estimate hostile intent of a user of radar or communications 

systems, the exploitation of RF missiles, and the control of 

the electromagnetic spectrum.

Optronics: The technology development programme 

includes target detection tracking and classification, 

countermeasure development against infrared (IR) seeker-

based missiles, the military application of lasers in targeting 

and surveillance, novel sensors and imaging processing 

techniques, and research on camouflage techniques.

Information Warfare (IW): The technology development 

programme includes building a capability in network 

attack prediction and the vulnerability analysis of networks, 

research and advice to the DOD cyber emergency response 

teams and their related security operations centre, and 

building a credible capability in offensive network warfare.

Modelling and Simulation for Decision Support: The 

technology development programme includes building 

a capability in the high-level modelling and simulation 

of complex adaptive systems, the efficient and effective 

visualisation of system behaviour, communications network 

modelling, and the modelling and simulation of complex 

command and control systems.

Command and Control (C&C): The technology   

development programme includes building up and 

maintaining a capability in command and control 

technologies, providing assistance in the development 

of doctrine for complex military operations and decision 

support for the upgrading of command and control systems, 

improving situational awareness, improving collaboration 

between forces, threat and resource management, data and 

information fusion, and management and exploration of 

emerging mobile communication techniques.
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2. DEfENCE iNDUSTRiAL PARTiCiPATiON 

Defence Industrial Participation (DIP) is the obligation of a 

foreign supplier to reciprocate defence-related business in 

South Africa as a result of defence acquisition, and forms 

an integral part of the DOD’s policy framework for the 

retention and development of the South African Defence 

Industry (SADI).

As a result of a slowdown of foreign acquisition, no new DIP 

agreements were concluded with foreign suppliers during 

the reporting period. The last new DIP agreement was 

concluded in October 2011.

Armscor currently manages one obligation (MBDA) related 

to the Strategic Defence Packages (SDPs), 13 existing DIP 

agreements resulting from other acquisition projects, and 

one DIP agreement resulting from the procurement of 

pistols on behalf of the South African Police Services (SAPS).

Managing the MBDA obligation remains a challenge and it 

is more than likely that the obligation will not be discharged 

in time and that penalties will be imposed.

The pro-active portfolio, where foreign companies bank 

credits for future use, remained the biggest source of credits 

granted during the period under review. In September 2012 

the DIP policy was revised. The revised DIP policy focuses 

on areas of sovereign control and strategic independence 

and benefit goes exclusively to locally owned companies. 

Armscor will in future be more prescriptive in respect of the 

DIP activities that will be executed while the principle of 

proactive agreements will also be reviewed.

The status of the four DIP portfolios at the end of the reporting period is summarized in the table below.

PORTFOLIO
NUMbER OF 

CURRENT 
CONTRACTS

NUMbER OF 
COMPLETED 
CONTRACTS

TOTAL 
ObLIGATION

CREDITS 
PASSED 
DURING 

CURRENT 
FINANCIAL 

yEAR

TOTAL 
CREDITS 

PASSED TO 
DATE

OUTSTANDING 
ObLIGATION

Rm Rm Rm Rm

SDPs 1 7 15 111 13 14 178 933

Active (SDA) 16 26 6 188 62 5 801 387

Police contracts 1 3 140 - 122 18

Subtotal 18 36 21 439 75 20 101 1 338

Proactive 38 11 n/a 630 3 743 n/a

Total 56 47 21 439 705 23 844 1 338
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The DIP status of the Strategic Defence Packages as at 31 March 2013 is summarised below.
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Corvettes 2 941 2 248 2 008 89 68 1 505 465 38

Sub-marines 1 121 1 121 1 121 100 100 749 364 8

Light Utility 
Helicopters 1 194 1 194 1 194 100 100 675 487 32

Hawk Aircraft 4 252 4 252 4 252 100 100 3 262 973 17

Gripen Aircraft 5 050 5 050 5 050 100 100 3 184 1 693 173

Maritime 
Helicopters 553 553 553 100 100 519 31 3

Total 15 111 14 418 14 178 98 94 9 894 4 013 271

The planned performance on the corvette programme has not been met because to MBDA did not having discharge their DIP 

obligation.

BEE PROCUREMENT SPEND

Armscor engaged the services of Empowerdex, a SANAS-accredited verification agency, to verify the BBBEE status for the 

financial period 2012/13. Armscor is proud to report that a level 3 BBBEE status was achieved moving from level 7. 

 bEE ACQUISITION REPORT SPEND ON FINANCIAL yEAR-END MARCH 2013 

Details Paid amount bbbEE amount Target Actual variance Comments
Acquisition total 
spend  5,788,570,694  -  -  -  - Total paid to acquisition 

spend

bbbEE acquisition  5,788,570,694  5,361,147,383 45.00%  * 92.62% 47.62% Objective achieved

Qualifying Small 
Enterprises (QSE)  5,788,570,694  434,709,592 0.00% 7.51% 7.51% No target

Exempted Micro 
Enterprises (EME)  5,788,570,694  73,023,729 0.00% 1.26% 1.26% No target

Non-compliant 
suppliers  314,929,683  -  - 0.00% 0.00% Non-compliant 

suppliers

More than 50% 
black Owned 
Enterprises (bOE)

 5,788,570,694  220,652,545 0.00% 3.81% 3.81% No target

More than 
30% black 
Women-owned 
Enterprises 
(bWOE)

 5,788,570,694  91,810,587 0.00% 1.59% 1.59% No target

* BBBEE Procurement spend based on recognition levels.
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 bEE OPERATING bUDGET REPORT SPEND FOR FINANCIAL yEAR-END MARCH 2013 

Details Paid amount bbbEE amount Target Actual variance Comments

Operations total 
spend  36,443,266.97  -  -  -  - Total paid to operations 

spend

bbbEE operating 
budget  36,443,266.97  38,292,292.79 * 80.00% 105.07% 25.07% Objective achieved

Qualifying Small 
Enterprises (QSE)  36,443,266.97  7,037,880.29 20.00% 19.31% -0.69% Objective not achieved

Exempted Micro-
enterprises (EME)  36,443,266.97  5,278,825.14 20.00% 14.49% -5.51% Objective not achieved

Non-compliant 
suppliers  402,556.87  -  - 0.00% 0.00% Non-compliant 

suppliers

More than 50% 
black-owned 
Enterprises (bOE)

 36,443,266.97  9,489,650.43 25.00% 26.04% 1.04% Objective achieved

More than 30% 
bWOE  36,443,266.97  5,237,469.84 25.00% 14.37% -10.63% Objective not achieved

Unclassified 
Suppliers (USA)  2,008,698.00  - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% Spend with no suppliers

* BBBEE Procurement spend based on Recognition levels.

 bEE DOCkyARD REPORT SPEND FOR FINANCIAL yEAR-END MARCH 2013 

Details Paid amount bbbEE amount Target Actual variance Comments

Dockyard total 
spending 56,052,218.82  -  -  -  -  Total paid to dockyard 

spend 

bbbEE 
DOCkyARD 56,052,218.82 56,062,733.58 65.00% * 100.02% 35.02%  Objective achieved 

Qualifying Small 
Enterprises (QSE) 56,052,218.82 41,232,653.22 20.00% 73.56% 53.56%  Objective achieved 

Exempted Micro 
Enterprises (EME) 56,052,218.82 11,589,124.42 15.00% 20.68% 5.68%  Objective achieved 

Non-compliant 
suppliers 134,341.60  -  - 0.00% 0.00%  Non-compliant 

suppliers 

More than 50% 
bOE 56,052,218.82 13,223,570.20 15.00% 23.59% 8.59%  Objective achieved 

More than 30% 
bWOE 56,052,218.82 6,631,614.33 15.00% 11.83% -3.17%  Objective not achieved 

USA 378,531.61  -  - 0.00% 0.00%  Spend with no 
suppliers 

* BBBEE Procurement spend based on Recognition levels.
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 bEE ADI REPORT SPEND FOR FINANCIAL yEAR-END MARCH 2013 

Details Paid amount bbbEE amount Target Actual variance Comments

ADI total 
spending 103,549,832.48  -  -  -  -  Total paid by ADI

bbbEE ADI 103,549,832.48 90,688,094.50 60.00% 87.58% 27.58%  Objective achieved 

QSE 103,549,832.48 19,152,613.07 15.00% 18.50% 3.50%  Objective achieved 

EME 103,549,832.48 30,296,741.21 15.00% 29.26% 14.26%  Objective achieved 

Non-compliant 
suppliers 11,439,033.12  -  - 0.00% 0.00%  Non-compliant 

suppliers 

More than 50% 
bOE 103,549,832.48 12,325,840.04 15.00% 11.90% -3.10%  Objective not achieved 

More than 30% 
(bWOE) 103,549,832.48 3,383,835.71 15.00% 3.27% -11.73%  Objective not achieved 

* BBBEE procurement spending based on recognition levels.

2.1 DEfENCE MATÉRiEL DiSPOSAL 

Armscor’s Defence Matériel Disposal (DMD) division is 

mandated to dispose of excess and obsolete defence 

matériel on behalf of the DOD. The defence matériel includes 

ammunition, aircraft, spares, vessels, and land and/or  

air-based equipment. 

The disposal of the defence matériel is carried out in 

accordance with the requirements of the DOD and 

regulatory authorities such as the National Conventional 

Arms Control Committee (NCACC) and the National Non-

Proliferation Council (NPC).

DMD sold items to the value of R23,6 million for the DOD 

during the review period. Redundant and obselete military 

vehicles and related spare parts were sold by means of the 

tender process, and the aircraft and related spares were sold 

by contract to the SADI.

2.2 AB LOGiSTiCS 

AB Logistics Freight renders logistic services in support of 

the SANDF, Foreign Defence Forces, the SADI and Armscor 

strategic acquisition function. AB Logistics Freight is a 

registered and accredited customs clearing agent with the 

South African Revenue Service (SARS) and is a member of 

the Internal Federation of Freight Forwarders Associations 

(FIATA) and the South African Association of Freight 

Forwarders (SAAFF), and has maintained its accreditations 

with the various regulatory authorities during 2012. 

AB Logistics renders diverse services, has experience of 

the armaments environment, as well as the strict customs 

and other regulatory compliance requirements, and was 

responsible for assisting various foreign defence forces, as 

well as the SANDF, with military exercises. 
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ADI must furthermore maintain such special capabilities 

and facilities that are regarded by Armscor not to be 

commercially viable, but which may be required by the 

DED for security or strategic reasons. The financing of ADI is 

achieved through 67% funding from DOD sources and 33% 

from commercial and other sources outside the DOD, which 

include both local and foreign contracts. ADI achieved 100% 

of its goals set for the reporting period.

ADI also provides defence operational research and 

management of technology projects, as required by the 

DOD, and supplies engineering and technical capability to 

the DOD and Armscor.

ADI exploits commercial opportunities that may arise out of 

Armscor’s duty to acquire defence matériel, as well as from 

the management of technology projects. ADI is made up of 

trading divisions, which are discussed below:

3.1 TESTING AND EVALUATION 
FACILITIES

3.1.1 GEROTEK TEST fACiLiTY 

Through its various business divisions, Gerotek provides 

test and evaluation, advanced driver training and corporate 

event services in support of the acquisition process of 

Armscor, the SANDF and other government institutions. Test 

and evaluation services were provided for the combat vehicle 

electric drive (CVED) technology demonstrator vehicle and 

the mobile water purification and bottling system. 

During the year under review AB Logistics rendered 

logistical support for several military exercises held in South 

Africa, such as for the German exercise “Taurus”, the Brazilian 

exercises “Ibsamar” and “Atlasur”, The Netherlands “Serolane” 

and the Lesotho exercise “Ex Crown”. Assistance was 

rendered to the Dutch Ministry of Defence, which took place 

in terms of official memoranda of understanding (MOUs). 

Given the above participation of military exercises, Armscor 

executed its role and functions successfully through its 

specialised freight-forwarding capabilities in support of the 

SANDF. 

In terms of the Explosives Act and the Firearms Control Act, 

2000, AB Logistics Freight has maintained its registration as 

a registered transporter of hazardous cargo, weapons and 

ammunition. AB Logistics therefore continues to offer this 

specialised service to the SANDF, Armscor, SAPS, foreign 

defence forces, and the SADI. During the year under review, 

AB Logistics experienced further growth in requests for 

this type of service from foreign clients to assist them with 

the transit of shipments of controlled items through South 

Africa. 

3. ARMSCOR DEfENCE iNSTiTUTES 

ADI is a wholly owned subsidiary of Armscor and is 

mandated to operate, manage, support and maintain 

those strategic facilities and essential defence capabilities, 

resources and technologies. This includes the planning and 

management of the application of the technology budget 

of the Department of Defence through the Technology 

Management and Analysis (TMA) Division.
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More of these types of tests are planned for the next few 

years by Singapore, as well as a few other foreign countries.

During the year, the third tracking radar system was delivered. 

This enhanced Alkantpan’s capabilities to satisfy the ever 

increasing demand for slaving of radars and simultaneously 

conduct other standard tests with the third radar.

Alkantpan obtained an additional high-speed video camera 

(mono), as well as a coloured high-speed video camera. 

Tests were conducted on 60 mm lumination ammunition for 

Rheinmetall Denel Munitions and the results were successful. 

For the first time the manufacturer could actually see what 

happens when the parachute opens and why malfunctions 

occur from time to time.

Services were also provided to the local commercial and 

military industries, as well as to international clients in 

especially the automotive and electronic industries. An 

increase in international business was experienced. 

Gerotek receives 28% of its funding from the DOD but 

has to rely on commercial contracts to fund its operations 

(62%). As part of the marketing strategy implementation, 

the IBSA (India, Brasilia and South Africa) delegation was 

hosted by Gerotek and the International Society for Terrain 

Vehicle Systems conference was co-arranged and hosted 

by Gerotek. The three-day conference was attended by 70 

local and international delegates representing 12 countries. 

Gerotek for the first time coordinated the Annual Sasol Mini 

Baja competition, in which seven local and four international 

tertiary institutions participated. Gerotek also participated 

in the Johannesburg International Motor Show and the AAD 

2012 exhibition.

3.1.2 ALKANTPAN

Alkantpan receives 33% of its funding from the DOD and 

has to attract local and foreign customers (67%) to fund its 

operations. 

As part of Alkantpan’s marketing strategy, Rheinmetall 

Defence from Germany, together with Rheinmetall Waffen 

Munition, the Bundeswehr, Diehl Defence BGT and Oto 

Melara of Italy participated jointly in 155 mm artillery tests 

of new generation guided munitions. Despite the logistical 

impact, the tests were conducted successfully.

Singapore conducted several hazard classification and 

insensitive munitions tests during the year, which tested 

Alkantpan’s ability to handle multiple tests of various types 

successfully. 
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Effective protection against RPG-7 threats continued with 

particular focus on lighter armour packages. The main focus 

over the past year was collateral damage from armour-

protection systems.  Work was done on non-metallic reactive 

armour and full-scale add-on armour systems aimed at 

reducing the collateral damage caused by the steel shrapnel 

that is produced by conventional reactive armours.  In 

addition, tests were also conducted on non-metallic reactive 

armours with special additives to reduce the collateral 

damage. 

3.2.2 DEfENCE DECiSiON SUPPORT 
iNSTiTUTE

The Defence Decision Support Institute (DDSI) focuses 

primarily on the user system levels over the total life cycle 

of defence capabilities. Support includes decision support, 

operational research, defence analysis, capability analysis 

and products system management support to defence 

practitioners in the Department of Defence (DOD). DDSI is 

funded 100% from different sources within the DOD. 

The following performance highlights formed part of DDSI’s 

service offering for the 2012/13 financial year: 

 • Engineering services and systems management 

support were provided to the Directorate SA 

Army, including logistics engineering, physical 

configuration audits (PCA’s), material baseline 

support, operational data analysis and reporting, 

the planning and implementation of governance, 

obsolescence management support and doctrine 

development support.

Various tests were conducted for the South African Ordnance 

market (Rheimetall Denel Munitions and Denel, as well as 

Fuchs, PMP and other companies). In most cases foreign 

clients also attended the tests and the opportunity was used 

to advertise the test range capabilities. 

3.2 DEFENCE SCIENCE AND 
TECHNOLOGY INSTITUTES

3.2.1 ARMOUR DEVELOPMENT

Armour Development, as a specialised armour protection 

division, conducts continuous research and development to 

maintain and advance armour protection technologies and 

to establish industrial capability to timeously satisfy armour 

protection requirements over the entire threat spectrum in 

a cost-effective manner.

The service, provided by Armour Development, includes 

analysis of the customer protection needs, development of 

armour, testing and qualification, vehicle hull structural and 

ballistic design, as well as specification of bonding or welding. 

The DOD funds the basic capability at Armour Development 

(95%), but commercial contracts are undertaken to fund any 

deficit (5%). 

The division has extensive experience in retro-fitting armour 

packages on main battle tanks and the supply of modular 

adaptable armour packages for light and medium vehicles. 

Work is continuing on the combat armour suite for the 

new generation mechanised combat vehicle, with weight 

reduction as the main goal.



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 2013 47

Ergotech’s scientific 

research portfolio during 

the last reporting period 

included military 

ergonomics work for the 

South African Military 

Health Services (SAMHS). 

The ergonomics domains 

that were covered 

included conventional 

and scan anthropometry, 

biomechanics and human physiology. 

Work was also conducted on cognitive ergonomics for 

soldiers, functional performance with the focus on soldier 

performance and specific military ergonomics research 

requirements. In addition, for the test and evaluation 

portfolio, services were conducted for the new generation 

tactical communication system project, the service dress 

redesign project and the new generation combat vehicle 

project. 

Ergotech successfully conducted a neck muscle strength 

survey on military personnel to establish protection 

criteria for neck loading from wearing helmets and  

head-mounted optical gear. Research work was also 

conducted on soldier sensory capabilities and the 

contribution of this to soldier performance. 

•• Research regarding SANDF capabilities for the 

medium to long term was undertaken, as well as 

implementation of capability development in the 

SANDF and the provision of joint command and 

control (C²) support to the Joint Operations Division.

•• Research and development studies and operation of 

a lessons identified and lessons learnt system (LIALLS) 

in support of doctrine development in the South 

African Army and Joint Operations environments was 

completed.

•• Support to the Defence Secretariat in developing, 

analysing and reviewing defence policy as part of 

the Defence Review Committee was undertaken. This 

activity has culminated in the presentation of the 

Defence Review to Cabinet.

DDSI is currently investing in training and development 

of its employee base in order to develop its employees in 

line with service delivery requirements. Furthermore, the 

knowledge management initiative that was implemented 

is in support of the employee development drive and 

to ensure sustainability. The implementation of the 

employee capability establishment programme, employee 

development and training programme and the creation of 

an electronic documentation management system were 

successfully completed. 

3.2.3 ERGONOMiCS TECHNOLOGiES 
(ERGOTECH)

Ergotech is responsible for the integration of ergonomics 

within the defence systems of the SANDF, by providing the 

DOD with a comprehensive service in ergonomics in support 

of this goal. Ergotech obtains 95% of its funding from the 

DOD and 5% from commercial contracts.

Services provided are military ergonomics research, design 

and specification of human-machine interaction and the 

evaluation and testing of interfaces and environmental 

stressors. 
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3.2.5 HAzMAT PROTECTiVE SYSTEMS

Hazmat manufactures a comprehensive range of filter 
cartridges, canisters, and half and full face mask respirators 
to protect the individual and soldier against the majority 
of respiratory health hazards. Hazmat also manufactures 
impregnated activated carbon, which is used in a range 
of cartridges, canisters and industrial filter applications 
as filtration media. Currently all of Hazmat’s income is 
generated from production arising from local commercial 
contracts.

As a local manufacturer of respiratory products Hazmat 
was faced with numerous challenges during the review 
period. Imports of respiratory products from the Far East 
are on the increase and it was required of Hazmat to closely 
monitor cost increases, selling prices and to implement a 
differentiation strategy in order to be able to compete in this 
very competitive market. 

In addition to this, Hazmat’s products have been used 
extensively in the mines and the strikes in the last quarter 
of the reporting period were initially perceived as a threat to 
sales . However, Hazmat increased market share substantially 
and sales exceeded the budgeted figure. 

The increased turnover achieved by Hazmat was partly as 

a result of the expanded respirator filter cartridge product 

range. The carbon impregnation plant delivers the required 

volume and a quality impregnated carbon product is 

manufactured. 

Soldier energy expenditure studies using stable isotope 

techniques were conducted for the border safeguarding 

duties of the SANDF. This work will contribute substantially 

to optimising food requirements on future deployments. 

The effectiveness of hearing protectors for use in a specific 

military noise environment was tested for impulse and 

steady state conditions. 

3.2.4 fLAMENGRO

Flamengro is mandated to provide a computer-based 

simulation and failure analysis support and consultative 

service to programme managers, the DOD and the defence 

related industry during product and system development. 

Flamengro receives 75% of its funding from the DOD and 

25% from local commercial work.

Flamengro undertook the development and upgrading of 

the integrated ballistic workbench suite of programmes used 

for simulating ballistic phenomena in the DOD. The lumped 

parameter computer modelling and simulation software 

for internal ballistics has been successfully upgraded and 

deployed. The development of multiple chamber internal 

ballistics software under development is complete and 

ready for developmental test and evaluation. Flamengro 

completed the feasibility study of a multi-dimensional 

internal ballistics solver in the open-source environment. It 

was concluded that such a solver is feasible and Flamengro 

will continue development in the arena in order to maintain 

the superiority of the South African capability in the field of 

internal ballistics simulation.

Flamengro assisted in the development of the upgrading of 

the long-range test facility at Rheinmetall Denel Munition 

(RDM). The test facility is complete and Flamengro, Armscor, 

and RDM now operate a unique capability in the world, in 

terms of the testing of artillery ammunition as well as missile 

systems. The test facility will be able to provide supersonic 

airstreams at pressures, temperatures, and Mach numbers 

representative of all current projectile and missile systems.



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 2013 49

3.2.6 iNSTiTUTE fOR MARiTiME 
TECHNOLOGY

The Institute for Maritime Technology (IMT) continues to 

build the capability and facilities to provide the infrastructure 

to test and evaluate advanced maritime domain awareness 

concepts. IMT receives 88% of its funding from the DOD, 

primarily the Navy, and 12% is from local commercial work.

IMT’s portfolio includes the development of:

•• a dedicated secure data network and databases 

where necessary;

•• investigations into advanced sensor integration, 

rapid data exchange and effective command and 

control communications;

•• addressing issues of interoperability with other arms 

of service particularly with regard to air defence 

and maritime deployments in support of national, 

continental (African) and international collaboration 

as required by the client.

The following services, addressing the client’s requirements 

were undertaken in the reporting period:

•• The remote maritime video surveillance system.

•• The ultrasonic broken rail detector (UBRD) is designed 

to reliably detect breaks in train rails under harsh 

environmental conditions. 

•• The Close-in surveillance system (CISS) is an electro-

optic sensor technology demonstrator close-in 

surveillance system that is currently fitted on the 

frigate SAS SPIOENKOP (F147). 

•• A new torpedo battery charger for the SAN’s 

torpedoes was manufactured to replace the charger 

that was in use. 
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A new foam decontamination solution has been developed 

and evaluated both under laboratory conditions and in the 

field. Preliminary laboratory studies indicate that the new 

composition is capable of detoxifying or degrading some 

hazardous chemicals within a very short period. Subsequent 

field evaluations conducted at Ditholo (north of Pretoria) on 

military vehicles also reveal that this mixture is very effective 

against one of the blister agents. 

Further evaluations will be conducted in the next financial 

year to evaluate the efficacy of this mixture on various 

substrates and also to test the composition on a larger scale.

The development of the CB suit for SAMHS has been 

finalised. The new CB suit has been improved by using 

new technology materials that include double sleeves and 

trunks for better interface with other personal protective 

equipment such as rubber gloves and boots. The new suit is 

lighter and more comfortable than the previous prototype. 

3.2.7 PROTECHNiK LABORATORiES

In the reporting period, Protechnik continued to advance 

in the field of chemical and biological (CB) defence to serve 

its clients better. The work performed covered the areas 

of protection, synthesis, verification, decontamination, 

detection of chemical warfare (CW) agents and toxic 

industrial chemicals and also biomedical and related public 

health research. 

Protechnik receives 98% of its income from the DOD and 2% 

from other local commercial contracts.

One project is aimed at determining the persistency or fate 

of CW agents on various substrates. The work is conducted 

on a test pad at Alkantpan where extreme temperatures can 

be experienced. Prevailing environmental conditions, as well 

as the amounts of the agents evaporating, can be measured. 

The results show that some of these controlled hazardous 

chemicals are persistent on certain substrates such as office 

carpets for more than two days under cold conditions. This 

provides valuable information on facility re-entry after a CW 

agent has been released in a civilian setting.
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Furthermore, the developments on the fully encapsulated 

suit (FES) are approaching the final testing stage and already 

there is local commercial interest in this product.

Protechnik is at the forefront of the efforts initiated by the 

Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons 

(OPCW), under the Programme to Strengthen Cooperation 

with Africa. The programme is aimed at enhancing the 

capabilities of African member states to implement 

and maintain the Chemical Weapons Convention. An 

OPCW sponsored analytical chemistry course was held at 

Protechnik in which 14 delegates from the African continent 

were trained under the joint partnership of Protechnik and 

VERIFIN scientists. In addition, Protechnik participated in the 

6th OPCW Assistance and Protection Course organised by the 

dti and held at Ditholo. 

4. ARMSCOR DOCKYARD 

The Dockyard is responsible for the provision of maintenance 

services to the SAN for its warships. The Dockyard 

successfully provided maintenance and repair services to 

the SAN on various configuration products systems ranging 

from tugs, small craft, frigates and submarines to support 

vessels, in accordance with the Dockyard’s available capacity 

and capabilities. The services covered both planned and 

unplanned projects. 

The Dockyard funding model is based on a fixed transfer 

payment to deliver predetermined capabilities. The current 

capacities are insufficient to satisfy the full requirements 

of the SAN. Additional requirements are funded through  

project funding, which is provided in-year. The shortcomings 

of this funding model result in inability to employ the 

requisite capacities permanently, thus providing sustainable 

support. Outsourcing remains the Dockyard responsibility 

as per its mandate of ensuring strategic support to the SAN. 

Armscor Dockyard has achieved ISO 9001 certification. The 

focus at the Dockyard is to make inroads and improve on 

SHE matters. 

The year under review was the second year of the 

operationalisation of the Performance Management 

Agreement between the SA Navy Fleet and the Dockyard. 

Significant improvement in performance was noted, despite 

the challenges of insufficient capabilities. 

The capability rejuvenation, through the in-sourcing of 

additional skilled labour and equipment with the additional 

funding received from the SAN, gained momentum during 

this reporting period. 

While additional funding of R30,6 million was injected into 

the Dockyard, the challenge emanating from insufficient 

capability and infrastructure renewal still persists. 

Insufficient sustainable funding therefore, remains a key risk, 

as it has an impact on the optimal capacity and capability of 

the Dockyard. 

Additional funding was sourced from the SAN to address 

legacy obligations, improve conditions of service, and for 

occupational health and safety maintenance requirements 

and other operational requirements.  

The Dockyard’s annual capabilities budget reflects a critical 

financial shortfall to ensure sustainable support in the 

execution of the SA Navy’s maintenance and operational 

mandate. Although additional funds are afforded to the 

Dockyard on an ad-hoc basis, these funds come ring-

fenced for specific purposes, mainly for capital expenditure 

requirements.
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Armscor commissioned an in-depth technical and 

modernisation study, to address the current Dockyard 

challenges, including an outlook for commercial 

opportunities and to improve effeciencies. The study is 

under way and will be concluded during the next reporting 

period.

The Dockyard embarked on a drive to implement a quality 

management system in accordance with the ISO 9001:2008 

requirements. The purpose of this exercise was to ensure 

the service provided is supported by a sound quality 

management system in accordance with best practises 

for operations of this nature. The Dockyard was evaluated 

by the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS) in  

October 2012 and achieved certification in November 2012, 

as an ISO9001:2008 certified organisation.

The Dockyard performance assessment is based on a 

Performance Management Agreement entered into with 

the SAN. The final sign-off by the SAN provides validation 

of the performance during the period under review. The key 

deliverables include adherence to projects milestones, cash 

flow management, site services and general reporting. The 

Dockyard achieved 92% against a target of 90% compliance.

4.1 PROjECT HIGHLIGHTS 

A number of projects were undertaken during the reporting 

period, both planned (refits and docking for essential 

defects) and unplanned (operational defects and ad-hoc 

work). The projects were executed in accordance with the 

respective statements of work from the SA Navy.

4.1.1 fRiGATES

The Dockyard’s primary focus during the period under review 

was on the completion of the SAS SPIOENKOP docking for 

essential defects (DED) and the planning for the SAS MENDI 

DED scheduled to start in May 2013.

4.1.1.1  SAS SPIOENKOP (DED)

This project commenced in June 2011. It experienced 

a number of challenges, which included scope growth, 

procurement of long-lead items, and the provision of 

customer-furnished equipment (CFE). The vessel undocked 

on 28 August 2012. Systems set to work commenced and 

the project was completed on 26 March 2013.



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 2013 53

4.1.2 PATROL VESSELS

4.1.2.1  SAS ISSAC DYOBA (unscheduled 

docking)

The submarine was docked in March 2013 to undertake repair 

of collision damage, which was successfully completed.

4.1.2.2 SAS UMHLOTI (unscheduled 

docking) 

The vessel was docked for repairs to its clutch system. The 

repairs were completed within the agreed timelines.

4.1.2.3  SAS UMZIMKULU (assist 

maintenance period)

Dockyard was tasked to assist with a number of tasks in this 

maintenance period. The Dockyard successfully completed 

the associated tasks.

4.1.3 TUGS

4.1.3.1 TUG INDLOVU (refit)

Refit commenced in April 2012. The Dockyard was tasked 

with a number of additional supplementary tasks. The 

additional work was done and the vessel was declared 

operational on 25 July 2012. The project was completed in 

accordance with the planned project milestone dates.

4.1.3.2 TUG DEMIST (refit)

The primary reason for the delay in this project was the 

change of scope of work on the main engines, eventually 

leading to engines having to be removed from the vessel 

for major rebuilding. The removal of the engines was a first 

attempt for this class of vessel. A special transfer platform 

had to be constructed to support the engine removal 

process.

The engine rebuilding was managed as “client furnished 

equipment” (CFE) and covered a period of approximately 

three years. The engines were successfully refurbished and 

fitted. The trials conducted were successful and the vessel 

declared operational on 29 August 2012.

4.1.3.3 TUG TSHUKUDU (docking for 

essential defects)

DED work commenced in September 2012 and the vessel 

was declared operational on 9 November 2012. The project 

was completed in accordance with the planned project 

milestone dates.

4.1.3.4 TUG UMALISI (unscheduled docking)

The Aquamaster thruster unit (both port and starboard 

clutches) on the tug became unserviceable and had to 

be replaced. Spares had to be imported from the original 

equipment manufacturer. The spares had to be manufactured 

as they were not readily available off the shelf. The spares 

have been received and the repair work is in progress. The 

planned completion date of this task is 30 April 2013.

4.1.4 SUBMARiNES

4.1.4.1  SAS MANTHATISI (refit)

SAS MANTHATISI is one of the first of its class submarines 

acquired as part of the Strategic Defence Packages and 

operated by the SAN. The Dockyard does not have the 

capability to undertake a refit of this magnitude. The 

project strategy was to contract the original equipment 

manufacturer (OEM) to undertake this refit under the 

management of Armscor. 

A contract was successfully negotiated and approved 

in October 2012 for the OEM to execute the refit at the 

Dockyard. 

The vessel was formally handed over to Dockyard on  

24 January 2013 and is now under the control of  

the Dockyard. The progress on the project to date is in 

accordance with the project schedule. 



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 201354

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

The end user certificate was approved by the Directorate 

Conventional Arms Control (DCAC) committee on 

 21 January 2013. The planned completion date for the refit 

is July 2014. 

4.1.4.2  SAS CHARLOTTE MAXEKE (docking 

for essential defects) 

The SAS CHARLOTTE MAXEKE was within a docking for 

essential maintenance period. However, the unforeseen 

damage to SAS QUEEN MODADJI II resulted in the 

maintenance period of SAS CHARLOTTE MAXEKE being 

delayed by six weeks, placing an additional workload on the 

limited submarine qualified capability in the Dockyard. 

The project was completed in accordance with the  

revised date.

4.1.4.3 SAS QUEEN MODJADJI I (assist 

maintenance period) 

In the reporting period this vessel underwent an assisted 

maintenance period (AMP) lasting six weeks, to effect 

maintenance and implementation of engineering changes. 

The AMP activities were successfully completed within the 

planned time schedules and the vessel was able to deploy.

4.1.5 iNDEPENDENT VESSELS

4.1.5.1  SAS PROTEA (docking for essential 

defects)

This vessel docked on 5 June 2012 and had to undock on 

28 August 2012 for the undocking of SAS SPIOENKOP. The 

vessel docked again on 4 September 2012. Blocks had to be 

reset to the front of the Drydock to accommodate the SAS 

DRAKENSBERG in the back section of the Drydock. 

The planned completion date for this DED was  

22 October 2012. The critical path on this project was the 

repair of valves. More than 150 valves had to be removed, 

repaired and replaced. The condition of the valves was worse 

than what was anticipated and certain components had to 

be manufactured. The manufacture of the components was 

initially not planned for in the project. This had a negative 

impact on the completion date. 

This project also had a 36% scope growth from project 

start, resulting in further delays. The vessel undocked 

on 4  December 2012. Systems were set to work and the 

Dockyard achieved 78,2% compliance with the project 

milestones. 

The project was completed on 12 February 2013 and the 

vessel was declared operational. 

4.1.5.2  SAS DRAKENSBERG (docking for 

essential defects)

The vessel docked on 12 September 2012. All planned 

underwater work was completed on time and the 

vessel successfully undocked on the planned date of  

6 December 2012. The remaining maintenance tasks were 

carried out alongside. 

The completion date of the project was 28  February 2013 

but was revised by the SAN as several CFE items from the 

SAN were outstanding. The revised completion date is  

31 May 2013. 

4.2 INFRASTRUCTURE UPkEEP

Once-off additional funding was received from the SA Navy 

for infrastructure upkeep. The refurbishment of one Drydock 

caisson was undertaken and a number of wharf cranes were 

refurbished.   The funding was also used to re-capitalise a 

range of outdated equipment such as compressors and 

scaffolding, thus further enhancing the Dockyard’s ability 

to support the SAN. The drydock facilities were in full use 

during the reporting period to accommodate the SAN and 

the Department of Forestry and Fisheries (DAFF) fleet.
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5. QUALiTY AND iNfORMATiON 
TECHNOLOGY 

Armscor embarked on a strategic initiative to insource its 

corporate information and communication technology 

services. 

The contract with the current service provider, T-Systems, 

ended on 31 March 2012. T-Systems was subsequently 

contracted for a transitional phase during which Armscor’s 

ICT division would be capacitated to provide this service 

in-house. The insourcing exercise was preceded by an ICT 

skills audit, which indicated the skills gaps. These gaps are 

being addressed in order to fully staff the ICT function with 

suitably qualified and experienced human resources.

Risk assessment on the ICT application environment was 

performed as part of the short-term plan of the ICT strategy. 

The assessment concluded that there was a need for the 

overhaul of the corporate application systems, so that ICT 

can effectively and efficiently support the corporate goals.

The ICT strategy was approved by the Board of Directors, 

which paves the way for a corporate-wide applications 

renewal. 

6. COMPLiANCE

ISO 9001 is a globally recognised accreditation standard for 

quality and Armscor is committed to maintaining its ISO 

9001 accreditation. Armscor was re-certified by the SABS as 

a compliant company. During the re-certification audits, ten 

minor non-conformances were raised and corrected. SABS 

confirmed Armscor’s ISO 9001: 2008 certification status 

for the fourth time since first certification in 2003. During 

the surveillance audit, two minor non-conformances were 

raised and corrected.

Compliance with SHE regulations is another important 

area of Armscor’s compliance focus, especially given its 

importance to employee wellbeing and the significant 

increase in penalties for non-compliance. The organisation 

has adopted management systems such as ISO 14001, ISO 

22000 and OHSAS 18001.

All operations strive to achieve continual improvement in the 

management of risks and seek to prevent, mitigate, reduce 

and offset the impacts of our activities. The organisation is 

continually monitoring and measuring the associated risks to 

enable conformity to statutory and regulatory requirements 

and to preserve the environment for future generations. A 

risk committee has been established to review and improve 

management systems proactively  and monitor progress.

Armscor has embarked on a process of assessing legal 

compliance across the organisation and formalising a 

compliance programme for assurance and governance. 

An assessment programme was undertaken to implement 

a hazardous identification and risk assessment across the 

organisation, which will continue during the next financial 

year. The strategy to correct non-conformances has been 

implemented to ensure compliance, increase operational 

effectiveness and provide safe and healthy workplaces. 

Contact and interaction with the SADI were maintained in 

order to promote security awareness within the defence 

acquisition environment and to ensure the continued 

execution of security related best practices. 

The Facility Security Clearance status of 412 defence 

contractors was reassessed during the year of review, and 

388 facility security clearance certificates reissued. The 

remainder were downgraded to unclassified as they no 

longer have active involvement in Armscor business. The 

security status of these defence suppliers was found to be of 

a moderate to high standard. 

A personnel security clearance status of 97,8% was 

maintained for valid security clearances and the rest are part 

of the re-application process. The corresponding figure for 

the Defence industry is 86%.
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For the year under review, security baselines were 

reconfirmed for 54 acquisition and technology projects, and 

it was found that defence acquisition data and information 

repositories were conforming to prescriptions. 

The quality engineering function conducts technical 

auditing mainly over the acquisition process, which assure 

the technical integrity of acquisition programmes. This 

function also provides an independent assurance of the 

tender process to ensure integrity. 

Acquisition projects were assured by quality divisions to 

ensure that despite timescales and financial pressures, 

technical integrity was unaffected. Quality assurance 

representatives were assigned to all projects to fulfil 

this function. These quality representatives also provide 

assurance of the processes of defence contractors to support 

“first time right” product delivery, to the benefit of all. 

Government quality assurance is a process through which a 

quality assurance service is provided to other government 

organisations and in return knowledge of new technologies 

is gained. During the year under review two organisations 

were attended to. 

Services to the SAPS regarding body armour products was 

provided as part of a three-year contract and a service to 

the Netherlands Ministry of Defence regarding ammunition 

manufactured in South Africa. A total amount of R1,2 million 

was earned during the period under review, which was 

charged for services rendered.

Skills development remains a focal point and training has 

been given in the department to ensure that it maintains 

the required capability to fulfil its function across the 

organisation, given new technologies and systems for which 

quality assurance must be provided.

7. DEfENCE ExPORT SUPPORT 

The marketing and business development function was 

established by Armscor to fulfil its mandate better in 

providing marketing support to the defence related industry 

in respect of defence matériel. In addition, commercial 

opportunities are exploited as may arise out of Armscor’s 

duty to acquire defence matériel or to manage technology 

projects. This ultimately supports Government’s strategic 

initiatives, i.e. job creation, skills development and a growing 

inclusive economy.

Armscor’s traditional support to the South African Defence 

Industy (SADI) remains a priority. This support entails, 

among others, the facilitation of the participation of SADI 

at international defence exhibitions; the management of 

requests for the utilisation of SANDF equipment, personnel 

and facilities for marketing SADI products and services/

capabilities; the provision of defence international co-

operation services and market research. 

These functions are on a cost basis and covered under a 

memorandum of agreement with the DOD.

Besides providing support to SADI, Armscor will market 

its capabilities in target markets. It will identify, pursue 

and realise business opportunities emanating from its  

marketing efforts. 

The following activities were undertaken in the period  

under review: 

7.1  AFRICA AEROSPACE AND DEFENCE

The Africa Aerospace and Defence exhibition (AAD), Africa’s 

largest exhibition of air, sea and land capability, returned to 

Pretoria and to its original home, the Waterkloof Air Force 

Base. This was after the previous three exhibitions (in 2006, 

2008 and 2010) were held at Ysterplaat Air Force Base in 

Cape Town while Waterkloof Air Force Base was undergoing 

extensive renovations and upgrades, particularly to its 

runway.
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The AAD 2012 exhibition was a great success in that it 

managed to draw the attention of many countries in Africa 

and around the world. As a result, a number of interactions 

were conducted, which is a positive response to one of the 

elements encapsulated in the new Armscor Strategy – that 

of creating new partnerships and strengthening existing 

relationships. 

Armscor hosted and had engagements with South 

African Development Community (SADC) countries and 

its counterparts from the following countries: Botswana, 

Namibia, France, Germany, India, Italy, Malawi, Malaysia, 

Mozambique, Pakistan, Russia, Sweden, Tanzania, Ukraine, 

the UK and the USA.

The Minister visited all national pavilions, all South African 

companies that were exhibiting at the AAD, as well as the 

Youth Development Programme (YDP). 

40 000 industry players visited AAD 2012 during its three 

trade days, including official delegations from 31 countries. 

AAD 2012 grew in the following areas compared to the 

previous exhibition: 

a. 347 direct exhibitors compared to 256.

b. 15 national pavilions compared to 7.

c. 25 573 trade visitors compared to 18 737.

d. 101 countries as visitors compared to 59.

However, there was a decrease in countries exhibiting, from 

31 to 26.

The AAD show succeeded in assisting with the 

implementation of the initiatives envisaged in the Industrial 

Policy Action Plan (IPAP). The IPAP has identified the aerospace 

sector as one of the clusters earmarked for industrial policy 

interventions - noting its capacity to develop indigenous 

products and technology - strengthening South Africa’s 

high-end manufacturing capabilities and its significant 

multiplier effect on job creation. 

AAD takes place on a biennial basis, the AAD 2012 took 

place from 19 to 23 September 2012. The first three days of 

the exhibition were mainly trade days, followed by two air 

show days which were open to the public. 

AAD 2012 was officially opened by the Minister of Defence 

and Military Veterans, Ms Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula, and was 

attended by various Ministers of Defence from the following 

countries: Botswana, Italy, Egypt, Malaysia, Namibia, the 

People’s Republic of China, Tanzania, Ukraine, Thailand, 

Zambia and Zimbabwe. 

Since its inception in 2000, the AAD Expo has continued 

to grow in size and stature. In 2012 there were 92 civilian 

and military aircraft on static display and 350 exhibitors. 

Those who attended included 300 accredited media 

representatives from all over the world and eight ministerial 

delegations. There were 14 national pavilions, as well as 

exhibitors from Namibia - the only African country. The 

trade days featured 11 National Pavilions: the United 

States (USA), China, Belgium, Germany, Italy, Turkey, Russia, 

India, Switzerland, Romania and the United Kingdom. 

These national pavilions stimulated business for local and 

international companies involved in the growing defence, 

general aviation and security industries. 

The trade days were followed by the public days and a 

spectacular air show on 22 to 23 September. The public 

days attracted a crowd of approximately 50 000 spectators  

per day.

AAD 2012 was hailed a resounding success by all who 

attended, both locally and internationally. The overall 

impression was that the event was well coordinated 

and well managed, although there are areas that need  

constant improvement. The marketing of the event included 

the use of billboards, print and electronic media (both radio 

and television). For the first time in the history of the AAD, 

the event was broadcast live on SABC, Morning Live. 
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to the entire event. The relationship that has been 

established with the City of Tshwane in hosting the 

event needs to be further strengthened and enhanced. 

This partnership has ensured that the AAD is pitched 

at the same level as similar exhibitions elsewhere in 

the world. The economic spin-offs derived from this 

event are important for the economy and growth of 

the City of Tshwane and South Africa.

 • The local industry was fully marketed and the Minister 

and Armscor successfully managed to do walkabouts 

to all identified national pavilions, with a view to 

strengthening relationships. 

7.2 DEFENCE EXHIBITIONS

Armscor is responsible for rendering export support by 

facilitating and coordinating representation of the Ministry 

of Defence (MOD), DOD and SADI at international exhibitions. 

Armscor coordinated and supported the participation of 

SADI at the following international defence exhibitions: 

 • DSA 2012, 16-19 April 2012 in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

 • EUROSATORY 2012, 11-15 June 2012 in Paris, France. 

 • AAD 2012, 19–23 September 2012 in Pretoria 

(Waterkloof AFB), South Africa. 

 • Milipol Qatar 2012, 26-28 October 2012 in  

Doha, Qatar.

 • Indo Defence 2012, 7-10 November 2012 in  

Jakarta, Indonesia.

 • IDEAS 2012, 7-11 November 2012 in Karachi, Pakistan.

 • IDEX 2013, 17-21 February in Abu Dhabi,  

UAE.

56 South African exhibitors participated in the foreign 

international shows, which represents a decrease of 26% 

compared to the previous year. 

DENEL achieved a number of milestones and economic spin-

offs as a result of the show, with the signing of the following 

agreements: 

 • A joint venture with Denel Dynamics and the Abu 

Dhabi-based Tawazun Holdings

 • Partnership agreements with four of the world’s 

largest manufacturers of helicopters and fixed–wing 

aircraft 

 • Agreement with Denel Aerostructures and Italy-

based Alenia Aermacchi

 • Renegotiation Agreement with Airbus Military 

 • An agreement with the Russian Helicopter and Irkut 

Corporation as well as the Ukraine–based Antonov. 

Some of the successes of AAD 2012 included the following: 

 • The AAD is among the eight biggest exhibitions in 

the world and is diarised in the circuit calendar.

 • AAD 2012 afforded an opportunity for building 

and maintaining relations with international  

defence forces. 

 • The AAD show demonstrated its potential to be seen 

as a platform for the National Defence Force and 

defence Industries to showcase their capabilities and 

to serve as a platform for concrete business deals to be  

agreed upon.

 • AAD gave exposure to small business entities 

through the Department of Trade and Industry, the 

Department of Transport and the Department of 

Science and Technology.

 • The economic spin–offs derived from this event 

will assist in the economic growth of the country, 

while at the same time ensuring that the local 

defence industry is capacitated to compete with its 

international counterparts. 

 • The involvement and participation of the City of 

Tshwane as the host gave credence and impetus 
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7.3  DEFENCE EQUIPMENT AND 
PERSONNEL SUPPORT

Armscor facilitates the DOD support to the defence industry 

by making the SANDF’s personnel, equipment (matériel) 

and facilities available to assist in the marketing initiatives 

of SADI. During the year under review, 57 marketing and 

material aid requests were processed for, among others, 

vehicle tests, training support to foreign pilots and visits by 

foreign delegations to SANDF installations. 

During the period under review, Armscor rendered support 

to the DOD during the inaugural RSA/Tanzanian Defence 

Committee by arranging facilities at Gerotek where SADI 

could demonstrate its capabilities. Armscor also supported 

the President of Benin on his visit to Gerotek, where several 

contracts were signed.

7.4  DEFENCE INTERNATIONAL 
COOPERATION

IBSA was established in June 2003 and is a coordinating 

mechanism among India, Brazil and South Africa for 

political, social and sectorial cooperation. The IBSA Defence 

Joint Working Group (DJWG) is the body responsible for 

defence sectorial cooperation. The fourth meeting of 

the IBSA DJWG conducted in Pretoria over the period  

11 to 12 October 2011, agreed that South Africa would lead 

the combined team of the three countries so as to envisage 

the strategic intent of the IBSA DJWG. The South African 

team comprised members from the DOD, Armscor, South 

African industry and institutes. 

Exploratory visits were undertaken during 2012 by the IBSA 

combined team to identify potential areas of cooperation by 

visiting defence industries, institutes and forces in all three 

countries. 

Based on the information gathered during these visits, South 

Africa has conducted a study on ‘how to realise sustainable 

IBSA defence collaboration’ and issued a draft report to 

the representatives of the combined team detailing the 

opportunities for collaboration, the challenges to trilateral 

defence collaboration and the organisation and processes 

needed to realise sustained collaboration. This report will 

be agreed on and finalised by the combined team and 

presented at the next IBSA DJWG meeting in India in May 

2013.

7.5  PARTICIPATION IN INDUSTRY 
EVENTS – IBSA INDUSTRY 
SEMINAR 

The Defence Industry Seminar hosted by South Africa’s 

Minister of Defence and Military Veterans took place in 

Durban on 25 March 2013, during the fifth  BRICS Heads 

of State Summit. At previous summits BRICS member 

nations agreed to build upon their synergies and intensify 

cooperation that seeks to enhance stability, development 

and security of not only member nations, but also to promote 

the right of other developing nations to self-determination. 

Collaboration at defence industry level will significantly 

assist in the achievement of these objectives. 

Presentations were made by Defence industry stakeholders 

from South Africa, Brazil and Russia, introducing various 

defence capabilities of the countries and confirming 

willingness to work together with partners in the different 

countries. Delegates of the seminar had an opportunity 

to visit the exhibition of the SADI and were requested to 

consider reciprocal engagements with BRICS partners 

to ensure optimal and mutual understanding of such 

collaboration.

8. SUPPORT SERViCES 

8.1 HUMAN RESOURCES

The Human Resources Department continues to provide a 

comprehensive human resource capacity to enhance the 

effectiveness of the organisation through its people by 

ensuring that competent and high–performing employees, 

who live the organisation’s values are attracted and retained. 
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This is to ensure that employees enable the organisation to 

fulfil on its mandate. The Department employs the necessary 

measures to ensure that Armscor remains competitive in the 

labour market. 

To this end, a number of initiatives aimed at addressing the 

critical human capital challenges were identified and plans 

were put in place. Satisfactory progress has been recorded 

in a number of areas that seek to address strategic human 

capital imperatives. 

8.1.1 STAff COMPOSiTiON

The staff profile of Armscor, including Armscor Dockyard, as at 31 March 2013 per broad band, race and gender, is indicated 

below.

ARMSCOR STAFF PROFILE INCLUDING ARMSCOR DOCkyARD AS AT MARCH 2013:

  AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL GRAND 
TOTAL

bb M F M F M F M F M F  

Ex 4 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 6 2 8

SU 14 4 1 0 3 1 28 2 46 7 53

MP 77 29 17 3 21 3 227 32 342 67 409

STS 59 64 29 13 8 10 44 78 140 165 305

AS 71 94 194 26 0 5 44 28 309 153 462

OS 38 24 38 4 0 0 0 0 76 28 104

TOTALS 263 217 279 46 32 19 345 140 919 422 1341

% 19.61 16.18 20.81 3.43 2.39 1.42 25.73 10.44 68.53 31.47 100

% 35.79 24.24 3.80 36.17    

% 63.83 36.17
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ARMSCOR STAFF PROFILE INCLUDING ARMSCOR DOCkyARD AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

The staff profile of Armscor, including Armscor Dockyard, as at 31 March 2012 per broad band, race and gender, is indicated 

below:

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL GRAND 
TOTAL

bb M F M F M F M F M F

Ex 3 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 1 5

SU 12 3 1 0 3 1 33 3 49 7 56

MP 70 20 14 2 17 3 239 34 340 59 399

STS 51 54 26 12 11 10 42 78 130 154 284

AS 51 82 190 27 0 5 46 30 287 144 431

OS 38 25 41 4 0 0 1 0 80 29 109

TOTALS 225 185 272 45 31 19 362 145 890 394 1284

% 17,52 14,41 21,18 3,50 2,41 1,48 28,19 11,29 69,31 30,69 100

% 31,93 24,69 3,89 39,49    

% 60,51 39,49

ARMSCOR STAFF PROFILE ExCLUDING ARMSCOR DOCkyARD

The staff profile of Armscor, excluding Armscor Dockyard, as at 31 March 2013 per broad band, race and gender, is indicated 

below: 

  AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL GRAND 
TOTAL

bb M F M F M F M F M F  

Ex 4 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 6 2 8

SU 12 4 1 0 3 1 26 2 42 7 49

MP 73 29 14 3 20 3 223 32 330 67 397

STS 55 64 12 12 8 10 35 77 110 163 273

AS 46 80 20 18 0 4 6 23 72 125 197

OS 35 24 3 2 0 0 0 0 38 26 64

TOTALS 225 203 50 35 31 18 292 134 598 390 988

% 22.77 20.55 5.06 3.54 62.00 1.82 29.55 13.56 60.53 39.47 100

% 43.32 8.60 4.96 43.12    

% 56.88 43.12
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8.4 CULTURAL AUDIT AND EMPLOYEE 
SATISFACTION SURVEY

The Cultural Audit and Employee Satisfaction Survey was 

conducted in 2010 to define the then existing and desired 

culture for Armscor, as well as the level of satisfaction among 

employees and action plans to address the shortcomings 

that where identified. The average satisfaction amongst 

employees rose from 61,87% in 2010 to 66,48% in 2013.

8.5 SUCCESSION PLANNING

Succession planning is used to anticipate the future needs 

of the organisation and to assist in finding, assessing and 

developing human capital necessary to the strategy of the 

organisation and to focus on key positions. The organisation 

has completed a process to identify key positions and a total 

of more than 90 young engineers and scientists employees 

were identified as possible successors for each of the 

identified positions. 

Key positions are defined as management or specialist 

position that require a “hard to acquire” specialised skill 

which is not freely available internally or externally, has a 

major impact on business, and as such a potential continuity 

risk exists if the current incumbent should depart. 

8.6 SkILLS DEVELOPMENT

Armscor has continued with actions to retain, obtain and 

develop the skills to achieve the organisational objectives. 

For this reason skills development remained an important 

focus area. A number of initiatives have been ongoing in  

this area.

8.2 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

In the year under review, Armscor participated in the Director 

General’s review on Equity, and Armscor employment 

equity was subsequently approved. Satisfactory progress 

and targets to increase the number of black employees 

in the financial year were achieved and improvement was 

recorded. 

Attracting black women in management remains a 

challenge; however Armscor is close to achieving this 

objective. Progress on the elimination of barriers and 

affirmative action measures is well monitored by the 

Employment Equity Committee.

At the Dockyard, the Armscor Employment Equity 

Committee (ADEEC) was established to provide a platform 

for consultation between Dockyard management and 

employees and/or their representatives on all matters 

provided for in the Employment Equity Act (EEA). This 

committee allows for Dockyard employees to receive on-

going information from the ADEEC in terms of implementing 

the employment equity process at Armscor Dockyard. 

8.3 TRANSFORMATION:  
TARGETS 2012/2013

Performance in this regard is driven by specific targets, 

action plans and continuous measurement and monitoring. 

The specific targets and achievements during the year at the 

organisational top three occupational levels were as follows:

OCCUPATIONAL 
LEvEL yEARS bLACk 

EMPLOyEES WOMEN

Top management 01.04.2012 4 1

31.03.2013 6 2

Senior 
management

01.04.2012 21 7

31.03.2013 25 7

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and 
mid-management

01.04.2012 126 60

31.03.2013 150 67
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As a result Armscor Dockyard has recruited a total of 48 

artisans to ensure that Armscor Dockyard is capacitated to 

support the SAN in a variety of trades. Of the 48 Artisans 

recruited, 58% are African, 38% are Coloured and 4% are 

White. African female artisans make up 15% of the newly 

recruited artisans.

8.6.4  ADULT BASiC EDUCATiON AND 
TRAiNiNG (ABET)

The Adult Education Training (AET), formerly known as 

Adult Basic Education and Training (ABET), is an important 

element in developing all employees who historically did 

not receive any formal education. Armscor strengthened 

this intervention by:

 • Extensively marketing the programme and its benefits 

to employees who qualify for this programme in all 

departments of Armscor.

 • Setting aside funds to appoint service providers who 

will ensure improved training delivery of the AET 

programme.

 • Identified additional programmes for the candidates 

who completed the AET programme. Additional 

programmes such as digital literacy, artisan training in 

trades such electricity and welding are now available 

to candidates who have completed AET.

In the 2011/12 financial year, there were 15 candidates on 

the AET programme. In the year under review, the number 

has increased to 20, broken down as follows: 

 • 13 candidates from Armscor.

 • 2 candidates from the Department of Defence

 • 4 candidates from contractors.

 • 1 external candidate who is not an employee of 

Armscor.

8.6.1  ARMSCOR SENiOR 
MANAGEMENT LEADERSHiP 
PROGRAMME

The Armscor Senior Management and Leadership 

Programme was presented for the second time during 

the year under review. The course consists of six modules 

presented over a period of six months; with 12 attendees 

wrote and passed the examination. The course was 

developed based on Armscor’s specific needs by an external 

service provider, identified through the tender process. 

8.6.2 fUNCTiONAL TRAiNiNG

Armscor continues to ensure that its current workforce is well 

trained by providing functional training in the form of short 

courses. These courses are provided to all employees in their 

specific fields of expertise. For the financial year in review, 

over 900 employees were afforded training opportunities 

in their domain-specific technologies. Most of the 

training programmes were provided by suppliers based in  

South Africa.

In order to improve the quality and the number of training 

programmes available to our employees, Armscor has made 

funding available to source additional international training 

programmes. 

8.6.3 DOCKYARD TRAiNiNG CENTRE

In order to meet requirements from the SAN, Armscor has 

set aside funding to renovate the Armscor Dockyard Training 

Centre in Simon’s Town. Implementation of the renovation 

programme has already started. 

Armscor continued to forge partnerships with Sectorial 

Education Training Authorities (SETA). In the past financial 

year, Armscor Dockyard has presented plans for approval 

with various SETAs such as merSETA, SASSETA and Service 

SETA to ensure that the Dockyard Training Centre supports 

the skills development ambitions of South Africa.
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Denel provides our young candidate engineers with training 

opportunities to improve their core engineering training 

activities.

The number of candidates in the programme was increased 

from 13 to 20 by January 2013. Management also approved 

funding for an additional 14 candidates for the programme 

for the next financial year. 

Other activities implemented to strengthen this programme 

includes the following:

 • bursaries

The Armscor Bursary Scheme is the primary tool used 

to supply and retain critical skills in Armscor. Through 

this scheme both existing and potential employees 

are afforded an opportunity to further their formal 

studies. 

Armscor is currently providing a total of 25 bursaries 

to undergraduate students at various universities 

across South Africa. 

 • Universities visited by Armscor for sourcing of 

bursary students

As part of the activity to address the shortage of 

critical, scarce skills within the organisation, as well 

as to encourage young South Africans to consider 

careers within Armscor and the defence industry, 

Armscor embarked on a roadshow to universities to 

present Armscor as “Employer of Choice”.

One of the ways to achieve this was to participate 

in open days, Career Fairs and EXPO’s of identified 

universities. 

In the year under review, Armscor visited universities 

in the following provinces:

 – Eastern Cape

 – Gauteng

8.6.5 TALENT DEVELOPMENT 
PROGRAMME 

The Talent Development Programme is one of Armscor’s 

strategies to ensure that there is a constant supply of young 

talent to the organisation. 

The programme aims at ensuring that young graduates are 

developed and prepared for future roles in the organisation. 

Candidates are carefully selected and trained for a period of 

two years. 

A complete review and renewal of the talent development 

programme will be implemented. The new programme 

will be linked to the training requirement of professional 

bodies such as the Engineering Council of SA (ECSA), South 

African Institute of Charted Accountants (SAICA) and other 

professional bodies. The new programme will involve three 

phases, namely: 

 • Fundamental Phase

 – The Fundamental Phase aims to ensure 

candidates acclimatise to the corporate 

requirements.

 • Core Technical Phase

 – The Core Technical Phase ensures that 

candidates are trained in their specific 

engineering or scientific environment to gain 

sound technical skills.

 • Domain Specific Training 

 – The last phase of the programme ensures that 

candidates are trained in the specific role they 

will be playing in Armscor.

A different funding model was successfully developed in the 

past financial year. The TDP will in future be in the form of 

Public Private Partnership (PPP). Different stakeholders have 

been approached to partner to afford our youth a training 

opportunity in the defence sector. 
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 – KwaZulu-Natal

 – Limpopo

 – North West

 – Western Cape

Further to the above, Armscor is embarking on 

building solid relationships with certain faculties in 

some of the universities. The relationship-building 

with universities aims to achieve the following:

 – Funding certain research work conducted in 

these faculties.

 – Funding high-performing candidates in these 

institutions.

 – Exchange of latest research between Armscor 

experts and the university professors.

8.7 DOCkYARD TRAINING AND 
DEVELOPMENT

8.7.1 TECHNiCAL TRAiNiNG 
REJUVENATiON

The training of 27 apprentices placed in the electrical, 

mechanical and construction sections continued. Since 

they are in their final year of training, trade testing centres 

were contacted for dates on which the apprentices can be 

accommodated for testing. 

The process to recruit 50 apprentices (new intakes) started 

in November 2012. The target start date for the first group 

is 1 June 2013 and for the second group (balance) July 2013.

8.7.2 SUPERViSOR TRAiNiNG

Sixty-one supervisory to middle management level 

employees attended training sessions covering the scope of 

basic management functions. Feedback received has been 

used to structure follow-up workshops aimed at developing 

action plans to address gaps highlighted during the training. 

8.8. DOCkYARD CONDITIONS OF 
SERVICE

The major breakthrough was the conclusion of the 

Substantive Agreement on the Dockyard’s Terms and 

Conditions of Employment in 2012. The implementation 

thereof was with effect from 1 July 2012. Much alignment 

has been achieved between the terms, conditions and 

practices of the Dockyard and those of Armscor Corporate. 

Over and above the standard terms and conditions, the 

most visible and immediate effects were the following:

 • Medical aid to employees who previously were not 

on medical aid.

 • Occupation specific dispensation (OSD) benefits.

 • Long service awards benefits.
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9.2 ARMSCOR DEFENCE 
INSTITUTES: SOCIO-ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT IN PRIESkA

In the previous financial year, it was reported that Armscor 

donated computer equipment to three identified schools in 

Prieska. This was to ensure that Armscor capacitates learners 

in Prieska with computer skills. 

In the current financial year, Armscor finalised the installation 

of custom-made desks; the final installation and set-up was 

completed in October 2012.

In addition to the upgrading project, the team leader 

collected approximately 1 ton of second-hand clothing that 

was donated to the inter-church body in Prieska. The body 

undertook to distribute the clothing to the needy in the 

Prieska community. 

Involvement with the Kalafong Provincial Hospital to 

support the management team in striving towards service 

excellence is ongoing. The national cycling championships 

for the mentally and physically disabled were hosted by 

Gerotek. Gerotek employees from EE designated groups, 

namely two B-Tech degree candidates and one Master’s 

degree candidate, were supported in achieving their tertiary 

qualifications.

9. CORPORATE SOCiAL 
iNVESTMENT (CSi) 

Corporate social investment (CSI) is an obligation and duty 

of companies to invest back into the communities in which 

they operate. The CSI is premised on the principle that large 

corporations and enterprises can no longer continue to focus 

only on economic performance, without paying attention to 

what is happening around them. Armscor actively supports 

the following CSI initiatives: 

9.1 LEARNER ENHANCEMENT  
PROGRAMME

In addressing the considerable shortage of skills in the 

country, specifically in the technical field, Armscor is involved 

in a Learner Enhancement Programme which aims to assist 

learners from disadvantaged communities to improve their 

performance and results in the subjects of Mathematics, 

English and Physical Science. 

The programme involves learners from eight schools 

in Atteridgeville and Olievenhoutbosch in Pretoria. The 

programme yielded positive results, as learners enrolled in 

the programme showed an average improvement of 51% for 

both Grade 11 and Grade 12 learners, in both Mathematics 

and Physical Science.

Over and above the extra lessons, learners visited the 

University of Pretoria’s, Faculty of Engineering Open Day.
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University open day
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9.3 NELSON MANDELA DAY 

Nelson Mandela International Day, also known as Mandela 

Day, is held on 18 July each year. The day remembers former 

President Nelson Mandela’s achievements in working 

towards conflict resolution, democracy, human rights, peace 

and reconciliation. The day not only celebrates his life, but 

is also a global call to action for people to recogniSe their 

ability to have a positive effect on others around them.

The overarching objective of Nelson Mandela Day is to 

inspire individuals to take action to help change the world 

for the better and in doing so build a global movement for 

good. The ultimate intention of Mandela Day is to empower 

communities everywhere. The day hopes to inspire 

people to embrace the values that Mandela shared. These 

values include democracy, freedom, equality, diversity, 

reconciliation and respect. Many organisations around 

the world take part in many activities to promote Nelson 

Mandela Day through volunteering.

In 2012 the focus was on schools, and Armscor celebrated 

the day by taking part in “A Clean–up Campaign” at four 

identified schools in and around the Pretoria townships. 

Armscor requested the Gauteng Education Department 

in the Tshwane West District to help identify these needy 

schools in the area. Armscor employees, led by the 

executive management, spent the entire day at these four 

schools painting and conducting minor repairs. This was to 

encourage volunteerism amongst employees. Employees 

who participated on the day indicated that the experience 

was gratifying and that they would certainly participate 

again, when called on in the future. 

9.4 ARMSCOR WOMEN’S DAY 
CELEBRATION

During Women’s Month in August 2012, employees of 

Armscor organised a charity event to donate toiletries to the 

SOS Children’s Village, a home for orphaned and abandoned 

children in Mamelodi (east of Pretoria). 

Employees were requested to donate toiletries at various 

depository areas within Armscor  Head Office. The response 

was overwhelming, as pledges poured in, and Armscor was 

requested to match the equivalent quantity of the goods 

donated. All the donations were then dispatched and 

subsequently handed over to the SOS (Mamelodi). This kind 

gesture was reciprocated by a recognition certification and 

Armscor logo being displayed on the SOSwebsite. 
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The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has adopted 

appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk 

Committee charter, and that is has discharged all of its 

responsibilities as contained therein.

Although the Armscor Board is accountable for the process 

of risk management and systems of internal control, these 

ongoing processes are reviewed by the Audit and Risk 

Committee for effectiveness. The main corporate risks 

monitored include the following: 

 • Inadequate ICT and application systems to support 

the organisation;

 • Armscor’s inability to render the required acquisition 

support to fully meet client expectations;

 • Non-compliance with legislation, which poses a risk 

to the accountability of processes and the reputation 

of the organisation;

 • Dockyard’s inability to render required services in 

terms of mandate; 

 • Negative stakeholder relationships;

 • Leakage of information (Security classified / Company 

confidential);

 • Insufficient funding for sustainability;

 • Non-compliance with Safety, Health and Environment 

legal requirements; and

 • Loss of critical capabilities to execute 

the mandate due to the erosion and/or   

loss of critical human resources;

The Audit and Risk Committee regularly reports to the Board 

on its activities as well as on all recommendations made in 

the execution of its responsibilities. 

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied, based on the 

information and explanations given by management 

and the Internal Audit, as well as through discussion with 

the Auditor-General on the result of their audits, that an 

adequate system of internal control is being maintained to:

 • reduce the entity’s risk to an acceptable level;

 • meet the business objectives of the group;

 • ensure that the group’s assets are safeguarded; and

 • ensure that the transactions undertaken are recorded 

in the entity’s records.

The Audit and Risk Committee has evaluated the annual 

financial statements  of the of the Armscor group for the 

year ended 31 March 2013 and considers that they comply, 

in all material respects, with the requirements of the Public 

Finance Management Act (Act  No. 1 of 1999), as amended, 

as well as with the South African Statements of Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice.

The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the results of 

the external audit on the annual financial statements and 

accordingly concurs with the opinion expressed therein.

The Audit and Risk Committee agrees that the adoption of 

the going concern premise is appropriate in preparing the 

annual financial statements.  It has therefore recommended 

the adoption of this annual report to the Board of Directors 

at its meeting on 14 August 2013.

MR EL BOROLE

CHAIRPERSON

REPORT Of THE AUDiT AND RiSK COMMiTTEE
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REPORT Of THE AUDiTOR-GENERAL TO PARLiAMENT ON 
ARMAMENTS CORPORATiON Of SOUTH AfRiCA SOC LiMiTED

REPORT ON THE CONSOLiDATED  
fiNANCiAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction

1. I have audited the consolidated and separate 

financial statements of the Armaments Corporation of 

South Africa SOC Limited and its subsidiaries set out 

on pages 100 to 152, which comprise the consolidated 

and separate statement of financial position as at  

31 March 2013, the consolidated and separate 

statement of comprehensive income, statement of 

changes in equity and statement of cash flows for 

the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the 

consolidated financial statements

2. The Board of Directors which constitutes the 

accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation 

and fair presentation of these consolidated and 

separate financial statements in accordance with 

South African Statements of Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and the 

requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 

1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Companies 

Act, 2008 (Act No.71 of 2008), and for such internal 

control as the accounting authority determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 

and separate financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

consolidated and separate financial statements based 

on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance  

with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act 

No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued 

in terms thereof and International Standards on 

Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

consolidated and separate financial statements are 

free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the consolidated and separate financial statements. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks 

of material misstatement of the consolidated and 

separate financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 

and separate financial statements in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 

the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the consolidated and separate 

financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

audit opinion.
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Opinion

6. In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial 

statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the Armaments Corporation of 

South Africa SOC Limited and its subsidiaries as at 

31 March 2013, and their financial performance and 

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 

with SA Statements of GAAP and the requirements of 

the PFMA and the Companies Act, 2008 (Act No.71 of 

2008).

Emphasis of matter

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is 

not modified in respect of this matter.

Material losses/Impairments 

8. As disclosed in note 6 and 19 to the financial 

statements, an amount of R26.3 million (2012:  

R24 million) was incurred as a result of impairment 

losses recognised on receivables. The total cumulative 

value of the impairment loss that is accounted for in 

the statement of financial position is R98.2 million 

(2012: R98 million). A significant proportion of this 

amount relates to rental income that is outstanding 

from the Department of Public Works.

Additional matter

9. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is 

not modified in respect of this matter.

Other reports required by the Companies Act 

10. As part of my audit of the financial statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2013, I have read the Directors’ 

Report, the report of the Audit and Risk Committee, 

the Group Five-year review and the Group Value-

added Statement for the purpose of identifying 

whether there are material inconsistencies between 

these reports and the audited financial statements. 

These reports are the responsibility of the respective 

preparers. Based on reading these reports I have 

not identified material inconsistencies between the 

reports and the audited financial statements. I have 

not audited the reports and accordingly do not 

express an opinion on them.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUiREMENTS

11. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice 

issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings 

relevant to performance against predetermined 

objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and 

internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion.

Predetermined objectives

12. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 

usefulness and reliability of the information in the 

performance against goals report as set out on pages 

83 to 95 of the annual report. 

13. The reported performance against predetermined 

objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria 

of usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of 

information in the annual performance report relates 

to whether it is presented in accordance with the 

National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and 

whether the reported performance is consistent 

with the planned objectives. The usefulness of 

information further relates to whether indicators and 

targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, 

specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant 

as required by the National Treasury Framework for 

managing programme performance information.

The reliability of the information in respect of the 

selected objectives is assessed to determine whether 

it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, 

accurate and complete).
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14. There were no material findings on the performance 

against goals report concerning the usefulness and 

reliability of the information.

Additional matter

15. Although no material findings concerning the 

usefulness and reliability of the performance 

information were identified in the performance 

against goals report, I draw attention to the 

following matter below.

Achievement of planned targets

16. Of the total number of 32 targets planned for the 

year, 9 targets were not achieved during the year 

under review. This represents 28% of total planned 

targets that were not achieved during the year 

under review. This was mainly due to the non- 

achievement of strategic objectives that are still 

being implemented at 31 March 2013.

Compliance with laws and regulations

17. I did not identify any instances of material non-

compliance with specific matters in key applicable 

laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice 

issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal control

18. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 

which I considered sufficiently significant for inclusion 

in this report.

........................................................

PRETORIA

31 JuLY 2013
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The Board recognises and acknowledges its responsibility 

for the group’s internal control systems.

Management is responsible for preparing the Annual 

Financial Statements and the Group Annual Financial 

Statements in accordance with South African Statements of 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practices.

The Directors, supported by the Audit and Risk Committee, 

are satisfied that management introduced and maintained 

adequate internal controls to ensure that dependable 

records exist for the preparation of the financial statements, 

to safeguard the assets of the group and to ensure that all 

transactions are duly authorised.

Against this background the Directors of Armscor accept 

responsibility for the financial statements. The information 

on pages 78 to 152 was approved by the Board of Directors 

on 14 August 2013.

MR EL BOROLE

CHAIRPERSON

ON BEHALF OF THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE 
BOARD

DiRECTORS’ APPROVAL Of THE ANNUAL REPORT 
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COMPOSiTiON Of THE BOARD Of DiRECTORS

TERM Of OffiCE Of DiRECTORS

bOARD 
MEMbER

DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT

DATE OF 
ExPIRy

(1ST TERM)

DATE OF RE-
APPOINTMENT

(2ND TERM)

DATE OF 
ExPIRy OF 2ND 

TERM

TERM SERvED 
ExTENDED

Ms R Mokoena 01 May 2008 30 April 2011 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 3 years (one term) 
23 months

Mr EL Borole 01 May 2008 30 April 2011 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 3 years (one term) 
23 months

Mr LW Mosiako 01 May 2008 30 April 2011 01 May 2011  30 April 2014 3 years (one term)
23 months

Mr SA Msibi 01 May 2008 30 April 2011 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 3 years (one term)
23 months

Lt Gen (Ret) MM 
Motau 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 - - 1 year 11 months

Dr RR Mgijima 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 - - 1 year 11 months

Dr JL Job 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 - - 1 year 11 months

Dr PP Dyantyi 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 - - 1 year 11 months

Mr JS Mkwanazi 07 Jan 2010

Appointment 
is linked to his 

position as Acting 
Chief Executive 

Officer

Mr JG Grobler 11 Sep 2008

Appointment 
is linked to his 
position as the 
Chief Financial 

Officer

COMPANY SECRETARY

Adv. NB Senne 01 May 2011 Full-time Company Secretary 
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iNTRODUCTiON

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa Limited 

(“Armscor”) is a statutory body, established in terms of the 

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC, Limited Act 

(Act No 51 of 2003), as amended. It is also a state owned 

company as contemplated in the Companies Act, 2008. 

Furthermore, it is listed as a schedule 2 Public Entity in terms 

of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 

1999), as amended (PFMA). It is further regulated by the 

Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and those of the 

Companies Act, 2008.

This report is therefore presented in terms of the relevant 

provisions of the PFMA and the Companies Act. It provides 

an overview on the performance of Armscor, measured 

against performance targets that the Corporation had set 

itself for the year under review.   

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors provides ethical leadership to the 

Corporation and accordingly oversees the management of 

the strategic direction of the Corporation and the application 

of its assets in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Government of the Republic of South Africa, represented 

by the Minister of Defence, is the sole shareholder of the 

Corporation. The shareholder relationship is managed, 

among others, through a shareholder compact, setting 

out the deliverables agreed between the Corporation and 

the Department and supported by a corporate plan, which 

ensures that the Corporation’s targets, measures and outputs 

are clearly articulated to enhance the Board’s accountability.

The Corporation services the requirements of the 

Department of Defence or other clients in terms of a service 

level agreement (SLA). The SLA must be based on the 

shareholder compact, be focused on the functions of the 

corporation, specify measureable objectives and milestones, 

specify a system to monitor the delivery of service, provide 

for the maintenance of the Corporation’s capabilities over the 

long term, provide for the terms and conditions applicable 

to the service to be rendered by the Corporation and set out 

the rate at which the Corporation may charge for its services.

At each meeting, the members of the Board are required to 

declare any interest they may have in respect of any matter 

to be decided at that meeting. In preparing documents for 

submission to the Board, Management is required to certify 

that all relevant information has been placed before the 

Board to enable it to make decisions that serve the interests 

of the Corporation.

Members of the Board have unrestricted access to the 

Company Secretary, who is required by law to provide them 

with guidance with regard to the proper discharge of their 

responsibilities.

THE BOARD

The Board has completed a second year of its three-year 

term. It remains committed to its strategy, which seeks to 

achieve the following:

 • Building a strong regional outlook and marketing 

effort on the continent;

 • Developing a strong research capacity on the country;

 • Supporting the local defence-related industrial 

capacity;

 • Limiting foreign control of strategically important 

defence industry capabilities;

 • Ensuring that the national strategic technologies are 

protected;

DiRECTORS’ REPORT 
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 • Financing the Corporation;

 • Playing a leading role in developing the defence 

industry;

 • Leading efforts of commercialisation and 

diversification of defence technologies;

 • Using its expertise to support government acquisition 

efforts;

 • Participating in Government job creation and skills 

development efforts;

 • Using acquisition power to leverage support for 

industry participation in main acquisitions from 

foreign suppliers;

 • Ensuring that stakeholders support the strategy and 

activities of the Corporation;

 • Building and maintaining a strategic relationship 

with Denel;

 • Building on the research capacity of the country;

 • Building of strategic relationships internationally for 

marketing and research purposes and; ensuring that 

important role players in the region and continent 

are aware of the expertise of Armscor in acquisition.

BOARD AND COMMiTTEE MEETiNGS ATTENDANCE fOR THE YEAR UNDER REViEw

Attendance of Ordinary board and Committee meetings 2012/2013
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Lt Gen MM Motau 6 out of 6 Non-
member Non-member Non-member Non-member Non-member Non-

member

Ms R Mokoena 5 out of 6 2 out of 4 Non-member 2 out of 3 Non-member Non-member 3 out of 5

Mr EL Borole 6 out of 6 4 out of 4 Non-member Non-member Non-member 2 out of 2 5 out of 5

Mr SA Msibi 6 out of 6 Non-
member 3 out of 3 Non-member 2 out of 3 1 out  of 2 Non-

member

Mr LW Mosiako 4 out of 6 2 out of 4 3 out of 3 3 out of 3 3 out of 3 Non-member Non-
member

Dr RR Mgijima 5 out of 6 Non-
member 2 out of 3 3 out of 3 Non-member Non-member Non-

member

Dr PP Dyantyi 6 out of 6 1 out of 4 Non-member 2 out of 3 1 out of 3 Non-member Non-
member

Dr JL Job 6 out of 6 4 out of 4 Non-member Non-member Non-member Non-member 5 out of 5

Mr JS Mkwanazi 
(Acting CEO) 6 out of 6 4 out of 4 3 out of 3 3 out of 3 3 out of 3 2 out of 2 5 out of 5

Mr JG Grobler 
(CFO) 6 out of 6 4 out of 4 3 out of 3 3 out of 3 Non-member 2 out of 2 5 out of 5

Adv  September Resigned 30 April 2012
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External members

Mr RD Marule Non-
member 4 out of 4 Non-member Non-member Non-member Non-

member
Non-

member

Company Secretary

Adv. NB Senne 6 out of 6 4 out of 4 3 out of 3 3 out of 3 3 out of 3 2 out of 2 5 out of 5

SPECiAL AND ExTRAORDiNARY MEETiNGS Of THE BOARD: 2012/2013

NAMES SPECIAL bOARD MEETING

Recruitment of CEOs 
and General Man-

ager’s Positions

board 

In-committee 

board Meeting with Minister/
Portfolio Committee

Lt Gen MM Motau - 2 out of 2 4 out of 4

Dr RR Mgijima 6 out of 6 2 out of 2 4 out of 4

Dr PP Dyantyi - 2 out of 2 3 out of 4

Dr JL Job 2 out of 2 2 out of 2 3 out of 4

Mr EL Borole 2 out of 2 2 out of 2 4 out of 4

Mr SA Msibi 6 out of 6 2 out of 2 3 out of 4

Ms R Mokoena (Msiza) 2 out of 2 1 out of 2 3 out of 4

Mr LW Mosiako 6 out of 6 1 out of 2 4 out of 4

Mr JS Mkwanazi (Acting CEO) - - 4 out of 4

Mr JG Grobler (CFO) - - 4 out of 4

Company Secretary

Adv. NB Senne - 2 out of 2 4 out of 4

BOARD VACANCY

During the year under review, Adv. September resigned from 

the Board in order to pursue her professional career. The 

vacancy must be filled by the Minister in terms of section 7 

of the Armscor Act.

APPOiNTMENT Of THE CEO

On 13 August 2012, the Board met with the Minister to 

inform her about developments at Armscor following 

her appointment. One of the issues discussed was the 

appointment of the CEO. The Board and the Minister agreed 

that the process had become stale and that it should be  

re-started.

Subsequent to this, the Minister was informed of the process 

to be undertaken to recruit a candidate for the position of 

CEO.

The process was indeed re-started and on  

20 December 2012, the result of the Board’s appointment 

process was communicated to the Minister, with a view to 

obtaining her views on the  Board’s preferred candidate.
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BOARD APPRAiSAL

During the year under the review, the Board engaged the 

services of the Institute of Directors of Southern Africa 

(IoDSA) to appraise its performance. The Board considered 

the report of the IoDSA and generated action plans arising 

from it, which it continues to implement. 

DiSQUALifiCATiON Of ARMSCOR DiRECTORS

None of Armscor’s Board members are disqualified from 
serving as directors on any of the grounds contained in 
either the Companies Act, 2008 (as amended) or in the PFMA 
and its regulations.

REQUiREMENTS iN TERMS Of THE 
PROTOCOL ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
iN THE PUBLiC SECTOR

Organisational structure

The organisational structure of the Corporation appears on 
page 13 of this report. 

The Board has concluded the appointment of general 

managers in order to fill out its new executive structure.

Significant events reported to the Executive 
Authority

Other than those stated above, there no significant events 
were reported to the Executive Authority during the year 
under review.

Protocol for communication with shareholder

Communication with the shareholder is channelled 
primarily through the office of the Chairman. In addition, 
ad hoc meetings were held between the Minister and the 
Board. Regular reporting was undertaken in terms of the 
Shareholder’s Compact, and additional ad hoc reports 
were also submitted for consideration by the Minister. The 
requirement for an Annual General Meeting was not met 
during the year under review.

Other Engagements with Stakeholders

During the year under review, the Board appeared before 
the Portfolio Committee on Defence and Military Veterans 
to make presentations on how it had performed its tasks 
as set out in the relevant legislation. The Board presented 
the Armscor Strategy to the Portfolio Committee, which was 
well received. 

The Board also gave the Portfolio Committee a study tour of 
its facilities to ensure that the Committee appreciated how 
the mandate of Armscor was being fulfilled. 

During the year under review, the Board made written and 
oral representations to the Defence Review Committee on 
Defence as a necessary party in the work of that Committee.

Going Concern

The Board has reviewed the Group’s financial budgets for 
the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 and is satisfied 
that adequate resources exist to sustain the Corporation’s 
operations. Armscor is, furthermore, in discussion with the 
Department of Defence to ensure proper funding for the 
required functions to be performed. The directors, therefore, 
have no reason to believe that Armscor will not remain a 
going concern in the foreseeable future.   
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courts do not have jurisdiction to hear the matter.  

Beverly Securities took the matter on appeal and 

the Court found in favour of Beverly Securities in 

the matter. In accordance with the Civil Procedure of 

the Portuguese Courts, Armscor has filed an appeal 

against the judgement with the appeal court in 

Lisbon.

 • RHEINMETALL DENEL MUNITIONS (PTy) LTD

Rheinmetall Denel Munitions filed an application in 

the Western Cape High Court to prevent Armscor from 

licensing third parties to use Department of Defence 

intellectual property. The matter was set down for 

hearing on 6 February 2013 but was postponed to  

5 June 2013.

The parties proceeded to hold a workshop where  

Armscor tabled certain proposals for consideration 

by Rheinmetall Denel Munitions. Accordingly, on 

05 June 2013, the parties agreed to postpone the 

matter further to allow Rheinmetall Denel Munitions 

an opportunity to consider the issues raised by 

Armscor. The matter was then postponed indefinitely. 

Rheinmetall Denel Munitions undertook to revert 

to Armscor after due consideration of the Armscor 

proposals with a view to amending the licensing 

agreement.

Actions to address irregular expenditure incured

The Board noted irregular expenditure reported due to 

procurement processes at the Dockyard. These procesess 

will be reviewed and the necessary corrective action 

implemented to ensure that the procurement processes 

applied are accountable and comply with the Corporation’s 

policies.

Post-balance sheet events

As reflected in this report and financial statements, no 

material facts or significant circumstances which affect the 

financial position of this Corporation or group have arisen 

between the date of the balance sheet and the production 

date of this report, except to state:

 • that on 8 August 2013 the Minister of Defence and 

Military Veterans Hon. Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula 

relieved both the chairman, Lt. Gen. (ret) M Motau, 

and the deputy chairperson, Ms R. Mokoena, of their 

duties.

Transfer of ADI into Armscor

As a result of the restructuring process Armscor Defence 

Institutes (ADI), which was a wholly owned subsidiary 

of Armscor, was transferred to Armscor to become a 

department. The name of the department is now Research 

and Development (R&D).

Litigation

 • GObODO

Gobodo instituted litigation against Armscor, 

demanding that a certain percentage of commission 

be paid to it as a result of an agreement entered  

into with Armscor to undertake certain VAT 

accounting functions. The court found in favour of 

Armscor and further issued a costs order against 

Gobodo. Although Gobodo was granted leave to 

appeal to the Supreme Court of Appeal, it has failed 

to take further steps to prosecute the appeal and 

under the circumstances the appeal has lapsed.

 • bEvERLy SECURITIES

Legal action was instituted against Armscor by 

Beverly Securities, incorporated in Portugal, for 

alleged services rendered by a certain Mr Pinhol. 

The Portuguese court found in favour of Armscor 

with regard to one of the defences raised by Armscor 

relating to the jurisdiction of the Portuguese courts to 

hear the matter. The Court found that the Portuguese 
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OPERATIONAL OBjECTIVES FOR THE 2012/2013 

FINANCIAL YEAR

The Armscor three year integrated Corporate and Business 
Plan defines two groups of performance indicators. The first 
group addresses performance indicators to measure the 
execution of Armscor’s functions as defined in the Armscor 
Act and as agreed on in the SLA with the DOD, while the 
second group measures the attainment of the strategic 
objectives of the group. 

PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOALS

In addition to the above, Armscor uses an overall efficiency 
measure, which is the cost of acquisition. This measure  
reflects the ratio of actual acquisition cost versus the 
acquisition cost based on the total forecast acquisition 
activities. A goal of 7.57% was set for the 2012/2013  
financial year. A result of 9.29% was achieved against 
actual, compared with 8.06% for the 2011/2012 period. 
The acquisition cost goal was not achieved, as the total 
acquisition activities were reduced by R1  726.4 m due to 
extension of milestone deliveries on acquisition projects, 
and requirements for R1  669.7 m not received from the 
South African Defence Force.

Armscor’s subsidiary companies achieved a surplus of  
R344.6 m. Armscor Defence Institutes SOC Ltd contributed 
a surplus of R19.4 m against a set target of R11.3m surplus 
before gains on property revaluation of R264.1 m and the 
property companies a surplus of R61.1 m as a result of 
intercompany loans written off. 

MEASUREMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST 

ARMSCOR GROUP CORPORATE OBjECTIVES (AS 

PER APPROVED CORPORATE PLAN)

 • Armscor functions: objectives

Objectives 1 to 3

Measure the effectiveness of the acquisition function 

in terms of the Service Level Agreement between 

Armscor and the DOD. The goals for the three 

acquisition categories are defined as follows:

 – Contracts to be placed by Armscor

Measure the commitment of funds against 

the formally planned value of commitment 

which is based on requirements received and 

confirmed as valid requirements from the 

DOD.

 – Cash flow (contractual payments made)

Cash flow will be measured against the formally 

planned cash flow in terms of achieved  

commitments for the financial year.

Objective 4 – Management of Defence Industrial 

Participation (DIP)

Measure the execution of Defence Industrial 

Participants obligations in terms of the SLA and in 

compliance with the Armscor Act.

PERfORMANCE AGAiNST GOALS
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Objective 5 - Management and execution of 

defence technology, research, test and evaluation 

requirements of the DOD (measurement of 

effectiveness of Armscor Facilities)

Measure the execution by ADI of contractual 

milestones/deliveries as per orders received.

Objective 6 – Management and performance 

against mandate (SA Navy/Dockyard)

Measure the performance against SA Navy/Dockyard 

performance in terms of SLA with the SA Navy.

 • Armscor Strategic Objectives

Strategic Objective 1 – Funding and Growth

Measure the expenditure compliance and effort to 

secure sufficient funding to sustain the organisation.

Strategic Objective 2 – People and Capabilities

Measure Armscor’s ability to attract and retain 

employees through a positive organisational 

environment, and measure the achievement of 

targets set to transform Armscor to reflect the 

demographic profile of the country and to assist 

Armscor in having access to manpower to undertake 

its mandated activities.

Strategic Objective 3 – Organisational 

effectiveness and efficiencies

Measure the effectiveness and efficiency of Armscor.

Strategic Objective 4 – Stakeholder Relationships 

Measure the relationships with stakeholders and 

Armscor’s compliance with good governance.
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ARMSCOR fUNCTiONS: OBJECTiVES 

Objective 1: CAT 1 Capital Defence Matériel Acquisition excluding strategic defence acquisition but including 
technology acquisition (Projects)

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

1.1  Contracts to be placed by 
Armscor.

Armscor’s target of 90% 
commitment of funds to be 
measured against the formally 
planned value of commitments, 
which is based on requirements 
received and confirmed as valid 
requirements from the DOD.

90% 99.97% DOD requirements to the value of R512.455 m 
were received. 

Armscor committed R512.290 m of the above 
mentioned funds, resulting in an achievement of 
99.97% against the set target of 90%. 

Objective achieved. 

1.2  Cash flow (contractual payments 
made).

Armscor’s target of 90% cash 
flow will be measured against 
the formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the financial 
year. 

Actual cash flow will be 
measured against planned cash 
flow in terms of first revision 
and adjusted for factors beyond 
Armscor’s control.

Furthermore, cash flow is 
updated on an ongoing basis 
with commitments during year.

90% 108.51% The planned cash flow for the first revision was 
R2877.31 m.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R1498.432 m resulting in an 
achievement of 52.08%. 

Adjustments for factors beyond Armscor’s 
control amounted to R1623.967 m. This results in 
a final achievement of 108.51% 

Orders increased with R338.9 m after the first 
revision.

Objective achieved.
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Objective 2: Strategic Defence Acquisition (Strategic Defence Packages)

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

2.1  Contracts to be placed by Arms-
cor.

Armscor’s target of 90% commit-
ment of funds to be measured 
against the formally planned 
value of commitments, which is 
based on requirements received 
and confirmed as valid require-
ments from the DOD.

90% 100% DOD requirements to the value of R57.726 m 
were received. 

Armscor committed R57.726 m of the above 
mentioned funds, resulting in an achievement of 
100% against the set target of 90%. 

Objective achieved.

2.2  Cash flow.

Armscor’s target of 90% cash 
flow will be measured against 
the formally planned cash flow 
in terms of achieved commit-
ments for the financial year.

Actual cash flow will be meas-
ured against planned cash flow 
in terms of first revision and 
adjusted for factors beyond 
Armscor’s control.

Furthermore, cash flow is up-
dated on an ongoing basis with 
commitments during year.

90% 115.3% The planned cash flow for the first revision was 
R535.76 m.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to the 
value of R617.797 m resulting in an achievement 
of 115.3%. 

Total orders increased with R247.1 m after the 
first revision.

Objective achieved.
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Objective 3: System support: Acquisition and Procurement (Operational funds)

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

3.1  Contracts to be placed by 
Armscor.

Armscor’s target of 90% 
commitment of funds to be 
measured against the formally 
planned value of commitments, 
which is based on requirements 
received and confirmed as valid 
requirements from the DOD.

90% 88.84% DOD requirements received to the value of 
R1248.348 m. 

Armscor committed R1108.979 m of the above-
mentioned funds, resulting in an achievement of 
88.84% against the set target of 90%. 

Objective not achieved due to delays in the 
placement of large anticipated requirements.

3.2  Cash flow.

Armscor’s target of 90% cash 
flow will be measured against 
the formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the financial 
year.

Actual cash flow will be 
measured against planned cash 
flow in terms of first revision 
and adjusted for factors beyond 
Armscor’s control.

Furthermore, cash flow is 
updated on an ongoing basis 
with commitments during year.

90% 112.39% The planned cash flow for the first revision was 
R3339.33 m.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to the 
value of R3753.205 m resulting in an achievement 
of 112.39%. 

Orders increased by R948.3 m after the first 
revision.

Objective achieved.
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Objective 4:  Management of Defence Industrial Participation (DIP): 
 A certain percentage of counter-performance is negotiated by Armscor with overseas suppliers on all capital acquistion 

contracts in excess of USD 2 m. The management of these counter-performances is included as an objective for Armscor, and a 
captial aquisition, the target, is reflected in the following table:

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

4.1  Value of DIP credits to be 
granted to overseas suppliers.

R350m 
credits 
to be 

approved 
by 

2013-03-31 
consisting 

of:

R75 m DIP credits (including pro-active) amounting to 
R75 m were approved in the 2012/13 financial 
year.

 
 
 
 
The SDP underperformance relates to MBDA’s 
obligation with which no progress was made, as 
proposed activities did not realise. 

SDP:  
R253 m

Active:  
R97 m

R13 m

 

R62 m

Pro-active: R630 m Pro-active activities occur randomly and cannot 
be predicted or pre-planned.

Annual planning figures are based on DIP 
agreements related to current Acquisition 
programmes and exclude pro-active 
agreements.

Objective not achieved.

Objective 5: Management and execution of defence technology, research, test and evaluation requirements of 
the Department of Defence

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

5.1   ADI to achieve contractual 
milestones/deliveries as 
per agreed memoranda of 
agreement and orders received 
for the financial year. 

90% 95.47% ADI managed to deliver/render services to the  
value of R183 814 984 against the contractual 
milestones/deliveries as per agreed ,emoranda 
of agreement and orders received for the 
financial year with a value of R192 541 076. This 
results in an achievement of 95.47% against the 
set target of 90%.

Objective achieved.
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Objective 6: Management and performance against Dockyard Mandate (SA Navy/Dockyard performance 
management in terms of service level agreement with the SA Navy Agreement)

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

6.1  Armscor Dockyard to achieve 
90% compliance with the 
performance agreement 
indicators and deliverables as 
set out below:.

90% 100.48% Combined weighted performance against 
agreed performance indicators.

Objective achieved.

6.1.1 Capability Management:

Dockyard to ensure 
maintenance and refit capability 
plan be provided to SA Navy.

31/03/2013 28/03/2013 Capability plan provided to the SA Navy by 
28 March 2013.

Objective achieved.

6.1.2 Project status reporting:

6.1.2.1 Dockyard to ensure 
adherence to project 
contractual milestones 
as per project plan. 

90% 92.1% Full compliance to milestone as per project 
plan.

Objective achieved.

6.1.2.2 Ensure 90% compliance 
with projects cash flow 
management.

90% 96.31% Project finances managed in accordance 
with approved budget (financial authorities) 
and cash flow plan. 

Objective achieved.

6.1.3 Ancillary Services provision 
reporting:

Dockyard to ensure provision 
of ancillary services as per 
Dockyard funded business plan.

 
Dockyard to ensure Ancillary 
Services Management Plan is 
reviewed annually. 

 
95%

 
 
 

31/03/2013

 
100%

 
 
 

28/03/2013

 
All services required have been delivered. 
 
Objective achieved.

 
SA Navy/Dockyard Ancillary Services 
Business Plan reviewed and signed off.

Objective achieved.

6.1.4 Estate Management Plan: 

Dockyard to ensure that an 
Estate Management Plan is 
compiled, appropriately funded 
and approved by both Armscor 
and the SA Navy.

Submission of a quarterly report 
(report should indicate status of 
facility and deviations)

Estate Management Plan to be 
reviewed annually. 

90% 100% Reporting is incorporated within the 
quarterly report to Flag Officer Fleet and 
Estate Management Plan reviewed and 
signed off on 28/03/2013.

Objective achieved.
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kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

6.1.5 Dockyard to ensure necessary 
technical training support for SA 
Navy employees as and when 
required.

90% compliance with SA Navy 
requirements.

90% 100% Full compliance to SA Navy training support 
requests (12 students trained and the 
Dockyard supplied training facilities for 24 
SA Navy employees). 

Objective achieved.

6.1.6 Reporting to Flag Officer Fleet: 

Submission of quarterly reports 
as per reporting timeline 
schedule. 90% compliance with 
schedule.

90% 100% Compliance to reporting timeline schedule.

Objective achieved.
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ARMSCOR STRATEGiC OBJECTiVES:

Strategic Objective 1: Funding and Growth

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

1.1  Develop and implement 
a funding model for the 
Armscor Group that takes into 
consideration solvency and 
sustainability (also based on no 
over-expenditure of Armscor’s 
approved operational budget):

 • Development

 • Implementation

01/04/2012

31/03/2013

01/04/2012

Not 
completed

The finance model was developed and the 
budget included the 2012/13 Corporate Plan 
based on the model. 

Presentations were made to stakeholders in the 
Department of Defence but final approval is still 
outstanding. 

Objective not achieved.

1.2  Restructure units into business 
entities:

AB Logistics and Dockyard

 • Restructuring

 • Implementation

 
01/04/2012

31/03/2013

 

01/04/2012

Not 
completed

 

Board of Directors approved proposed structure 
for AB Logistics and Dockyard on 19 March 2012. 
 
Letters requesting approval for establishing 
new entities were submitted to the Minister 
of Defence and Military Veterans, as well as 
National Treasury on 28 March 2012 and 
approval is awaited. 

After consideration, the Board of Directors 
approved that AB Logistics remain as is, as it 
is not a sustainable business entity, while a 
decision regarding Dockyard will be made after 
completion of the technical feasibility study.

Objective not achieved. 
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kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

1.3  Identify and evaluate 
commercial opportunities for 
exploitation: 

 • Conduct a study to 
identify acquisition to be 
done for SADC and other 
government departments, 
as well as partnering with 
other countries. 

 • Exploitation of military 
technologies and IP to 
develop products through 
the use by the SA National 
Defence Force or civil 
products produced directly 
from the IP held by the 
Corporation.

 
 

30/06/2012

 
 

31/03/2013

 
 

30/06/2012

 
 

31/12/2012

 
 

Study conducted and follow-up discussions held 
at the AAD exhibition with identified countries 
during September 2012. 

Objective achieved. 
 
 
A two-year contract for R68 m has been 
concluded with Transnet for the supply and 
installation of the Ultrasonic Broken Rail 
Detector (UBRD) system on the ore export line. 

IMT and the CSIR concluded a contract with the 
Department of Science and Technology for  
R12.5 m over three years for further 
development and improvement of the UBRD 
system, R9.5 m of which is for IMT’s direct 
product development.

A contract was concluded with the KwaZulu-
Natal Sharks Board for work to be conducted 
in the field of area barrier and shark-repellent 
technology.

Objective achieved.

1.4  Review three year Service 
Level Agreement (SLA) with 
the Secretary for Defence that 
include:

 • Functions of Corporation

 • Measurable objectives 
(performance agreement)

 • Terms and conditions 
applicable for service to be 
rendered; and

 • Set out the rate that 
Corporation may charge 
for services.

31/07/2012 Not 
completed

SLA completed for agreement with the 
Department of Defence. Final agreement could 
not be reached on the proposed funding model.

Objective not achieved.
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Strategic Objective 2: People and capabilities

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

2.1  Achievement of approved 
Equity Plan that is directed 
towards:

 • Increasing race 
representativity. 

 

 • Improving gender 
composition.

 

 
 

62.8%

(875 black 
employees)

 

31.6%

(440 female 
employees)

 
 

63.9%

 
 

31.51%

 
 
Goal: 875 out of a total of 1394 employees 
to be black (62.8%). 

Achieved: 856 out of 1341 permanent 
employees are black (63.9%).  
 
 
Goal: 440 out of 1394 employees to be 
female (31.6%). 

Achieved: 422 out of 1341 employees are 
female employees (31.5%).

Objective not fully achieved.

2.2  Organisational restructuring:

 • Implement new 
organisational structure to 
support strategic direction.

30/08/2012 30/11/2012 The Board of Directors approved new 
organisational structure on 19 March 2012 
and recruitment process was completed by 
November 2012.

Objective not achieved.

2.3  Employee satisfaction 
measurement (previous 
year used as baseline for 
measurement).

3.5% 
improvement 

on 2011/12

(66.4%)

66.48% 2011/12 achievement:

Goal: 64%

Measurement: 62.9% 

2012/13 achievement:

Goal: 66.4%

Measurement: 66.48%

Objective achieved. 

2.4    Identify partnering 
opportunities with national 
and international institutions to 
develop, present and facilitate 
training programmes for key 
competence in the defence 
industry and implementation 
thereof.

30/06/2012 30/06/2012 Armscor identified tertiary institutions with 
the intent to create awareness and attract 
students to consider careers at Armscor. 

Institutions identified were also visited to 
establish relations and future partnership/
collaboration.

Armscor met with and held discussions with 
defence attachés of four countries. 

Objective achieved.



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 201394

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

2.5  Staff turnover in technical 
positions (excluding 
retirements).

< 4.5% 2.00% There were 14 (out of 725 technical 
positions) resignations for the year:

AS level – 1;

STS level – 4; and

MP level – 9. 

Objective achieved.

2.6  Skills development: % 
improvement in skills 
development assessment score 
on BBBEE scorecard (max of 
20 points) (previous year as 
baseline).

>5% 28% Skills development score improved from:

2011/12: 7/20 points (35%)

Target for 2012/13: 40%

2012/13 achievement: 13.54/20 (68%) 

Objective achieved.

Strategic Objective 3:  Organisational Effectiveness and Efficiencies

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

3.1  Conduct Dockyard’s feasibility 
study and develop improvement 
plan.

30/09/2012 Completion 
date:  

July 2013

A contract was approved in December 2012 
after a second RFO process as there was no 
acceptable bid during the first RFO.

Objective not achieved.

3.2  Establish equipment and ap-
plication requirements and 
develop renewal plan (ICT and 
general equipment).

31/03/2013 31/03/2013 The ICT requirements for application 
systems renewal to support Armscor’s new 
strategy were determined and included in 
the ICT Strategy.

Objective achieved.
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Strategic Objective 4: Stakeholder Relationships

kEy PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GOAL ACHIEvED PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOAL

4.1  Increase % of local industry 
spent in respect of Special 
Defence Account and General 
Defence Account managed by 
Armscor (increase based on 
previous year’s spending).

5% 10.94% 2011/12 spending:

R4.506 bn on local suppliers: 70.53%

R1.88 bn on foreign suppliers: 29.46% 

(Figures include Dockyard orders/local orders 
and overseas orders)

2012/13 spending:

R4.782 bn on local suppliers: 81.47%

R1.087 bn on foreign suppliers: 18.53% 

(Figures include Dockyard orders/local orders 
and overseas orders)

Objective achieved.

4.2    Review policies to transform, 
maintain and sustain local de-
fence industry:

 • BBBEE policy – 
transformation and 
preference to local 
industry.

 • DIP policy – assist 
with maintenance and 
sustainability of local 
industry.

Review both 
policies by 
31/07/2012 

and 
implement by 

31/03/2013

 
 

05/12/2012

 
 

BBBEE Policy reviewed after the exemption 
period from the regulations issued by the 
Minister of Finance expired in  
December 2012. Not approved yet.

DIP Policy approved by the Board of 
Directors in December 2012.

Objective not achieved.
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NET ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 1 322,6 236,9 235,8 216,4 214,6 

Intangible assets 0,3 0,4 0,5 0,5 0,3 

Other non-current financial assets - - - 8,3 14,4 

Other non-current financial liabilities (86,0) (9,5) (12,9) (6,6) (11,5)

Net current assets 441,8 277,5 223,9 239,6 269,4 

Retirement benefit asset 134,0 137,7 124,1 94,7 80,0 

Retirement benefit liability (20,4) (19,0) (17,6) (16,2) (14,7)

1 792,3 624,0 553,8 536,7 552,5 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Ordinary shareholders’  interest 1 792,3 624,0 553,8 536,7 552,5 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REVENUE

Sale of goods and services 308,2 305,2 317,9 285,2 257,6 

Allocation from the State budget for operating 
expenditure 748,1 659,9 594,8 528,9 

479,0 

Finance income 30,1 31,6 27,9 30,3 45,8 

Rental income 41,8 38,2 34,7 31,6 28,7 

Other income 25,9 32,3 29,7 16,4 19,3 

1 154,1 1 067,2 1 005,0 892,4 830,4 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1  168,3 70,2 17,0 (15,8) 37,9 

GROuP: FIvE-YEAR REvIEW (unAuDITED)
AT 31 MARcH 2013



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 201398

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

The statement shows the wealth the Group has created through its acquisition, maintenance and disposal activities aimed 
at meeting the defence matériel requirements of South Africa as well as trading and investment operations.  The statement 
shows how wealth was created and how it was disbursed among stakeholders, leaving a retained amount which was re-
invested in the Group for the replacement of assets, the development of operations and the maintenance of required 
capabilities.

2013 % 2012 %

Rm Rm

Sale of goods and services 308,2 305,2 

Allocation for operating expenditure (Government grant) 748,1 659,9 

Rental income 41,8 38,2 

Other income 25,9 32,3 

Finance income 30,1 31,6 

Revenue 1 154,1 1 067,2 

Less:  Paid to suppliers for materials and services (283,8) (267.8)

TOTAL VALUE ADDED 870,3 100 799,4 100

DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:

To employees as salaries, wages and other benefits 742,9 85 680,1 84 

Finance charges - - 5,4 1 

To Government as taxation 12,6 1 11,6 1 

TOTAL VALUE ADDED DISTRIBUTED 755,5 86 697,1 86 

Portion of value added reinvested to sustain and expand the 
business 114,8 14 102,3 14 

TOTAL VALUE ADDED DISTRIBUTED AND REINVESTED 870,3 100 799,4 100 

TAXATION

Paid in taxes to Government

 • Rates and taxes to local authorities 12,6 11,6 

Collected on behalf of, and paid over to Government

 • Employees taxation deducted from remuneration paid 150,1 137,3 

 • Unemployment Insurance Fund 2,3 2,0 

 • Net value added taxation (VAT) 117,2 71,4 

269,6 210,7 

GROuP vALuE-ADDED STATEMEnT
FOR THE YEAR EnDED 31 MARcH 2013
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The following main aspects concerning the Armscor group’s financial results are apparent from the annual financial 
statements.

STATEMEnT OF FInAncIAL POSITIOn

The net value of Group assets increased from R624,0 million to R1 792,3 million mainly due to revaluation of land and 
buildings.  Investments and cash form a substantial part of the assets and are reserved to finance specific future obligations.

STATEMEnT OF cOMPREHEnSIvE IncOME

The net financial result of the Group shows a profit of R84,6 million (2012:  R70,2 million) before gains on property revaluation 
of R1 083,7 million compared to a budgeted profit of R192,2 million (2012: R25 million). The main contributors to the deviation 
for the year under review are shown in the graphs below:

cOnTRIBuTORS TO DEvIATIOn

Personnel Costs

The net under spending in personnel cost is a result of delays in the filling of vacancies due to the recruitment of suitable 
candidates and the reduced contribution by the employer to the post-retirement medical benefit fund.

Allocation for operating expenditure/service fee

The allocation for operating expenditure is received to defray the cost of the Group’s operations for the year under review, 
to address additional services to be rendered and to ensure that Armscor’s contracted service delivery to the Department 
of Defence, in terms of the Service Level Agreement, is effectively and efficiently met. Although the allocation increased 
through ad-hoc allocations for specific requirements, it is less than the amount budgeted for, as the new funding model that 
consists of service fees on which the budget was based still needs to be agreed on a which directly influenced the amount 
of revenue received by the Corporation.

IT Related Services

The under-spending in IT-related services is due to a delay in the execution of certain ICT projects, awaiting approval of the 
ICT strategy (approved at end of financial year).

Depreciation

The lower depreciation cost is a result of a review of the estimated remaining useful life of assets at year-end.

Other Operating Expenses

The under-spending in other operating expenses is result of a continuous effort to reduce cost and increase efficiency.

GROuP: FInAncIAL RESuLTS
FOR THE YEAR EnDED 31 MARcH 2013

Financial results Contributors to deviation

M
ill

io
ns

Budget

Armscor Corporation

250

Actual

Armscor Subsidiaries Armscor Group

200

150

100

50

0

(50)

(100)

(150)

(200)

Deviation

Personnel cost 

Depreciation 

Allocation for operating
expenditure/Service fee  

Other income 

IT-related services 

Other operating
expenses 

60%

3%

21%

3%

11%

2%



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 2013100

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 MARCH 2013

STATEMEnTS OF FInAncIAL POSITIOn
AS AT 31 MARcH 2013

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 NOTES 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

48,8 938,3 Property, plant and equipment 2 1 322,6 236,9 

- - Intangible assets 3 0,3 0,4 

110,4 109,4 Post-retirement medical benefit asset 4 134,0 137,7 

159,2 1 047,7 1 456,9 375,0 

CURRENT ASSETS

- 0,1 Non-current assets held for disposal 2 0,2 -

2,5 2,4 Inventories 5 11,7 7,6 

159,3 101,4 Trade and other receivables 6 127,9 184,1

442,6 689,8 Cash and short-term deposits 7 685,7 440,6 

180,0 40,9 Loans to subsidiaries 8 - -

784,4 834,6 825,5 632,3 

943,6 1 882,3 TOTAL ASSETS 2 282,4 1 007,3 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

75,0 75,0 Ordinary share capital 9 75,0 75,0 

448,0 1 271,7 Non-distributable reserves 1 717,3 549,0 

523,0 1 346,7 ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS INTEREST 1 792,3 624,0 

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

19,0 20,4 Post-retirement medical benefit liability 4 20,4 19,0 

9,5 86,0 Deferred income 10 86,0 9,5 

28,5 106,4 106,4 28,5 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

112,7 154,4 Loans from subsidiaries 8 - -

151,9 169,0 Trade and other payables 11 233,3 203,1 

67,9 69,0 Provisions 12 93,5 92,1 

59,6 36,8 Deferred income 10 56,9 59,6 

392,1 429,2 383,7 354,8 

420,6 535,6 TOTAL LIABILITIES 490,1 383,3 

943,6 1 882,3 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2 282,4 1 007,3 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 NOTES 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

24,2 19,9 Revenue 13 308,2 305,2 

(10,4) (10,3) Cost of sales 14 (119,7) (111,9)

13,8 9,6 GROSS PROFIT 15 188,5 193,3 

56,8 65,9 Other operating revenue 16 67,7 70,5 

659,9 748,1 Allocation for operating expenditure 
(Government grants)

17 748,1 659,9 

(725,1) (843,6) Operating expenses 18 (949,8) (879,7)

5,4 (20,0) OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 19 54,5 44,0 

31,5 30,1 Investment revenue 20 30,1 31,6 

(10,1) (5,9) Finance costs 21 - (5,4)

26,8 4,2 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 84,6 70,2 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

- 819,5 Gains on property revaluation 2 1 083,7 -

26,8 823,7 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 22 1168,3 70,2 

STATEMEnTS OF cOMPREHEnSIvE IncOME
FOR THE YEAR EnDED 31 MARcH 2013
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Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

GROUP

balance at 1 April 2011 75,0 14,6 22,6 15,0 23,2 - 403,4 553,8 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income 
for the year - - - - - - 70,2 70,2  

Transfer to/(from) reserves - (2,1) - - 1,5 - 0,6 -

Total changes - (2,1) - - 1,5 - 70,8 70,2 

balance at 31 March 2012 75,0 12,5 22,6 15,0 24,7 - 474,2 624,0 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income 
for the year - - - - - 1 083,7 84,6 1 168,3

Transfer to/(from) reserves - 0,3 - - (2,2) - 1,9 -

Total changes - 0,3 - - (2,2) 1 083,7 86,5 1 168,3

balance at 31 March 2013 75,0 12,8 22,6 15,0 22,5 1 083,7 560,7 1 792,3

CORPORATION

balance at 1 April  2011 75,0 14,6 22,6 15,0 23,2 - 345,8 496,2 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income 
for the year - - - - - - 26,8 26,8 

Transfer to/(from) reserves - (2,1) - - 1,5 - 0,6 -

Total changes - (2,1) - - 1,5 - 27,4 26,8 

balance at 31 March 2012 75,0 12,5 22,6 15,0 24,7 - 373,2 523,0

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income 
for the year - - - - - 819,5 4,2 823,7

Transfer to/(from) reserves - 0,3 - - (2,2) - 1,9 -

Total changes - 0,3 - - (2,2) 819,5 6,1 823,7

balance at 31 March 2013 75,0 12,8 22,6 15,0 22,5 819,5 379,3 1 346,7

STATEMEnTS OF cHAnGES In EQuITY
FOR THE YEAR EnDED 31 MARcH 2013



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 2013 103

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 NOTES 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

727,2 891,5 Cash receipts from customers 1 180,2 1 030,1 

(734,5) (693,3) Cash paid to suppliers and employees (923,3) (957,5)

(7,3) 198,2 Cash generated from/(used in) operations 23 256,9 72,6 

31,5 30,1 Interest income 30,1 31,6 

(10,1) (5,9) Finance costs - (5,4)

14,1 222,4 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 287,0 98,8

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(9,7) (95,1) Purchase of property  plant & equipment 2 (42,2) (33,3)

0,3 0,2 
Proceeds from sale of property  plant & 
equipment 2 0,3 0,3 

61,2 119,7 Loans from group companies - -

51,8 24,8 
NET CASH FLOWS USED (IN)/FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (41,9) (33,0)

65,9 247,2 
TOTAL CASH MOVEMENT FOR THE 
YEAR 245,1 65,8 

376,7 442,6 
CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
YEAR 440,6 374,8 

442,6 689,8 TOTAL CASH AT END OF THE YEAR 7 685,7 440,6 

STATEMEnTS OF cASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR EnDED 31 MARcH 2013
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1. MANDATE

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with South African Statements of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practices, and the Companies Act of South Africa, 
71 of 2008. The financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis except for some financial instruments 
and land and buildings, which are measured at fair value, and 
incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. 
They are presented in South African rands and all values are 
rounded to the nearest million unless otherwise indicated. 

Armscor receives its mandate for the period under review 
from the Armaments Corporation of South Africa, Limited 
Act (Act No 51 of 2003) and the Armaments Corporation of 
South Africa, Limited amendment Act (Act No 16 of 2005), 
which came into effect on 8 May 2006 by proclamation 20 
published in Government Gazette 28779 of 5 May 2006 in 
terms of which the Corporation is empowered to meet:

 • the defence matériel requirements of the 
Department of Defence (DOD) effectively, efficiently 
and economically; and

 • the defence technology, research, development, 

analysis, test and evaluation requirements of the 

DOD effectively, efficiently and economically.

These Acts furthermore provide that Armscor must adhere 
to accepted corporate governance principles, best business 
practices and International Financial Reporting Standards 
within a framework of established norms and standards that 
reflect fairness, equity, transparency, economy, efficiency, 
accountability and lawfulness.

1.1 FInAncIAL POLIcY

Activities are financed as follows:

Armscor’s operating funds

Armscor’s operating funds are obtained via the defence 
budget and together with interest earned thereon are 
utilised to finance operating expenditure, the acquisition 
of fixed assets and expenditure for the creation and 
maintenance of facilities and services.

Operating capital and fixed capital of subsidiaries

Operating capital and fixed capital requirements of 
subsidiaries are financed from own income generated and 
cash allocated by the holding company, as well as additional 
funding received from the DOD if required.

Procurement of armaments

Armaments purchases and maintenance are financed by 
means of withdrawals from the Special Defence Account in 
terms of the Defence Special Account Act (Act No 6 of 1974, 
as amended) and the General Defence Account. Strategic 
Defence Packages are financed wholly or partially by means 
of draw downs against credit facilities supplied by National 
Treasury.

1.2 AccOunTInG POLIcY

The Corporation’s year end is the same as that of its 
subsidiaries. The principal accounting policies adopted by 
the Group are set out below. These accounting policies are 
consistent with the previous period.

1.3 cOnSOLIDATIOn

basis of consolidation 

The Group annual financial statements present the 
consolidated financial position and changes therein, 
operating results and cash flow information of the 
Corporation and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those 
entities in which the Group has an interest of more than one 
half of the voting rights or the power to exercise control so 
as to obtain benefits from their activities.

Control exists when the company has the power to govern 
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included for the duration 
in which the Group exercises control over the subsidiary. 
All inter-company transactions and resulting profits and 
losses between the Group companies are eliminated on 
consolidation. The Corporation carries its investments in 
subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses in 
the financial statements.
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business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the 
acquisition method of accounting. The cost of the business 
combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values 
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of 
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities which meet the recognition conditions of IFRS 3 
Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at 
acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal 
group) that are classified as held-for-sale in accordance with 
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held-For-Sale and discontinued 
operations, which are recognised at fair value less costs to 
sell.

1.3.1 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and 
assumptions

judgements

In preparing the financial statements, management is 
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the financial statements and 
related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of 
estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates, which may be material to the financial statements. 
Significant judgements include:

a) Pension and other post-employment benefits 

The cost of defined post-employment medical benefits 
is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial 
valuation involves making assumptions about discount 
rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary 
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. In 
view of the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates 
are subject to significant uncertainty. 

b) Impairment of financial assets 

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade 
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their 
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure 
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual 
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available 
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

c) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of 
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting 
date. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, 
management estimates the expected future cash flows from 
the asset or cash generating unit and chooses a suitable 
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those 
cash flows.

d) Provisions 

Provisions were raised and management determined an 
estimate based on the best available information. 

1.3.2  Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset when:

 • it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Group; and

 • the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct 
an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a 
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an 
item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised.

The useful life and depreciation method of each asset 
is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If the 
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is 
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 
cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item 
is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in 
surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount 
of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss 
when the item is derecognised. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
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difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and 
the carrying amount of the item. 

a) Land and buildings

Land is stated at fair value and is not depreciated. Buildings 
are stated at fair value less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment. Depreciation is calculated on a 
straight line basis over the useful life of the buildings over 
periods that vary between 20 and 50 years.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a 
revaluation, is recognised to other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity.  The 
increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it 
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 
recognised in profit or loss.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of 
a revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss in the current 
period.  The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive 
income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the 
revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.  The decrease 
recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the 
amount accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, 
any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation 
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset 
and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the 
asset.

b) Plant and equipment 

The concept of plant and equipment includes plant, 
machinery, equipment, office equipment, furniture, 
computers, vehicles and vessels. 

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, excluding the costs 
of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment. The cost of replacing part of such 
plant and equipment is capitalised when that cost is incurred 
if the recognition criteria is met. Depreciation is calculated 
to write off the cost of capitalised fixed assets on a straight 
line basis over their expected useful lives over periods that 
vary between three and ten years.

1.3.3  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when:

 • it is probable that the expected future economic 
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to 
the entity; and

 • the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an 
internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is 
incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the 
development phase of an internal project) is recognised 
when:

 • it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that 
it will be available for use or sale;

 • there is an intention to complete and use or sell it;

 • there is an ability to use or sell it;

 • it will generate probable future economic benefits;

 • there are available technical, financial and other 
resources to complete the development and to use 
or sell the asset; and

 • the expenditure attributable to the asset during its 
development can be measured reliably.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, 
customer lists and items similar in substance are not 
recognised as intangible assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful 
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there 
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at 
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life 
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing 
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the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and 
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation 
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
the surplus/deficit in the expense category consistent with 
the function of the intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognising of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
are recognised in the statement  of comprehensive income 
when the asset is derecognised. Amortisation is calculated 
to write off the cost of capitalised intangible assets on a 
straight line basis over their expected useful lives over ten 
years.

a) Patents

The patents have been granted for periods ranging from ten 
to fifteen years respectively.

1.3.4  Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (purchase cost) 
and net realisable value. Raw materials are calculated using 
the first in, first out method, except in the case of Hazmat 
Protective Systems where it is calculated at weighted 
average. Write-downs to net realisable value and inventory 
losses are expensed in the period in which the write-down 
or losses occur. Finished goods and work in progress are 
stated at actual cost of direct materials and labour and a 
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal 
operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those 
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of 
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and 
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the 
period the write-down or loss occurred. The amount of any 
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an 
increase in net realisable value, are recognised as a reduction 
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in 
the period in which the reversal occurred.

1.3.5  Non-distributable reserves 

All reserves are considered to be non-distributable. The 
full share capital and reserves are required for the total net 
capital requirement of the Group. Cash is therefore retained 
to meet future commitments, and is consequently not 
available for the distribution of dividends.

a) Capital and building maintenance reserve

The reserve was established for comprehensive upgrading 
and replacement of obsolete capital equipment and 
maintenance of major building systems.

b) Computer upgrading reserve

The purpose of this reserve is for the upgrading and 
replacement of obsolete, outdated computer technology.

c) Marketing promotion reserve

The reserve was established to supplement the financing 
of exhibition costs in order to promote the local weapons 
industry which is part of Armscor’s mandate, but which is not 
provided for via the transfer payment from the Department 
of Defence.

d) Internal Insurance Reserve

Self-insurance has been instituted where the cost-to-
benefit relationship exceeds the risk and the incidence of 
losses is of a minor and infrequent nature. Self-insured risks 
are reviewed annually to ensure cover is adequate and an 
amount is held in an internal insurance fund to cover these 
risks.

e) Revaluation reserve

The revaluation surplus in equity related to land and 
buildings is transferred directly to retained earnings as 
the asset is used.  The amount transferred is equal to the 
difference between depreciation based on the revalued 
carrying amount and depreciation based on the original 
cost of the asset.

1.3.6  Foreign currency conversion

Transactions and balances 

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial 
recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency 
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of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and

 • the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to 
complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the 
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue 
shall be recognised only to the extent of the expenses 
recognised that are recoverable.

Contract revenue comprises:

 • the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract; 
and

 • variations in contract work, claims and incentive 
payments:

 – to the extent that it is probable that they will 
result in revenue; and

 – they are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and represents the amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal 
course of business, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates, and value added tax.

Service fees included in the price of the product are 
recognised as revenue over the period during which the 
service is performed.

1.3.8  Other income

a) Interest income

Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking 
account of the principal outstanding and the effective rate 
over the period to maturity, when it is determined that such 
income will accrue to the Group.

b) Rental income

Rental income arising on properties is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease terms on ongoing leases.

c) Government grant

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable 
assurance that:

 • the company will comply with the conditions 
attaching to them;  and

amount the spot exchange rate between the functional 
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

At the end of the reporting period, foreign currency 
monetary items are translated using the closing rate.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary 
items or on translating monetary items at rates different from 
those at which they were translated on initial recognition 
during the period or in previous financial statements are 
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which they 
arise.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency 
are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the 
foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

1.3.7  Revenue recognition 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the 
following conditions have been satisfied:

 • The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

 • The Group retains neither continuing managerial 
involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

 • the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

 • it is probable that the economic benefits associated 
with the transaction will flow to the Group;  and

 • the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering 
of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting 
period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated 
reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

 • the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

 • it is probable that the economic benefits associated 
with the transaction will flow to the Group;

 • the stage of completion of the transaction at the end 
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1.3.10 Financial instruments 

Recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are initially recognised on the 
statement of financial position when the Group becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair 
value, which includes directly attributable transaction cost 
in the case of financial assets and liabilities not at fair value 
through profit and loss. Subsequent measurement for each 
category is specified in the sections below.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial 
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset have expired. A financial liability is derecognised 
when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires.

The resulting difference between the carrying value on the 
derecognition of the financial instrument and the amount 
received or paid is taken to surplus or deficit.

Financial assets

The Group categorises its financial assets in the following 
categories: loans and receivables and held to maturity 
investments. The classification depends on the purpose 
for which the financial assets are acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial 
recognition.

Loans and receivables

After initial recognition, such assets are carried at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest rate method, less 
accumulated impairment. Gains and losses are recognised 
in surplus or deficit when the loans and receivables are 
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation 
process. 

The Group has classified the following financial assets as 
loans and receivables:

a) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables comprise all trade and non-

 • the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the 
periods necessary to match them with the related costs that 
they are intended to compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as 
compensation for expenses or deficits already incurred or 
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the 
entity with no future related costs is recognised as income of 
the period in which it becomes receivable.

Government grants related to assets, including non-
monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the statement 
of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred 
income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying 
amount of the asset.

Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the 
surplus or deficit (separately).

Armscor’s operating funds are obtained via the defence 
budget and recognised as a grant via revenue (transfer 
payment) as and when received and together with 
interest earned thereon are utilised to finance operating 
expenditure, the acquisition of fixed assets and expenditure 
for the creation of facilities and services.

Secondary grants received, based on Memorandums of 
Agreement with the DOD, for specific services are recognised 
as revenue as and when the conditions of receipt thereof has 
been fulfilled and are included in sale of goods and services.

1.3.9  Insurance and risk management 

The insurance and risk management policies adopted by the 
Armscor Group are aimed at obtaining sufficient cover at the 
minimum cost to protect its asset base, earning capacity and 
legal obligations against unacceptable losses.

All fixed assets are insured at current replacement value. 
Risks are identified and insured while paying specific 
attention to the specialised nature of the Group’s various 
activities and exposures. Self-insurance has been instituted 
where the cost-to-benefit relationship exceeds the risk and 
the incidence of losses is of a minor and infrequent nature. 
Self-insured risks are reviewed annually to ensure cover is 
adequate. 
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contracts are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequently, 
the contract is measured at the higher of the amount 
determined in accordance with IAS 37 and the amount 
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised 
in accordance with IAS 18, unless it was designated as at fair 
value through surplus or deficit at inception and measured 
as such. Financial guarantees are derecognised when the 
obligation is extinguished, expires or is transferred. The 
Group currently does not recognise any financial guarantee 
contracts as, in the opinion of the directors; the possibility of 
loss arising from these guarantees is remote.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position 
date whether objective evidence exists that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are 
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events that have occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that 
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets 
that can be reliably estimated. If there is objective evidence 
that an impairment loss has been incurred on a financial 
asset, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected 
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the 
financial assets original effective interest rate. The amount 
of the impairment shall be recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against 
the related provision for impairment. Such receivables are 
written off after all the necessary procedures have been 
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 
decrease the amount of the provision for loan impairment in 
the statement of comprehensive income.

trade debtors. Short-duration receivables with no stated 
interest rate are measured at original invoice amount unless 
the effect of imputing interest is significant.

b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits 
held on call and investment instruments, all of which are 
readily convertible (within three months) to cash, available 
for use by the Group unless otherwise stated and are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

c) Loans to (from) group companies

These include loans to and from the holding company and 
subsidiaries and are recognised initially at fair value plus 
direct transaction costs. Loans from group companies are 
classified as financial liabilities measured at cost.

d) Other loans

Other loans comprise employee loans, loans to shareholders, 
directors and managers. These loans are interest-bearing 
over periods that vary between one and 12 months in terms 
of conditions of employment.

Held to maturity investments

Fixed deposits with a maturity date greater than three 

months are classified as held to maturity investments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities consist of trade and other payables 
and loans from group companies. After initial recognition, 
financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method, finance costs on financial 
liabilities at amortised cost are expensed in surplus or deficit 
in the period in which they are incurred using the effective 
interest rate method. In addition, gains and losses on these 
financial liabilities are recognised in surplus or deficit when 
the liability is derecognised.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those 
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor 
fails to make a payment when it becomes due in accordance 
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 
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b) Provision for leave

Provision is calculated on leave days outstanding at end 
of the year multiplied by remuneration rate based on the 
applicable remuneration package of each employee.

1.3.12 Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains 
a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets 
or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A 
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one 
of the following applies:

a)  There is a change in contractual terms, other than a 
renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b)  A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, 
unless the term of the renewal or extension was 
initially included in the lease term;

c)  There is a change in the determination of whether 
fulfilment is dependent on a specified asset; or

d) There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting will 
commence or cease from the date when the change in 
circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a), 
c) or d) and at the date of renewal or extension period for 
scenario b).

Leases of assets to the Group under which all the risks and 
benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor, 
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under 
operating leases are charged against income on a straight 
line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms 
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee

Operating leases – lessor

Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an 
allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised 
in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When 
such assets are written off, the write-off is made against 
the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries 
of amounts previously written off are credited against 
operating expenses.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, provisions 

for impairment are recognised based on the following 

considerations:

a) Trade and other receivables

For trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is 
established when there is objective evidence that the Group 
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the 
original terms of the receivables. Indicators of impairment 
include long overdue accounts, significant financial 
difficulties of the debtors and defaults in payments.

1.3.11 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for 
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense 
relating to any provision is presented in the surplus/deficit, 
net of any reimbursement.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 
recognised, but reflected in a separate note to the financial 
statements.

The Group has the following provisions at year end:

a) Performance remuneration

The payment of performance remuneration is subject to 
the Corporations’ achievement of set performance criteria. 
The Corporation uses the Balanced Score Card method 
for evaluating individual performance. Performance 
remuneration is based proportionally on the individual 
performance as measured and expressed by the individual’s 
performance score and also on Armscor department’s 
performance as measured and expressed by their calculated 
performance score.
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The increased carrying amount of an asset other than 
goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost 
less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than 
goodwill is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any 
reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated 
as a revaluation increase.

1.3.14 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure 
which was made in vain, as well as penalties levied on 
late deliveries and which would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised.

1.3.15 Share capital and equity 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a 
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all 
of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

1.3.16 Employee benefits

a) Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable 
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary 
benefits such as medical care), is recognised in the period in 
which the service is rendered and is not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised 
as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments 
is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result 
of past performance.

b) Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans 
are charged as an expense as they fall due.

leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as the lease income.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in surplus or 
deficit.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
asset.  

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are 
incurred.

1.3.13 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period 
whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates 
the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the 
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. 
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of 
the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating 
unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist 
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
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Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) 
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined 
contribution plans where the Group’s obligation under 
the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined 
contribution retirement benefit plan.

c) Retirement benefits 

The Group contributes and operates the Armscor Defined 
Contribution Pension Fund and the Armscor Provident Fund, 
which offer benefits based on the contributions of and on 
behalf of every member, as well as on investment yields.

The Group also provides post-retirement health care benefits 
to its retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement health 
care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service 
up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum 
service period. The expected costs of these benefits are 
accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of 
these obligations are carried out by independent qualified 
actuaries. The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefits plan is determined using the projected unit credit 
actuarial valuation method.

Actuarial gains or losses in respect of defined benefit plans 
are recognised as income or expense if the net cumulative 
unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of the 
previous reporting period exceeded the greater of:

 • 10% of the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at that date before deducting plan assets; 
and

 • 10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that date.

The amount recognised is the excess determined above, 
divided by the expected average remaining working lives of 
the employees participating in that plan.

Where the Group is in the net asset position, the defined 
benefit surplus is measured at the lower of:

 • the present value of defined obligation, plus actuarial 
gains, less past service cost, less the fair value of plan 
assets at the reporting date of the plan assets; and

 • the total of cumulative unrecognised actuarial loss 
and past service cost and the present value of any 
economic benefits in the form of refunds from the 
plan or a reduction in future contributions of the plan.
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

COST/vALUATION
ACCUMULATED 
DEPRECIATION 

AND IMPAIRMENT
CARRyING vALUE

2013

GROUP Rm Rm Rm

Land 483,0 - 483,0

Buildings 751,8 - 751,8

Plant, machinery and equipment 88,2 (44,7) 43,5

Office equipment, furniture and computers 117,9 (88,6) 29,3 

Vehicles and vessels 42,0 (27,0) 15,0 

1 482,9 (160,3) 1 322,6

2012

Land 12,7 - 12,7 

Buildings 213,1 (73,1) 140,0 

Plant, machinery and equipment 72,3 (39,3) 33,0 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 110,3 (76,9) 33,4 

Vehicles and vessels 39,7 (21,9) 17,8 

448,1 (211,2) 236,9 

COST/vALUATION
ACCUMULATED 
DEPRECIATION 

AND IMPAIRMENT
CARRyING vALUE

2013

CORPORATION Rm Rm Rm

Land 399,6 - 399,6

Buildings 498,4 - 498,4

Plant, machinery and equipment 21,3 (11,4) 9,9 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 92,4 (70,6) 21,8 

Vehicles and vessels 20,1 (11,5) 8,6 

1 031,8 (93,5) 938,3

2012

Plant, machinery and equipment 23,0 (10,8) 12,2 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 85,6 (59,5) 26,1 

Vehicles and vessels 19,2 (8,7) 10,5 

127,8 (79,0) 48,8 
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2. RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

OPENING 
bALANCE

ADDITIONS/ 
IMPAIRMENT 

REvERSAL
REvALUATION

DISPOSALS/ 
NON-

CURRENT 
ASSETS 

HELD FOR 
DISPOSAL

DEPRECIATION/ 
IMPAIRMENT TOTAL

2013

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Land 12,7 - 470,3 - - 483,0

Buildings 140,0 3,3 613,4 (0,1) (4,8) 751,8

Plant, machinery 
and equipment 33,0 26,0 - (0,1) (15,4) 43,5 

Office equipment, 
furniture and 
computers 33,4 10,4 - (0,1) (14,4) 29,3 

Vehicles & vessels 17,8 2,5 - - (5,3) 15,0

236,9 42,2 1 083,7 (0,3) (39,9) 1 322,6

2012

Land 12,7 - - - - 12,7 

Buildings 136,2 9,2 - - (5,4) 140,0 

Plant, machinery 
and equipment 26,1 13,7 - - (6,8) 33,0 

Office equipment, 
furniture and 
computers 40,1 8,3 - (0,2) (14,8) 33,4 

Vehicles & vessels 20,7 2,2 - - (5,1) 17,8 

235,8 33,4 - (0,2) (32,1) 236,9 
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OPENING 
bALANCE

ADDITIONS/ 
IMPAIRMENT 

REvERSAL
REvALUATION

DISPOSALS/ 
NON-

CURRENT 
ASSETS 

HELD FOR 
DISPOSAL

DEPRECIATION/ 
IMPAIRMENT TOTAL

2013

CORPORATION Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Land - 4,1 395,5 - - 399,6

Buildings - 74,4 424,0 - - 498,4

Plant, machinery 
and equipment 12,2 8,2 - (0,1) (10,4) 9,9 

Office equipment, 
furniture and 
computers 26,1 7,5 - - (11,8) 21,8 

Vehicles & vessels 10,5 0,9 - - (2,8) 8,6 

48,8 95,1 819,5 (0,1) (25,0) 938,3

2012

Plant, machinery 
and equipment 11,7 3,4 - - (2,9) 12,2 

Office equipment, 
furniture and 
computers 33,4 5,1 - - (12,4) 26,1 

Vehicles & vessels 11,9 1,2 - - (2,6) 10,5 

57,0 9,7 - - (17,9) 48,8
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Included in land and buildings is the IMT 
building erected on leasehold premises with a 
net book value of R50,2 million (2012:  
R4,6 million). The leasehold premises comprises a 
portion in extent 1,4475 ha of Erf 3779 in Simon’s 
Town, which is leased from the Department of 
Public Works as well as leasehold improvements 
amounting to R0,6 million for the year at 
Armscor Dockyard. Detail pertaining to land and 
buildings is available at the registered office of 
the Corporation.

During the year land and buildings were 
purchased from subsidiaries. The purchase price 
was settled using loan accounts.

Land and buildings were revalued during 
the year by a qualified valuator. This is due to 
a change in accounting policy on land and 
buildings from a cost model to a revaluation 
model. This change was done so to provide more 
reliable and more relevant information regarding 
the fair values of the land and buildings.

DEPRECIATION

18,5 18,8 Gross depreciation 29,6 34,2 

(0,6) (0,7) Less: Change in the estimated useful life 0,6 (2,1)

17,9 18,1 30,2 32,1 

In line with the requirements of IAS 16(AC 123) 
the group reviewed the useful life, residual 
values and method of depreciation for all assets 
still in use. Based on the latest available and 
reliable information there was a change in the 
estimated useful life of some assets, which 
resulted in an increase in depreciation of  
R0,6 million (2012: R2,1 million decrease).

OTHER MATTERS

Included in the Corporation’s value of plant, 
machinery and equipment are assets at 
contractors with a cost of R5,1 million  
(2012: R5,1 million) that are fully depreciated. 

Assets with a carrying amount of R0,1 million 
at year end are held for disposal. The process of 
disposal is in place and will be disposed within 
the next 12 months.
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3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COST/vALUATION ACCUMULATED 
AMORTISATION CARRyING vALUE

2013

GROUP Rm Rm Rm

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0,6 (0,3) 0,3 

2012

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0,6 (0,2) 0,4 

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

OPENING 
bALANCE AMORTISATION TOTAL

2013

GROUP Rm Rm Rm

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0,4 (0,1) 0,3 

2012

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0,5 (0,1) 0,4 
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4. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

4.1 ARMScOR DEFInED cOnTRIBuTIOn PEnSIOn FunD AnD PROvIDEnT FunD 

4.1.1  Pension and provident schemes

The Group contributes towards and operates the Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund and Provident Fund, which 
offer benefits based on the contributions by and made on behalf of every member, as well as investment yields. At the time 
of establishment of the Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund, Armscor guaranteed pensioners that were transferred 
from the previous pension fund to the current pension fund to receive a pension at least equal to the pension received 
in terms of the previous fund. Armscor’s liability in this regard for the remaining six members is R Nil (2012:R Nil), as the 
pensioners account in the pension fund is sufficiently funded.

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

33,8 36,2 
The amount of contributions to the above 
scheme 50,6 46,9 

4.1.2  Government Employees Pension Fund - Dockyard

The Group contributes towards the Government Employees Pension Fund, which offer benefits based on the contributions 
by and made on behalf of every member, as well as investment yields. 

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

8,2 8,0 
The amount of contributions to the above 
scheme 8,0 8,2 
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4.2 POST-RETIREMEnT MEDIcAL BEnEFITS

4.2.1 Post-retirement medical benefits (Excluding Armscor Dockyard personnel transferred from the South African Navy)

The Group currently provides post-retirement health care benefits to its retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement health 
care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service 
period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these obligations 
are carried out by independent qualified actuaries. The closing plan assets were divided between the two units in the same 
proportion as the opening plan assets.

The IAS19 (AC116) valuation of the Group’s post-employment benefits was carried out at 31 March 2013. Based on the latest 
projection performed at 31 March 2013 the present value of the obligation is R549,1 million (2012: R448,4 million) and the 
fair value of plan assets is R611,4 million (2012: R537,4 million).

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Present value of funded obligations 549,1 448,4 375,6 317,5 298,0

Fair value of plan assets (611,4) (537,4) (491,9) (434,8) (316,3)

Present value of plan assets in excess of obligations (62,3) (89,0) (116,3) (117,3) (18,3)

Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) (71,9) (49,7) (9,8) 19,6 (65,7)

Unrecognised past service gains 0,2 1,0 2,0 3,0 4,0

Net asset in statement of financial position (134,0) (137,7) (124,1) (94,7) (80,0)

CORPORATION Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Present value of funded obligations 428,4 356,4 297,3 269,0 254,1

Fair value of plan assets (477,0) (427,1) (389,3) (368,4) (269,7)

Present value of plan assets in excess of obligations (48,6) (70,7) (92,0) (99,4) (15,6)

Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) (61,0) (40,6) (8,8) 17,0 (56,7)

Unrecognised past service gains 0,2 0,9 1,6 2,3 3,0

Net asset in statement of financial position (109,4) (110,4) (99,2) (80,1) (69,3)

Reconciliation of the present value of the funded obligations (Group)

2013 2012

Rm Rm

Opening balance 448,4 375,6 

Current service cost (includes interest to year end) 15,9 13,6 

Interest cost 38,6 32,4 

Expected employer benefit payments (13,9) (11,1)

Expected closing balance 489,0 410,5 

Actuarial (gain)/loss 60,1 37,9 

Actual closing balance 549,1 448,4 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Reconciliation of the net asset in the 
statement of financial position and amounts 
recognised in the surplus/deficit

(99,2) (110,4) Opening balance (137,7) (124,1)

(3,0) 3,4 
Expense recognised in employee remuneration 
costs 6,4 (2,4)

(9,8) (12,3) Employer benefit payments (13,9) (11,1)

(6,9) - Employer prefunding contributions - (9,7)

8,5 9,9 Payments from plan assets 11,2 9,6 

(110,4) (109,4) (134,0) (137,7)

Net benefit expense (recognised in employee 
remuneration costs)

9,6 10,9 Current service cost 15,9 13,6 

25,6 30,6 Interest cost 38,6 32,4 

(37,5) (37,4) Expected return on plan assets (47,3) (47,4)

(0,7) (0,7) Past service cost recognised (0,8) (1,0)

(3,0) 3,4 6,4 (2,4)

Reconciliation of change in plan assets

389,3 427,1 Fair value of assets at beginning of year 537,4 491,9 

45,7 72,6 Actual return on assets 101,3 53,3 

6,9 - Contributions - 9,7 

(8,5) (9,9) Benefits paid (11,2) (9,6)

(6,3) (12,8) Other expenses (16,1) (7,9)

427,1 477,0 Fair value of assets at end of year 611,4 537,4 

The main actuarial assumptions are:

2013 2012

Discount rate 8,00% 8,75%

Health care cost inflation 7,00% 7,25%

CPI Inflation 5,75% 5,25%

Average retirement age 60 60

Expected return on plan assets 9,00% 9,75%
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A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in health care costs would have the following effects for the 
Group:

HEALTH CARE COST INFLATION

Central 
Assumption

8.00%
-1% +1%

Accrued Liability 31 March 2013 (Rm) 549,1 466,7 654,3

% Change -15% +19,2%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2013/14 (Rm) 63,0 52,1

% Change -7,3% +22,6%

Sensitivity Results from Previous Valuation 8,75% -1% +1%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2012/13 (Rm) 54,6 49,4 61,1

% Change -9,5% +11,9%

Armscor is currently considering alternative options to reduce its post-retirement medical liability. An alternative was 
approved by the Board of Directors for consultation whereby employees and retired employees will on a voluntary basis 
select to accept the alternative offered in lieu of the post-retirement medical benefit. The implementation of this alternative 
is, however, subject to specific predetermined criteria.

4.2.2 Post-retirement medical benefits for Armscor Dockyard personnel transferred from the SA Navy 

The Group also provides post-retirement health care benefits to the Dockyard retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement 
health care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum 
service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these 
obligations are carried out by independent qualified actuaries.

The IAS19 (AC116) valuation of the Dockyard’s post-employment benefits was carried out at 31 March 2013. This actuarial 
valuation of the employer’s liability as at 31 March 2013 arises as a result of post-employment health care benefits enjoyed 
by former SA Naval Dockyard employees. Based on the projection performed at 31 March 2013 the accrued liability in excess 
of cash held aside specifically for the purpose, is R22,5 million (2012: R18,4 million).
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

The accrued liability in excess of cash held aside 
specifically for this purpose at 31 March 2013 is 
summarised below:

19,0 20,4 Accrued liability 20,4 19,0 

19,0 20,4 Accrued liability in excess of plan assets 20,4 19,0 

(18,4) (22,5) Less: Cash received (22,5) (18,4)

0,6 (2,1) Net liability/(assets) (2,1) 0,6 

A projection of results of the valuation as at 31 
March 2013 to 31 March 2014 is set out below:

19,0 20,4 Accrued liability as at 31 March 2013 20,4 19,0 

1,6 1,6 Interest cost 1,6 1,6 

0,5 0,5 Service cost (including interest to year end) 0,5 0,5 

(0,7) (0,7) Expected employer benefit payments (0,7) (0,7)

20,4 21,8 Projected accrued liability as at 31 March 2014 21,8 20,4 

Reconciliation of present value of the unfunded 
obligation

17,6 19,0 Opening balance 19,0 17,6 

0,4 0,5 Current service cost 0,5 0,4 

1,6 1,6 Interest cost 1,6 1,6 

(0,6) (0,7) Expected employer benefit payments (0,7) (0,6)

19,0 20,4 Closing balance 20,4 19,0 

Reconciliation of the present value of the 
unfunded obligation with the liability 
recognised in the Statement of financial position

18,9 21,0 Present value of unfunded obligation 21,0 18,9 

0,1 (0,6) Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) (0,6) 0,1 

19,0 20,4 20,4 19,0 

Net benefit expense (recognised in employee 
remuneration)

0,4 0,5 Current service cost 0,5 0,4 

1,6 1,6 Interest cost 1,6 1,6 

2,0 2,1 2,1 2,0 
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The main actuarial assumptions are:

2013 2012

Discount rate 8,00% 8,75%

Health care cost inflation 7,00% 7,25%

CPI inflation 5,75% 5,25%

Average retirement age 65 65

Expected return on plan assets 9,75% 9,75%

A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in healthcare costs would have the following effects for the 
group:

HEALTH CARE COST INFLATION

Central Assump-
tion

8.00%
-1% +1%

Accrued Liability 31 March 2013 (Rm) 21.1 18.6 24.0

% Change - -11.5% +14,0%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2013/14 (Rm) 2.2 2.1 2.3

% Change - -2.2% +5,2%

Sensitivity Results from Previous Valuation 8.75% -1% +1,0%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2012/13 (Rm) 2.1 2.0 2.2

% Change - -4.8% +9,5%

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

4.2.3 Summary of defined  
         medical benefit expense for  
         all funds

Defined medical benefit expense (post- 
retirement) included in employee cost:

10,0 11,4 Current service cost 16,4 14,0 

27,2 32,2 Interest cost 40,2 34,0 

(37,5) (37,4) Expected return on plan assets (47,3) (47,4)

(0,7) (0,7) Past service cost (0,8) (1,0)

(1,0) 5,5 8,5 (0,4)
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

5. INVENTORIES

- - Raw materials, components 0,9 0,9 

- - Work in progress 6,9 3,3 

2,5 2,4 Consumables 3,2 3,2 

- - Finished goods 0,7 0,2 

2,5 2,4 11,7 7,6 

The amount of inventories written off during the 
year is R Nil (2012: R 38 804)

6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

54,8 26,5 Trade receivables 39,2 72,1 

22,1 67,2 Trade receivables - related parties 79,7 26,9 

76,9 93,7 Total trade receivables 118,9 99,0 

57,6 1,8 Other receivables 3,1 60,3 

21,5 3,9 Other receivables - related parties 3,9 21,5 

0,4 0,4 Personnel loans 0,4 0,4 

2,9 1,6 Interest receivable on investments 1,6 2,9 

159,3 101,4 127,9 184,1 

As at 31 March 2013 the ageing analysis of trade 
receivables was as follows:

69,7 72,8 Neither past due nor impaired: 90,2 84,7 

3,9 14,0 30 - 60 days 19,2 7,6 

0,6 1,6 60 - 90 days 2,8 1,9 

Past due but not impaired:

1,8 2,1 90 - 120 days 2,7 2,5 

0,9 3,2 120 days and older 4,0 2,3 

76,9 93,7 118,9 99,0 

Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables 
relates to goods and services provided to 
debtors. Management has made an assesment 
and they concluded that there are no indications 
of impairment.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Movement in the allowance for doubtful 
debts:

75,9 97,8 Balance at the beginning of the year 98,0 76,1 

24,0 26,3 Impairment losses recognised on receivables 26,5 24,0 

(0,2) - Amounts written off as uncollectable (0,2) (0,2)

(1,9) (26,1) Amounts recovered during the year (26,1) (1,9)

97,8 98,0 balance at the end of the year 98,2 98,0 

Terms and conditions of the above financial 
assets:

Trade and other receivables are non-interest 
bearing and are generally on thirty to ninety 
days terms.

Personal loans are interest bearing over periods 
that vary between one to twelve months in 
terms of terms and conditions of employment.

Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, 
taking account of the principal outstanding and 
the effective rate over the period to maturity, 
when it is determined that such income will 
accrue to the Group.

For terms and conditions relating to related 
party receivables, refer to note 31.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

7. CASH AND SHORT TERM  
    DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

32,6 199,8 Cash at banks and in hand 195,7 30,6 

410,0 490,0 Short-term deposits 490,0 410,0 

442,6 689,8 685,7 440,6 

Included in cash and short term deposits is an 
amount of R22,5 million (2012: R24,7 million) 
in respect of cash allocated to the insurance 
reserve.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates 
based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term 
deposits are made for varying periods of 
between one day and three months depending 
on the immediate cash requirements of the 
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term deposit rates. 

8. LOANS TO/(FROM)      
    SUBSIDIARIES

180,0 40,9 Investment in subsidiaries - -

(112,7) (154,4)
Loan from subsidiary: Armscor Defence 
Institutes SOC Ltd - -

67,3 (113,5) - -

The short term loan represents the current 
account which is utilised to manage the overall 
cash flow of the Group. This loan is unsecured, 
interest bearing and repayable on demand. The 
rate of interest levied is based on the rate of 
return earned by Armscor on surplus funds.

The carrying amount of the short term loan and 
investments approximates its fair value.

Loans to Armscor’s property companies were 
written off during the year.
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SOUTH AFRICAN SUbSIDIARIES
(AT 100% HOLDINGS)

ISSUED 
SHARE 

CAPITAL

SHARES AT COST LOANS DUE by 
SUbSIDIARIES

2013 2012 2013 2012

R R Rm Rm

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES SOC LTD 4 000 4 000 4 000 40,9 40,9 

ERASMUSRAND PROPERTIES SOC LTD* 1 1 1 - 136,0 

INSTITUTE FOR MARITIME TECHNOLOGY SOC LTD* 4 4 4 - -

OOSPARK SOC LTD* 1 1 1 - 1,1 

SPORTRAND SOC LTD* 1 1 1 - 2,0 

4 007 4 007 4 007 40,9 180,0 

*Dormant Subsidiary

The attributable interest of the Corporation in the net surplus of its subsidiaries amounted to R344,6 million (2012: R43,4 
million)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The Group 
does not hold any collateral as security.

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

9. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

1 000,0 1 000,0  • 1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 1 000,0 1 000,0 

ISSUED 

75,0 75,0  • Ordinary 75,0 75,0 

Share Capital is under the control of the 
executive authority.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

10. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income relates to cash, stock and 
assets received from the Department of 
Defence, of which the recognition of the income 
needs to be aligned with the incurring of the 
expenditure, or the fulfilment of the conditions 
of receipt.

9,5 86,0 Non-current liabilities 86,0 9,5 

59,6 36,8 Current liabilities 56,9 59,6 

69,1 122,8 142,9 69,1 

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

36,5 49,0 Trade payables 55,7 36,8 

28,5 27,4 Trade payables - related parties 60,6 40,0 

17,0 52,7 Other payables 77,0 56,4 

69,9 39,9 Other payables - related parties 40,0 69,9 

151,9 169,0 233,3 203,1 

65,0 76,3 Trade payables 116,3 76,7 

86,8 92,6 Other payables 116,9 126,3 

151,8 168,9 Current 233,2 203,0 

- - > 30 Days - -

Trade payables

0,1 0,1 > 60 Days 0,1 0,1 

151,9 169,0 233,3 203,1 

Terms and conditions of the above financial 
liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are 
normally settled on thirty day terms.

For terms and conditions relating to related 
parties, refer to note 31.

The carrying amount of the accounts payable 
approximates its fair value.
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12. PROVISIONS OPENING 
bALANCE

ADDITIONS UTILISED 
DURING THE 

yEAR

TOTAL

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS

2013

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm

Provision for leave 51,8 18,9 (20,4) 50,3 

Provision for performance remuneration 40,3 42,4 (39,5) 43,2 

92,1 61,3 (59,9) 93,5 

2012

Provision for leave 49,0 17,9 (15,1) 51,8 

Provision for performance remuneration 39,0 33,3 (32,0) 40,3 

88,0 51,2 (47,1) 92,1 

2013

CORPORATION

Provision for leave 37,8 13,6 (14,4) 37,1 

Provision for performance remuneration 30,1 31,2 (29,3) 31,9 

67,9 44,8 (43,7) 69,0 

2012

Provision for leave 36,6 12,4 (11,2) 37,8 

Provision for performance remuneration 29,3 23,6 (22,8) 30,1 

65,9 36,0 (34,0) 67,9 

Performance remuneration for 2012/2013 will be paid 
upon completion of the performance evaluation.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

13. REVENUE

- - Sale of goods - Subsidiaries 10,5 7,5 

9,9 9,2 Services revenue - Armscor Corporation 9,2 9,9 

14,3 10,7 Services revenue - Armscor Dockyard 10,7 14,3 

- - Services revenue - Subsidiaries 277,8 273,5 

24,2 19,9 308,2 305,2 

14. COST OF SALES

Sale of goods

- - Sale of goods - Armscor Corporation - -

- - Sale of goods - Subsidiaries 4,3 4,3 

 -  - 4,3 4,3 

Rendering of services

- - Services revenue - Armscor Corporation - -

10,4 10,3 Services revenue - Armscor Dockyard 10,3 10,3 

- - Services revenue - Subsidiaries 105,1 97,3 

10,4 10,3 115,4 107,6 

Total

- - Sale of goods 4,3 4,3 

10,4 10,3 Rendering of services 115,4 107,6 

10,4 10,3 119,7 111,9 

15. GROSS PROFIT

9,9 9,2 Armscor Corporation 9,2 9,9 

3,9 0,4 Armscor Dockyard 0,4 4,0 

- - Subsidiaries 178,9 179,4 

13,8 9,6 188,5 193,3 

16. OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

40,1 43,9 Armscor Corporation rental income 41,8 38,2 

16,3 22,0 Armscor Corporation other income 12,9 11,5 

0,4 - Dockyard other income - 0,4 

- - Subsidiaries other income 13,0 20,4 

56,8 65,9 67,7 70,5 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

17. ALLOCATION FOR  
      OPERATING EXPENDITURE   
      (GOVERNMENT GRANT)

541,1 579,4 
Transfer payment - Armscor Corporation 
(Including facilities) 579,4 541,1 

118,8 168,7 Transfer payment - Armscor Dockyard 168,7 118,8 

659,9 748,1 748,1 659,9 

18. OPERATING EXPENSES

599,2 673,1 Armscor Corporation 561,4 550,4 

125,9 170,5 Armscor Dockyard 170,5 125,9 

- - Subsidiaries 217,9 203,4 

725,1 843,6 949,8 879,7 

19. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM  
      OPERATIONS

8,2 (18,6) Armscor Corporation 31,4 (1,0) 

(2,8) (1,4) Armscor Dockyard (1,4) (2,7)

- - Subsidiaries 24,5 47,7 

5,4 (20,0) 54,5 44,0 

Is arrived at after taking into account:

Operating lease charges

Premises

0,9 0,1  • Contractual amounts 2,3 3,1 

Motor vehicles

- -  •  Contractual amounts 0,2 0,5 

- -  • Contingent amounts 0,1 0,1 

Equipment

1,7 1,4  • Contractual amounts 1,9 2,3 

2,6 1,5 4,5 6,0 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

- 61,1 Loans written off - -

0,2 (0,1) 
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment (0,1) 0,1 

24,0 26,3 Impairment on trade and other receivables 26,5 24,0 

- - (Profit) on exchange rate differences (2,1) (0,8)

- - Amortisation on intangible assets 0,1 0,1

- 6,9 Impairment of property, plant and equipment 9,7 -

2,4 2,7 Auditors remuneration 3,6 2,4 

17,9 18,1 Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 30,2 32,1 

497,2 539,9 Employee costs 707,0 646,9

42,0 44,2 
Post retirement benefits (included in employee 
cost) 58,6 55,2 

(1,0) (7,6)
Defined medical benefit expense (included in 
employee cost) (8,5) 0,4 

- -
Direct employee cost reflected under Cost of 
Sales 35,9 33,2 

48,8 50,5 Subsidiary support (transfer payment to 
facilities) - -

Excluded under operating income of Armscor 
Corporation and operating expenses of the 
Armscor Dockyard is an amount of R2,4 million 
(2012: R2,3 million) relating to a service level 
agreement (SLA) between Armscor and the 
Dockyard where Armscor is rendering human 
resources (HR) and information technology (IT) 
services on behalf of the Dockyard.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

20. INVESTMENT REVENUE

31,5 30,1 Finance income 30,1 31,6 

21. FINANCE COSTS

4,7 5,9 Group companies - -

5,4 - On financial liability - 5,4 

10,1 5,9 - 5,4 

22. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE  
      INCOME/(LOSS)

After elimination of inter-group transactions

30,1 819,9 Armscor Corporation 875,9 23,3 

(3,3) 3,8 Armscor Dockyard 3,7 (0,9)

- - Subsidiaries 288,7 47,8 

26,8 823,7 1 168,3 70,2

The total comprehensive income of subsidiaries 
before the elimination of inter-group 
transactions is R344,6 million. (2012: R43,4 
million surplus).
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CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

23. CASH GENERATED FROM/ 
      (USED IN) OPERATIONS

26,8 823,7 Profit before taxation 1 168,3 70,2 

Adjustments for:

17,9 18,1 Depreciation and amortisation 30,3 32,1 

- 6,9 Impairment 9,7 -

- (819,5) Revaluation of assets (1 083,7) -

- 61,1 Loans written off - -

(0,3) (0,1) (Profit) on sale of assets (0,1) (0,1)

10,1 5,9 Finance costs - 5,4 

(31,5) (30,1) Finance income (30,1) (31,6)

(9,8) 2,4 
Movements in retirement benefit assets and 
liabilities 5,1 (12,2)

2,0 1,1 Movements in provisions 1,4 4,1 

Changes in working capital:

(16,1) 57,9 Trade and other receivables 56,2 (5,2)

2,2 0,1 Inventories (4,1) (1,1)

(53,0) 17,1 Trade and other payables 30,2 (33,4)

44,4 53,6 Deferred income 73,7 44,4 

(7,3) 198,2 256,9 72,6



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 2013136

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 march 2013

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

24. CONTRACTUAL LIABILITIES

210,9 254,0 
Projected outstanding commitments in respect 
of orders placed for expected deliveries. 254,0 210,9 

Contractual commitments which may arise out 
of these contracts are covered in full by means 
of financial authorisations. In other cases cover 
is obtained by means of back-to-back orders 
amounting to R228,0 million (2012: R185,8 
million).

25. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Authorised capital expenditure

Capital expenditure approved but not yet 
contracted

10,7 50,1  • Property, plant and equipment 66,4 34,1 

This committed expenditure relates to plant 
and equipment and will be financed by retained 
surpluses, existing cash resources, funds 
internally generated, etc.

26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS – GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group has entered into operational leases on certain motor vehicles and items of machinery and equipment. Most 
of the leases have expired and are running on a month to month basis. The leases that haven’t expired have lease terms 
between one and twelve months remaining. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases. 
The portion of rental paid during the year which relates to contingent rentals is R136 129,17.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2013 are as follows:

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

0,2 0,6 Within one year 1,0 0,7 

- - After one year but not more than five years 0,4 0,5 

0,2 0,6 1,4 1,2 
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27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

GuARAnTEES

Bank guarantees have been issued for Armscor Defence Institute SOC Ltd in favour of a local contractor amounting 
to R7,0 million (2012: R0,2 million) and for Armscor to a foreign contractor amounting to R16,0 million (USD 1,7 million  
[2012: R22,3 million USD 2,8 million]) for an advance payment received.

Bank guarantees have been issued on behalf of Armscor in favour of the South African Revenue Services: Customs and Excise 
and other creditors amounting to R8,1 million (2012: R8,1 million) with regard to local guarantees.

ALKAnTPAn

At 31 March 2013 the Group had a contingent liability in respect of rehabilitation of the test range at Alkantpan.

In terms of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998), section 28 (1) which came into effect on  
29 January 1999, Alkantpan must take reasonable steps to avoid, stop or minimise degradation of the environment. Certain 
options were investigated and, as no intention currently exist to cease activities at Alkantpan because Alkantpan is regarded 
as a strategic facility which is partially funded by the Department of Defence, Alkantpan has elected to manage the range in 
compliance with the Act and to continue with its day to day clearing actions.

A steering committee was formed between Alkantpan and the Department of Tourism, Environment and Conservation of 
which the first meeting took place on 5 September 2006. It was confirmed at this meeting that the committee is to guide and 
advise Alkantpan on the environmental way forward and to ensure legislative compliance to the Act.

Annual meetings are scheduled to monitor the process and provide feedback on the progress. The last meeting of the 
Alkantpan Environmental and Conservation Steering Committee was held on 3 August 2012. No new issues or risks were 
reported at the meeting held and it was reported that the current measures in place is sufficient to manage the range in 
compliance with the Act.

The cost incurred for rehabilitating the site during the period under review was an amount of R2 042 636 (2012: R1 460 858).

28. FINANCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT OBjECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, certain investments and 
accounts payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The principal market risks to which the Group is exposed through financial instruments are:

 • Foreign exchange rate generating translation and transaction gain and losses

 • Interest rates

 • Credit risk

 • Liquidity risk

InTEREST RATE MAnAGEMEnT

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short term loan and 
cash and cash equivalents. In the ordinary course of business, the Group receives cash from the transfer payment to fund its 
operations as well as to fund working capital and capital expenditure requirements. This cash is managed to ensure surplus 
funds are invested in a manner to achieve maximum returns while minimising risk.
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cREDIT RISK MAnAGEMEnT 

The Group only deposits cash surpluses with major banks of high quality credit standing.

Trade account receivables comprise a widespread customer base. The granting of credit is controlled by well established 
criteria, which are reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis.

At year end, the Group did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which has not been insured or 
adequately provided for. With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group’s exposure 
to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these 
instruments.

The maximum credit exposure is the carrying amount of financial assets as disclosed in the balance sheet.

LIQuIDITY RISK 

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of call accounts. 
The Group maintains a sufficient level of liquidity to be able to meet all its obligations. The Corporation has no overdraft 
facility. No additional banking facilities or reserve borrowings are considered necessary.

cAPITAL MAnAGEMEnT 

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to 
ensure that it maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratio’s in order to support its business. The Group manages 
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in 
the objective, policies or processes for the year ended 31 March 2013. The Group does not have external imposed capital 
requirements. The Group does not make use of capital from outside providers other than trade and other payables and have 
sufficient cash and cash equivalents to cover its net debt.

CORPORATION GROUP

2012 2013 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

(151,9) (169,0) Trade and other payables (233,3) (203,1)

442,6 689,8 Cash and cash equivalents 685,7 440,6 
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FAIR vALuES (GROuP)

CARRyING AMOUNT FAIR vALUE

2013 2012 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Trade and other receivables 127,9 184,1 127,9 184,1 

Cash allocated to insurance reserve 22,5 24,7 22,5 24,7 

Cash and cash equivalents 663,2 415,9 663,2 415,9 

FINANCIAL LIABILITY

Current liabilities (383,7) (354,8) (383,7) (354,8)

The carrying amounts for cash, cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and current liabilities approximate fair value 
due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Related party payables and trade receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 
effective interest rate is 6,0% (2012: 6,5%). The amounts are payable within 1 year.

InTEREST RATE RISK (SEnSITIvITY AnALYSIS) 

The Group’s exposure to the risk in market interest rates relates primarily to interest received on call accounts and fixed 
deposits.

Interest rate risk table

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates with all other variables held constant

INCREASE/DECREASE
IN bASIS POINTS

INCREASE/DECREASE IN SURPLUS
FOR THE yEAR AND EQUITy

2013 +/-50 +/- R3,1 milion

2012 +/- 50 +/- R2,5 milion

FOREIGn ExcHAnGE RISK 

The Group does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations. 
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales or purchases in foreign currencies. 
The Group does not regard the fluctuation of foreign currency rates to have a material impact on the results for the year.
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29. INFORMATION REQUIRED IN TERMS OF SECTION 55(2) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE  

MANAGEMENT ACT 

An amount of R169 968 (2012: R204 862) relating to unrecoverable debts was written off during the year.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure of an immaterial amount of R2 411 (2012: R42 408) was incurred as a result of deposit 
paid for goods not delivered (R1 199) and interest paid on late payments (R1 212). Of this an amount of R Nil (2012: R Nil) was 
recovered after year end.

Irregular expenditure of R2 061 786 was incurred at the Dockyard in relation to awards made to entities without a valid tax 
certificate (R334 990), awards made without valid BBBEE certificate (R196 124) and awards made where the reason supplied 
for only inviting one service provider was deemed to be insufficient (R1 530 672).

30. DIRECTORS’/EXECUTIVE MEMBERS’ EMOLUMENTS
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R R R R R R

31 MARCH 2013

Directors’ Emoluments

Executive Directors

JG Grobler - 1 171 209 297 473 103 404 212 678 1 784 764 

JS Mkwanazi 1 - 1 645 011 390 152 259 542 257 020 2 551 725 

Subtotal  - 2 816 220 687 625 362 946 469 698 4 336 489 

31 MARCH 2012

JG Grobler - 1 083 096 277 137 103 404 228 793 1 692 430 

JS Mkwanazi - 1 524 948 366 449 249 336 276 739 2 417 472 

Subtotal  - 2 608 044 643 586 352 740 505 532 4 109 902 
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Non-executive Directors

31 MARCH 2013

EL Borole 254 268 - - - - 254 268 

Dr PP Dyantyi 2 302 539 - - - - 302 539 

Dr JL Job 2 211 191 - - - - 211 191 

Dr RR Mgijima 2 217 050 - - - - 217 050 

R Mokoena 314 509 - - - - 314 509 

LW Mosiako 301 873 - - - - 301 873 

MM Motau 3 444 502 - - - - 444 502 

SA Msibi 257 531 - - - - 257 531 

Adv V September 4 11 252 - - - - 11 252 

Subtotal 2 314 715 - - - - 2 314 715 

31 MARCH 2012

EL Borole 166 183 - - - - 166 183 

Dr PP Dyantyi 2 123 773 - - - - 123 773 

Dr JL Job 2 123 773 - - - - 123 773 

RP Meyer 5 11 252 - - - - 11 252 

Dr RR Mgijima 2 123 773 - - - - 123 773 

R Mokoena 226 424 - - - - 226 424 

Dr PS Molefe 5 37 042 - - - - 37 042 

LW Mosiako 161 124 - - - - 161 124 

MM Motau 407 460 407 460 

SA Msibi 166 183 - - - - 166 183 

Adv V September 135 025 - - - - 135 025 

Subtotal 1 682 012  -  -  -  - 1 682 012 

TOTAL 

31 MARCH 2013 2 314 715 2 816 220 687 625 362 946 469 698 6 651 204 

TOTAL 

31 MARCH 2012 1 682 012 2 608 044 643 586 352 740 505 532 5 791 914 
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MANAGEMENT BOARD EMOLUMENTS
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R R R R R R

Executive Members

31 MARCH 2013

NRM Borotho 6 - 733 101 1 493 772 54 009 104 501 2 385 383 

TT Goduka - 1 104 954 225 844 133 932 188 702 1 653 432 

D Griesel 7 - 1 010 913 253 865 300 226 186 127 1 751 131 

SP Mbada - 1 037 268 259 794 169 452 198 709 1 665 223 

KP Hanafey 9 - 1 053 687 267 707 126 767 173 322 1 621 483 

L Keyise 10 - 180 732 - 9 934 25 819 216 485 

JL Mzili 11 - 81 586 - 10 967 13 113 105 666 

CVV Ramphele 12 - 75 611 - 13 301 17 032 105 944 

LR Mathieson 13 - 178 816 - 9 934 32 459 221 209

TOTAL - 5 456 668 2 500 982 828 522 939 784 9 725 956

31 MARCH 2012

NRM Borotho - 1 330 476 229 655 104 028 216 402 1 880 561 

TT Goduka - 1 019 331 106 773 133 932 202 385 1 462 421 

D Griesel - 928 404 242 715 290 548 219 830 1 681 497 

MM Matibe 8 - 442 226 69 721 139 665 105 489 757 101 

SP Mbada - 953 886 180 254 169 452 192 232 1 495 824 

KP Hanafey - 978 762 164 726 145 668 191 224 1 480 380 

TOTAL - 5 653 085 993 844 983 293 1 127 562 8 757 784 

Non-executive Audit Committee Member, not member of board of Directors

31 MARCH 2013

RD Marule 39 149 - - - - 39 149 

TOTAL 39 149 - - - - 39 149 

31 MARCH 2012

RD Marule 39 149 - - - - 39 149 

N Medupe 3 262 - - - - 3 262 

TOTAL 42 411 - - - - 42 411 
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nOTES APPLIcABLE TO nOTE 30

1. Appointed on 19 November 2009 as acting CEO.

2. Appointed to the Board of Directors on 1 May 2011.

3. Appointed as Chairperson of the Board on 1 May 2011.

4. Term as Board member expired on 30 April 2012.

5. Resigned as Board member on 30 April 2011.

6. Employment terminated on 7 October 2012. Other benefits paid include a severance pay package.

7. Appointed from 23 November 2009 as Management Board member (Acting General Manager: Acquisition).

8. Resigned as Management Board member on 26 October 2011.

9. Acting position as Management Board member expired on 31 January 2013.

10. Appointed from 1 February 2013 as Management Board member (Chief Information Officer).

11. Appointed from 1 March 2013 as Management Board member (General Manager: Marketing and Business  
Development).

12. Appointed from 1 March 2013 as Management Board member (General Manager: Corporate Compliance).

13. Appointed as Management Board member (General Manager: Research and Development) on 1 February 2013.

14. Increase in fees due to additional committee meetings attended.

15. Other benefits include bonus (13th cheque), performance-related payments and leave capitalisations.

16. Allowances include sums paid by way of expense allowances, i.e. computer, motor, cell phone and acting allowance 
as well as long service awards.

17. Retirement benefits include contributions made to any pension fund; medical benefit fund; medical aid; unemployment 
and funeral scheme.

18. No emoluments are paid to Armscor Defence Institutes ex-officio Directors: messrs JG Grobler, KP Hanafey (acting 
position as Director expired on 31 January 2013), NRM Borotho (resigned as Director on 7 October 2012), SP Mbada, 
JS Mkwanazi and LR Mathieson (appointed 1 February 2013).

SHARE OPTIOnS

No share options exist and therefore no share option gains are included in the amount of emoluments received as directors 
of the Corporation.

DIREcTORS’ SERvIcE cOnTRAcTS

Notice periods in respect of employment contracts of executive directors do not exceed one year. Non-executive directors 
are appointed for a three-year period and not bound by employment contracts.

PEnSIOnS

Pensions paid or receivable by executive directors are paid or received under defined contributory pension schemes.
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31. RELATED-PARTY DISCLOSURES 

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Limiited (“ARMSCOR”) is a statutory body, wholly owned by the State, 

established in terms of the Armaments Development and Production Act (Act No 57 of 1968), and continues, its existence 

through the Armaments Corporation of South Africa Limited Act (Act No 51 of 2003).

To execute it’s mandate, Armscor received a Government grant of R748,1 million (2012: R659,9 million) from the State through 

the Department of Defence (DOD).

Investment in subsidiaries and loans from subsidiaries as detailed below are set out in note 8 of the financial statements.

2013 2012

SUBSIDIARIES Rm Rm

Armscor Defence Institutes SOC Ltd (Loan from) (154,4) (112,7)

Armscor Defence Institutes SOC Ltd (Loan to) 40,9 40,9 

Erasmusrand Eiendomme SOC Ltd (Loan to) - 136,0 

Oospark SOC Ltd (Loan to) - 1,1 

Sportrand SOC Ltd (Loan to) - 2,0 

R R

Institute for Maritime Technology SOC Ltd (Loan from) (4,0) (4,0)

Erasmusrand Eiendomme SOC Ltd, Oospark SOC Ltd and Sportrand SOC Ltd sold to Armscor Land and Buildings, these 
transactions were settled by loan accounts. Loans written off amounting to R61,1 million was recognised by Armscor. The 
following table provides details of the sale:

#FAIR vALUE *CARRyING 
vALUE

#PURCHASE PRICE WRITE OFF

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Erasmusrand Eiendomme SOC Ltd 707,5 75,2 136,0 60,8

Oospart SOC Ltd 110,0 1,1 1,1 -

Sportrand SOC Ltd 80,0 1,7 2,0 0,3

* Properties sold at their carrying value, purchase price settled by loan account. Outstanding loan balances were  
written off.

#  Fair values of the assets sold at the date of sale. Assets were sold to Armscor at their carrying value. Fair value 
adjustments to the assets transferred to Armscor were conducted after the sale was completed.
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into by the Group with related 
parties for the relevant financial year.

SALES OF GOODS 
AND SERvICES TO 
RELATED PARTIES

PURCHASES OF 
GOODS FROM 

RELATED PARTIES

AMOUNTS OWED 
by RELATED 

PARTIES

AMOUNTS OWED 
TO RELATED 

PARTIES

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Armscor Defence Institutes 11,1 9,1 56,5 54,8 0,3 0,2 - -

Department of Defence 20,2 19,9 33,5 68,9 44,3 14,9 145,4 95,1 

State controlled entities

Major national public entities (Schedule 2 
and 3 public entities) 171,2 156,5 465,6 388,2 29,1 21,6 11,3 66,5 

National Government 39,6 35,2 7,7 3,6 8,0 11,2 44,3 7,7 

TERMS AnD cOnDITIOnS OF TRAnSAcTIOnS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances at the year-end 
are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any 
related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2013, the group has made provision for doubtful debts of  
R90,0 million (2012: R95,8 million) relating to amounts owed by related parties.

Included in the above figures are payments of R9,1 million (2012: R7,2 million) in respect of a service level agreement paid by 
Armscor Defence Institutes to Armscor, an amount of R50,5 million (2012: R48,8 million) paid by Armscor to Armscor Defence 
Institutes for subsidiary support and rent of R2,0 million (2012: R1,9 million) paid by Armscor Defence Institutes to Armscor 
and net interest paid to Armscor Defence Institutes by Armscor of R5,9 million (2012: R4,7 million).

In accordance with Armscor’s mandate, acquisition was undertaken on behalf of the Department of Defence. These 
transactions are set out in annexure A of the financial statements.

Armscor Defence Institutes had the following business with the Department of Defence, as stated below.

SALES OF GOODS 
TO RELATED 

PARTIES

PURCHASES OF 
GOODS FROM 

RELATED PARTIES

AMOUNTS OWED 
by RELATED 

PARTIES

AMOUNTS OWED 
TO RELATED 

PARTIES

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Special and General Defence Account 193,5 159,5 0,1 0,1 1,9 0,5 42,2 9,6 



ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | 2013146

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd

notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 march 2013

Included in the sale of goods to related parties above is a secondary transfer payment (in terms of a separate Memorandum 

of Agreement) from the Department of Defence to the value of R87,1 million (2012: R75,3 million).

GROUP

2013 2012

Rm Rm

Reconciliation of transfer payments received from the Department of Defence

 • Primary transfer payment recognised in comprehensive income 748,1 659,9 

 • Secondary transfer payment received 87,1 75,3 

 • Funds received for Maritime domain awerness centres transferred to deferred 
income due to outstanding conditions 18,1 -

 • Funding transferred to deferred income due to outstanding conditions 72,3 54,5 

 • Deferred Income recognised as transfer payment      (23,2) (8,3)

TOTAL TRANSFER PAYMENTS REFLECTED AT DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE 902,4 781,4 

Assets and stock transferred to the Dockyard with an effective date of 1 April 2010 has been fair valued at R42,7 million 

and accounted for as deferred income, with the purpose of recognising it in line with the utilisation of the assets and stock. 

During the financial year an amount of R6,3 million (2012: R5,1 million) was recognised as income in accordance with the 

utilisation thereof, of which R6,3 million (2012: R3,3 million) relates to assets and R0,0 million (2012: R1,8 million) relates to 

stock.

DIREcTORS

Directors’ interests in related parties: No interests in related parties have been declared by Armscor Directors.

Two of Armscor’s Executive Directors and two Armscor Management Board Members are ex-officio directors of the Armscor 

Defence Institutes’ Board of Directors at 31 March 2013. One Armscor Executive Director is also ex-officio director on the 

Boards of Erasmusrand Eiendomme SOC Ltd, Sportrand SOC Ltd and Oospark SOC Ltd. 

KEY MAnAGEMEnT PERSOnnEL

Information on the remuneration of all key management personnel is disclosed in note 30.

32. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (GAME AT ALkANTPAN)

Many years ago, Armscor (through Alkantpan, a division of Armscor Defence Institutes SOC Ltd, a subsidiary wholly owned 

by Armscor) made an acquisition of land in Alkantpan from the South African Government which included game. 

 • This site is used as a testing site for gun systems and other tests. 

 • Armscor does not manage the biological transformation of the game. The game is left to their own devices. Some get 
killed as a result of the testing. 
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 • Armscor has no control over the game as it is free to move from and to the land Armscor owns as no proper fencing 
for the control of game exists.

 • Armscor has no rights to the game if they were to leave the land and at the point where the game leaves the land 
Armscor would also lose control and ownership of that game. 

 • No future economic benefits can be derived from the game.

An asset is defined as a resource controlled by the entity as a result of past events and from which future economic benefits 
are expected to flow to the entity. Control means that benefits to be derived from the game will be due to Armscor and no 
one else.

The above mentioned game are therefore not to be recognised as part of assets in the financial statements of Armscor as 
they fail to meet the definition of an asset.

33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Based on a decision of the Armscor Board of Directors, Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Ltd is in the process of being dissolved 
as a seperate entity and will be incorporated into the newly formed R&D Department of the holding company, Armscor. 
Based on this decision the total business of the company will be transferred to the holding company as a going concern. The 
assets and liabilities will be transferred at their carrying values.

Rm

Non-current Assets 409,3

Current Assets 190,3

Total Assets 599,6

Non-current Liabilities -

Current Liabilities 154,1

Total Liabilities 154,1

34. RESTATEMENTS

34.1 SLA IncOME AnD SLA ExPEnSES 

In the previous financial year transactions between the Dockyard and Armscor were not eliminated in the calculation of 
the net profit for the year. These transactions related to SLA income to Armscor and SLA expenses in the Dockyard. The 
adjustment has been made to prior year figures with no effect on the net profit.

34.2 REcOGnITIOn OF IncOME AnD REPLAcEMEnT OF PROPERTY, PLAnT AnD EQuIPMEnT

The recognition of income and replacement of property, plant and equipment at ADI by the insurers were incorrectly 
recorded in the company’s financial statements during the previous year. The net effect of this is that other income in the 
statement of comprehensive income property, plant and equipment, receivables and retained income in the statement of 
financial position were uderstated in the results for the group.
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34.3 cALcuLATIOn OF DEPREcIATIOn

Depreciation calculation was over stated due to the incorrect process followed in reassessing the assets useful lives.

The correction results in adjustments are as follows:

CORPORATION GROUP

Currently 
reported as 
prior year 

figures

Previously 
reported in 

2012

Currently 
reported as 
prior year 

figures

Previously 
reported in 

2012

Property, plant and equipment 48,8 54,6 236,9 241,8

Trade and other receivables - - 184,1 182,3

Retained income 373,2 379,0 474,2 477,3

Other income* 56,8 59,2 70,5 70,2

Operating expenses 725,1 721,7 879,7 876,3

Net profit 26,8 32,6 70,2 73,3

* Includes SLA income on note 34.1

35. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in other Entities

The standard sets out disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and unconsolidated 
structured entities. The disclosures are aimed to provide information about the significance and exposure to risks of such 
interests. The most significant impact is the disclosure requirement for unconsolidated structured entities or off balance 
sheet vehicles.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

The adoption of this standard is not expected to impact on the results of the company, but may result in more disclosure 
than is currently provided in the financial statements.

IFRS 1 – Annual Improvements for 2009 – 2011 cycle

The amendment allows an entity to be a first time adopter of IFRS more than once, if its previous financial statements did 
not contain an explicit unreserved statement of compliance with IFRS. In addition, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance 
with previous GAAP before the date of transition to IFRS may be applied unadjusted at the transition date.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The Group expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

The company is unable to reliably estimate the impact of the amendment on the financial statements. 
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IAS 1 – Annual Improvements for 2009 – 2011 cycle

Clarification is provided on the requirements for comparative information. Specifically, if a retrospective restatement is 
made, a retrospective change in accounting policy or a reclassification, the statement of financial position at the beginning 
of the previous period is only required if the impact on the beginning of the previous period is material. Related notes are 
not required, other than disclosure of specified information.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The group expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to impact on the results of the company, but may result in more disclosure 
than is currently provided in the financial statements.

IAS 16 – Annual Improvements for 2009 – 2011 cycle

Spare parts, stand by equipment and servicing equipment should only be classified as property, plant and equipment if they 
meet the definition.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The group expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

The company is unable to reliably estimate the impact of the amendment on the financial statements.

IAS 32 – Annual Improvements for 2009 – 2011 cycle

Tax effects of distributions made to holders of equity instruments. Income tax relating to distributions made to holders of 
equity instruments and tax effects of transaction costs of equity transactions must be accounted for in accordance with IAS 
12 Income Taxes.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The group expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.

Consolidated Financial Statements, joint Arrangements and Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities: Transition 

Guidance.

Transitional guidance for the application of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. The amendment limits the requirement to provide 
adjusted comparative information to only the preceding comparative period.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The group expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

The company is unable to reliably estimate the impact of the amendment on the financial statements.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2011.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2012 financial statements.

The impact of this is not material.
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2010 Annual Improvements Project: Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Additional clarification is provided on the requirements for risk disclosures.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2011.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2012 financial statements.

The adoption of this has not had a material impact on the results of the company, but has resulted in more disclosure than 
would have previously been provided in the financial statements.

2010 Annual Improvements Project: Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendment now requires that an entity must present, either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes, 
analysis of movements by item.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2011.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2012 financial statements.

The impact of this is not material.

35.1  STAnDARDS AnD InTERPRETATIOnS nOT YET EFFEcTIvE

The group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are 
mandatory for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2012 or later periods:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

This new standard is the first phase of a three-phase project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. To date, the standard includes chapters for classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets 
and liabilities. The following are main changes from IAS 39:

 • Financial assets will be categorised as those subsequently measured at fair value or at amortised cost.

 • Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets where the business model for managing the assets is to 
hold the assets to collect contractual cash flows (where the contractual cash flows represent payments of principal 
and interest only). All other non-current financial assets are to be subsequently measured at fair value.

 • Under certain circumstances, financial assets may be designated as at fair value.

 • For hybrid contracts, where the host contract is an asset within the scope of IFRS 9, then the whole instrument is 
classified in accordance with IFRS 9, without separation of the embedded derivative. In other circumstances, the 
provisions of IAS 39 still apply.

 • Voluntary reclassification of financial assets is prohibited. Financial assets shall be 
reclassified if the entity changes its business model for the management of financial assets. 
In such circumstances, reclassification takes place prospectively from the beginning of the first reporting period after 
the date of change of the business model.

 • Financial liabilities shall not be reclassified.

 • Investments in equity instruments may be measured at fair value through profit or loss. When such an election is 
made, it may not subsequently be revoked, and gains or deficits accumulated in equity are not recycled to surplus or 
deficit on derecognition of the investment. The election may be made per individual investment.
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 • IFRS 9 does not allow for investments in equity instruments to be measured at cost.

 • The classification categories for financial liabilities remains unchanged. However, where a financial liability is 
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the change in fair value attributable to changes in the liabilities credit 
risk shall be presented in other comprehensive income. This excludes situations where such presentation will create 
or enlarge an accounting mismatch, in which case, the full fair value adjustment shall be recognised in profit or loss.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2015.

The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2016 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Standard replaces the consolidation sections of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and SIC 12 
Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities. The standard sets out a new definition of control, which exists only when an entity 
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity, and has the ability to effect those returns 
through power over the investee.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that this will have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

Consequential amendment as a result of IFRS 10. The amended Standard now only deals with separate financial statements.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that this will have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

New standard setting out guidance on the measurement and disclosure of items measured at fair value or required to be 
disclosed at fair value in terms of other IFRS’s.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

The company is unable to reliably estimate the impact of the standard on the financial statements.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendment now requires items of other comprehensive income to be presented as:

 • Those which will be reclassified to profit or loss.

 • Those which will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
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The related tax disclosures are also required to follow the presentation allocation.

In addition, the amendment changed the name of the statement of comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 July 2012.

The company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.

The adoption of this is not expected to impact on the results of the company, but may result in more disclosure than is 
currently provided in the financial statements.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits Revised

 • Require recognition of changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) including immediate recognition of defined 
benefit cost, disaggregation of defined benefit cost into components, recognition of re-measurements in other 
comprehensive income, plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

 • Introduce enhanced disclosures about defined benefit plans.

 • Modify accounting for termination benefits, including distinguishing benefits provided in exchange for service and 
benefits provided in exchange for the termination of employment and effect the recognition and measurement of 
termination benefits.

 • Clarification of miscellaneous issues, including the classification of employee benefits, current estimates of mortality 
rates, tax and administration costs and risk-sharing and conditional indexation features.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013. 

The company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2014 financial statements and the impact will be 

assessed during the following financial year.
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TOTAL VALUE OF ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED)

Government grants for operating expenditure are obtained to undertake acquisition actions. In accordance with Armscor’s 

mandate, acquisition was undertaken on behalf of the following organisations:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Special Defence Account 3 580,8 4 573,8 4 518,0 5 505,0 9 114,7 

General Defence Account 2 288,6 1 815,2 1 441,0 1 308,2 1 125,3 

SA Police Service 71,8 96,5 101,3 108,0 168,9 

Other 72,6 93,7 66,3 106,9 77,3 

6 013,8 6 579,2 6 126,6 7 028,1 10 486,2 
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AAD Africa Aerospace and Defence 

ABET Adult Basic Education Training

ADEEC Armscor employment equity committee

ADERI Aeronautic Defence and Evaluation Re-
search Institute

ADI Armscor Defence Institutes

ADM Advanced Development Model

AET Adult Education Training

AMP Assisted maintenance period

AU African Union

BBBEE Broad-based black economic empower-
ment

BCD Biological and Chemical Defence

BoD Board of Directors

BOE Black owned enterprises

BRICS Brazil Russia China India and South Africa

BWOE Black women owned enterprises

CB Chemical Biology

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFE Client furnished equipment

CIO Chief Information Officer

CISS Close in surveillance system

CSI Corporate Social Investment

CVED Combat Vehicle Electric Drive 

CW Chemical Warfare

DCAC Directorate conventional arms control

DCN Defence Communication Network

DDSI Defence Decision Support Institution

DED Docking essential defects

DEIS Deparment of Defence Enterprise Infor-
mation Systems

DERI Defence Evaluation Research Institutes 

DIP Departmental Industrial Participation

DJWG Defence Joint Working group

ACRONYMS AND ABBREViATiONS

DLS Denel Land Systems

DMD Armscor's Defence Material Disposal

DOD Department of Defence

DPW Department of Public Works

DPW Departmental Public Works 

ECSA Engineering Council of South Africa

EEA Employment Equity Act

EME Exempted Micro Enterprises

EW Electronic Warfare

FAB Brazilian Air Force

FIATA International Federation of Freight For-
warders Association

GBADS Ground Based Air Defence System

HF High Frequency

IBSA India Brasilia South Africa

ICT Information and Communication Technol-
ogy

IMT Institute for Maritime Technology

IP Intellectual Property

IPCS Intra Platform Communication System

IT Information Technology

IW Information Warfare

LIALLS Lessons Identified and Lessons Learnt 
System

LIFT Lead-In Fighter Trainer

LWS Local Warning Segment

MOD Ministry of Defence

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NCACC National Convention Arms Control Com-
mittee

NDP National Development Plan

NGICV-PS New Generation Infantry Combat Vehicle 
Products System 

NGN New Generation Network

NPC National Non-proliferation Council
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OEM Original equipment manufacturer 

OPCW Organisation for the Prohibition to 
Strengthen Coorperation

OSD Occupation specific dispensation

PCA's Physical Configuration Audits

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PMP Pretorial Metal Pressing

QME Qualifying Small Enterprises

RF Radio Frequency

RMD Rheinmetall Denel Munition

RSA Republic of South Africa

SAAFF South African Association of Freight For-
warders

SABS South African Bureau of Standards

SADC Southern African Development Countries

SADI South African Defence Industry

SAICA South African Institute of Chartered Ac-
countants

SAMHS South African Military Health Services

SANAS South Afircan National Accreditation 
System

SANDF SA Navy's

SANDF South African National Defence Force

SAPS South African Police Services

SARS South African Revenue Services

SDP Special Defence Packages

SDP Strategic Defence Packages

SETA Sectorial Education Training Authorities

SHE Safety Health and Environment

SLA Service Level Agreement

SMMEs Small Medium Micro Enterprises

SOC State owned company

SRCS Shortage range communication system

TDP Talent Development Programme

TMA Technology Management Analysis

UBRD Ultra Broken Rail Detector (UBRD)

USA Unclassified Suppliers 

V/UHF Very/ Ultra High Frequency

YDP Youth Development Programme
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